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Chairman’s Statement
EEHRE

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of
directors (the “Directors”) of Hang Sang (Siu
Po) International Holding Company Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively the
“Group”), | am pleased to present the annual
report for the year ended 30 June 2023.

The principal activities of the Group are
manufacturing and sale of apparel labels and
packaging printing products and trading and
online distribution of food, daily necessities and
utility products.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group
recorded revenue of approximately HK$54.4
million, representing a decrease of approximately
27.9% as compared with that of the year ended 30
June 2022. Gross profit margin was approximately
17.3% for the year ended 30 June 2023 which was
approximately 12.6 percentage point lower than
that for the year ended 30 June 2022. The Group
recorded loss and total comprehensive expense
of approximately HK$26.0 million for the year
ended 30 June 2023 as compared to loss and total
comprehensive expense of approximately HK$3.8
million for the year ended 30 June 2022.

Geopolitical tensions and weaken global
economic growth momentum impacted the
global market continually. The global retail
market, including the apparel market, was
seriously affected. As a result, the demand for
apparel labels and packaging printing products
decreased correspondingly. The differences
between countries on various matters continued
to affect the global economy. The performance
of the Group has inevitably been affected. The
business environment facing the Group will
remain challenging in the near term.
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Nevertheless, the Group will continue to make
efforts to strengthen our existing printing
business and a new business in relation to trading
and online distribution of food, daily necessities
and utility products. In addition, the Group will
actively consider business diversification and
seek for other business opportunities or partners
that are beneficial to the Group, and continue
to do its utmost to maximise the interests of the
Group and its shareholders.

On behalf of the Group, | would like to express
our sincere gratitude to our shareholders,
business partners and all colleagues for their
persistent support.

Fung Man Wai Samson
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 September 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEFWE S

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded revenue of approximately
HK$54.4 million for the year ended 30 June
2023 (“FY 2023"), representing a decrease of
approximately 27.9% as compared with that for
the year ended 30 June 2022 (“FY 2022"). The
Group’s revenue from manufacturing and sale of
apparel labels and packaging printing products
segment dropped by approximately 34.8% to
approximately HK$45.4 million for FY 2023. The
Group’s printing customers place orders in
cautious approach due to uncertainty in global
economic outlook and persistent geo-political
and economic tensions between China and the
United States. The Group’s revenue from sale and
distribution of food, daily necessities and utility
products segment increased by approximately
54.2% to approximately HK$9.0 million for
FY 2023 as the fact that this segment was just
into business in mid 2021 and it took time to
accumulate customer base. As a result, there was
an overall decrease in the Group’s revenue in FY
2023 of approximately 27.9% as compared with FY
2022.

Gross profit margin decreased to approximately
17.3% for FY 2023 (for FY 2022: 29.9%). Loss and
total comprehensive expense for FY 2023 was
approximately HK$26.0 million (FY 2022: loss and
total comprehensive expense approximately
HK$3.8 million).

75 I

BE_FZZHENAZTHIREE (R EWBGE
BE 1) > ASHE H 8% A3 UL 25 4 54,400,000 H T - B E
TRITHEANAZTHIMERE ((ZE S MEUEE )
W) 27.9% o BIE B 5B MR 45 % A 255 ) 5
Sy R 2R R R = BRI A A 34.8% 2 A
45,400,000 #IT o H1 2 BR A i 5 B B K b e
7 BRI O AT AR > AR [ Y BRI &P EREUEE
PAERE T aT B o A fh ~ H A5 B FH 2 S Al & 85 J%
T 325 43 B B W 25 B I ) 54.2% B R =R
#19,000,000 #JC » I J7 H %4 BRI T Z— A4
A PR » WERHRE RE PR - B > AEE
i L F = B B I WA R T T I A P A
BEIRA K] 27.9% o

CTROEMBAEERBARTRELN 173%(2F
TR ¢ 29.9%) 0 R = WFBUAR BE s 4 I
ZHi BH S BAEE A0 26,000,000 #ETT (L . P BUE
BE = G HE M 4 B S 4% 44 3,800,000 HIG) ©

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#



Management Discussion and Analysis

OUTLOOK

Geopolitical tensions and slowing down growth
in advanced economies will continue to weigh
on external demand and the tightening financial
environment remains a key source of economic
uncertainties. With all the challenging factors,
it is believed that prudent and conservative
business strategies will continue to be adopted
by the customers. The Group will continue to
enhance its sales effort, product quality, internal
controls and will strive to implement stringent
cost controls to cope with the challenging global
market conditions.

In order to diversify and strengthen the Group’s
business foundation and maximise the interests
of the Group and the shareholders, the Group
will continue to explore suitable and appropriate
business opportunities.

FINANCIAL REVIEW
Revenue

There was a decrease in overall revenue for FY
2023. Revenue from manufacturing and sale of
apparel labels and packaging printing products
segment decreased by approximately HK$24.3
million or 34.8% from approximately HK$69.7
million for FY 2022 to approximately HK$45.4
million for FY 2023, which was mainly the result
of the Group’s printing customers placing orders
in cautious approach due to uncertainty in global
economic outlook and persistent geo-political
and economic tensions between China and the
United States. Revenue from sale and distribution
of food, daily necessities and utility products
segment increased by approximately HK$3.2
million or 54.2% from approximately HK$5.8
million for FY 2022 to approximately HK$9.0
million for FY 2023, mainly due to the fact that this
segment was just into business in mid 2021 and it
took time to accumulate customer base.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEFWE S

Cost of sales and gross profit

Cost of sales over the total revenue of the
Group for FY 2023 was approximately 82.7%.
As compared with approximately 70.1% for FY
2022, there was an increase of approximately
12.6 percentage point. Such increase was mainly
attributable to absorption of fixed production
overhead with respect to decrease in revenue.

As a result, the gross profit margins for FY 2023
decreased by approximately 12.6 percentage
point to approximately 17.3% (FY 2022: 29.9%).
The gross profit for FY 2023 decreased to
approximately HK$9.4 million (FY 2022: HK$22.6
million).

Other income

Other income primarily comprises of subsidy
from the Employment Support Scheme provided
by the Hong Kong Government and interest
income. There was no significant changes in
other income. The Group did not record gain on
disposal of property, plant and equipment in FY
2023. However the Group received more interest
income generated from time deposit in bank.

Selling expenses

Selling expenses primarily consist of freight
charges, transportation and marketing service
fee. Selling expenses decreased by approximately
HK$1.3 million to approximately HK$7.1 million
for FY 2023. Such decrease was mainly caused
by the decrease in freight charges and sales
commission paid due to decreased sales.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Administrative and other operating expenses

Administrative and other operating expenses
primarily comprise of salaries, utilities,
professional fee, depreciation and other
miscellaneous administrative expenses. There
was a slight increase in administrative and
other operating expenses, primarily due to the
increase of depreciation on property, plant and
equipment.

Loss and total comprehensive expense

The Group recorded loss and total
comprehensive expense of approximately
HK$26.0 million for FY 2023 as compared to
loss and total comprehensive expense of
approximately HK$3.8 million for FY 2022. The
major reasons were primarily attributable to (i)
decrease in revenue and gross profit; and (ii)
impairment loss on the Group’s non-financial
assets. The Group’s printing segment customers
placing orders with a cautious approach due
to uncertainty in global economic outlook and
persistent geo-political and economic tensions
between China and the United States.

Liquidity and financial information

As at 30 June 2023, the total amount of cash and
cash equivalents of the Group was approximately
HK$43.2 million, representing a decrease of
approximately HK$14.8 million as compared
with that as at 30 June 2022. Such decrease
was mainly caused by the decrease in overall
revenue and cash receipts during the FY 2023,
which results in the decrease in cash inflow from
operating activities. The Board closely monitors
the Group’s liquidity position to ensure that the
liquidity structure of the Group's assets, liabilities
and other commitments can meet its funding
requirements from time to time. There was no
bank and other borrowings as at 30 June 2023 and
2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEFWE S

As at 30 June 2023, the current ratio (current
assets/current liabilities) was 3.35 times (FY 2022:
4.53 times) and the quick ratio ((current assets-
inventories)/current liabilities) was 3.15 times (FY
2022: 4.27 times).

Treasury policies

The Group has adopted a prudent financial
management approach towards its treasury
policies and thus maintained a healthy liquidity
position throughout the year. The Board closely
monitors the Group’s liquidity position to ensure
that the liquidity structure of the Group’s assets,
liabilities and other commitments can meet its
funding requirements from time to time.

Capital structure

The capital of the Company comprises of ordinary
shares and reserves. The shares of the Company
were first listed on the Stock Exchange on 18 May
2016. There has been no change in the capital
structure of the Company since that date.

Share option

A share option scheme was adopted on 26 April
2016, there was no share options granted during
FY 2023. And there was no outstanding share
options granted as at 30 June 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Commitments

The contractual commitment of the Group
was related to rental and the lease of property.
Commitments were shown under note 23 to the
consolidated financial statements.

Pledge of assets

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had not pledged
any assets (2022: HKS$Nil).

Exposure to foreign exchange risk

The Group mainly carries out its transactions in
United States dollars (“USD”) and Hong Kong
dollars (“HK$”) and majority of its bank balances,
trade and other receivables and trade and other
payables are denominated in USD and HKS.
As HK$ is pegged to USD, the management
of the Group does not expect any significant
movements in the USD/HK$ exchange rate and
considers the Group is not exposed to significant
currency risk.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency
risks with USD as the rate of exchange between
HK$ and USD is controlled within a tight range.
Consistent changes in foreign exchange rates
would have an impact on consolidated financial
statements. The management of the Group
will closely monitor the changes of the rate of
exchange and government policies from time to
time.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEEFWE S

Material contingent liabilities

The Group is not aware of any material
contingent liabilities as at 30 June 2023.

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING DATE

There were no material subsequent events
occurred after FY 2023 and up to the date of this
report.

USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange since
18 May 2016. The receipts of proceeds, net of
listing expenses (including underwriting fee),
including both recognised in the condensed
consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and deducted
from the share premium from the Company’s
listing were approximately HK$36.1 million (the
“Net Proceeds”). The details of the utilised Net
Proceeds up to 30 June 2023 are summarised in
Directors’ Report of this Annual Report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICIES

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had 68 full time
management, administrative and operation staff
in Hong Kong (as at 30 June 2022: 78). There is
no significant change in the Group’s emolument
policies. On top of basic salaries, bonuses may
be paid by reference to the Group’s performance
as well as individual’s performance. Other staff
benefits, such as contributions to Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme,
medical insurance and other relevant insurance
for employees who are employed by the Group.

DIVIDENDS

The Board does not recommend the payment of
any dividend for the year ended 30 June 2023.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR

Biographical details of the Directors and senior
executive are set out as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (“Mr Samson Fung”),
aged 63, is one of our controlling shareholders,
and our chairman, chief executive officer and
executive Director. Mr Samson Fung joined the
Group on 20 December 1997 and is a co-founder
of our Group. Mr Samson Fung is a director of
each of subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr Samson Fung was appointed as our Director
on 8 October 2015 and designated as our
chairman, chief executive officer and executive
Director on 1 December 2015. Mr Samson Fung
has had approximately 25 years of experience in
the printing industry when he assisted his family’s
printing business before joining our Group, and
has had more than 22 years of experience in the
apparel label and packaging printing industry.
In December 1997, Mr Samson Fung and Mr
Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”) acquired A W
Printing & Packaging Limited (“A W Printing”)
which specialised in the trading of apparel labels
and packaging printing products. Subsequently
in November 1999, Mr Samson Fung and Mr
David Fung established Hang Sang (Siu Po) Press
Company Limited (“Hang Sang (Siu Po)”) which
focused on the manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products. Mr
Samson Fung is a director of Hang Sang (Siu Po)
Holding Limited (“Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding”),
A W Printing, Alpha Prime Foods Limited (“Alpha
Prime”) and Hang Sang (Siu Po). He is the father
of Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander (“Mr Alex Fung”)
and the elder brother of Mr David Fung.
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(Siu Po) Holdingl) ~ izE&MAMATR ([H3]) ~ A
W Printing & fE 4 JBAR) BT o P02 IR A A4
(TUSFAR S Az ) B AL R 5 S8 S A A L
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

Mr Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”), aged 56,
is one of our controlling shareholders, and our
senior vice president and executive Director. Mr
David Fung joined the Group on 20 December
1997 and is a co-founder of our Group. Mr David
Fung is a director of certain subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr David Fung was appointed as our Director
on 8 October 2015 and designated as our
senior vice-president and executive Director
on 1 December 2015. He graduated from York
University, Toronto, Canada with a bachelor of
arts in mathematics for commerce in November
1990. Mr David Fung has had approximately 2
years of experience in the printing industry when
he assisted his family’s printing business before
joining our Group, and has had more than 22
years of experience in the apparel label and
packaging printing industry. In December 1997,
Mr David Fung and Mr Samson Fung acquired
A W Printing which specialised in the trading of
apparel labels and packaging printing products.
Subsequently, in November 1999, Mr David Fung
and Mr Samson Fung established Hang Sang (Siu
Po) which focused on the manufacturing and sale
of apparel labels and packaging printing products.
Mr David Fung is a director of Hang Sang (Siu Po)
Holding, A W Printing and Hang Sang (Siu Po). Mr
David Fung is the younger brother of Mr Samson
Fung and an uncle of Mr Alex Fung.

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR

W H e ([ W CEMAEA]) > 5658 » % BB
Z— o UK AR ATE S o I5SCE e A
—HILEET A B MAAREE » R AL
A 36 5] A N 2 — o U5 DTS S A s A AR [ 3 T MY I
AFZHER o

BHCHEER T -HET AN ERER#EE
PRI T — BT 2 T AR R RO
FT#F o PR —WNIBE+— A BRERMERS i
ZHITORE > GEA TR SO B o I OCER
AR T A A SR T B AT BE SR EN R SE S > ST DR
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR

Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander (“Mr Alex Fung”),
aged 37, is our vice president and executive
Director. Mr Alex Fung joined the Group on 24
August 2015. Mr Alex Fung is a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Mr Alex Fung was appointed as our Director
on 8 October 2015 and designated as our vice
president and executive Director on 1 December
2015. Mr Alex Fung obtained a master’s degree
in business, entrepreneurship and technology at
the University of Waterloo, Ontario, Canada in
October 2010. He worked at The Hongkong and
Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited between
February 2012 and February 2014, with his last
position being an associate portfolio manager.
He was confirmed employment by J.P. Morgan
Chase Bank, N.A. under private banking analyst
program in February 2014. His employment
with J.P. Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. was between
March 2014 and August 2015 before joining our
Company. Mr Alex Fung is a director of Hang
Sang (Siu Po) Holding and Alpha Prime. Mr Alex
Fung is the son of Mr Samson Fung and a nephew
of Mr David Fung.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr Loke Yu alias Loke Hoi Lam (“Dr Loke”), aged
74, was appointed as our independent non-
executive Director (“INED”) and the chairman of
our Audit Committee and member of each of the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee on 26 April 2016.

Dr. Loke has over 44 years of experience in
accounting and auditing for private and public
companies, financial consultancy and corporate
management. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from University Teknologi
Malaysia and a Doctor of Business Administration
degree from University of South Australia. Dr.
Loke is a Fellow of The Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, The Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute. He is a life member of The Hong Kong
Independent Non-executive Director Association.
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive
ERERERITHRARBNEEFT

Dr Loke has held the following directorships B 1L 7 0 25 =4 R R AR RS B bl A RIEAE TR
in the following companies listed on the Stock HH#E S
Exchange in the past three years:

Listing on the

Stock Exchange  Stock Code Period
BRp L BRI MW

China Silver Technology Holdings Limited Main Board 00515 Since June 2018 Independent Non-Executive
Director

SRR B ISR PR ] A 00515 F2018%6 i BALEATES

Hong Kong Resources Holdings Main Board 02862 Since May 2017 Independent Non-Executive

Company Limited Director

FERRERARAR FR 02882 201745 18 Bk S

Matrix Holdings Limited Main Board 01005 Since September 2004  Independent Non-Executive
Director

FAMRBHRA EsL 1 01005 F120044£9 1 BEATES

Zhenro Properties Group Limited Main Board 06158 Since December 2017 Independent Non-Executive
Director

ERS AR R A EZ 71 06158 H2017412 i B ERATES

Veson Holdings Limited Main Board 01399 Since September 2020  Non-Executive Director

SR EBARAT EsL 1 01399 F20204£9 F i FAES
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ERERERITHRARBNEEFT

Listing on the

Stock Exchange  Stock Code Period
BRH bt RBREE I

Chiho Environmental Group Limited Main Board 00976 From June 2010 to Independent Non-Executive
December 2021 Director

ARG AR £ 00976 201046 220214121 B BT E S

CIMC-TianDa Holdings Company Limited Main Board 00445 From August 2006 to  Independent Non-Executive
January 2021 Director

AR R RIS R A £ 00445 20065F8H £20214F1 /1 WA HE

Tianjin Development Holdings Limited ~ Main Board 00882 From December 2012 Independent Non-Executive
to June 2023 Director

RHB B A IR R 00882 20126127 2202356 B FHTES

Crazy Sports Group Limited Main Board 00082 From May 2005 to Independent Non-Executive
May 2022 Director

AR HRIARAR £ 00082 200555 A 22020485/ WA ES

Times Universal Group Holdings Limited ~ Main Board 02310 From April 2016 to Independent Non-Executive
September 2022 Director

RERIRIRGEE R A A £ 02310 201654 22020489/ B EAfTHS

TradeGo FinTech Limited GEM 08017 From August 2018 to  Independent Non-Executive
February 2023 Director

R A B S R A GEM 08017 20184F8J1 £20234F2 /] B AATH S

Zhong An Group Limited Main Board 00672 From June 2009 to Independent Non-Executive
June 2021 Director

BERIHRAT F 00672 2009F6H £20214F6 /] WU EAGTES
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

Ms Fung Po Yee (“Ms Fung”), aged 47, was
appointed as our INED and the chairman of our
Nomination Committee. She is also a member of
each of our Remuneration Committee and Audit
Committee on 26 April 2016.

Ms Fung obtained her bachelor of laws degree
in December 1998 and was awarded the
Postgraduate Certificate in Laws in September
1999 at The University of Hong Kong. She was
also awarded the Postgraduate Diploma in
International Commercial Law at The University
of Nottingham of the United Kingdom in
December 2003. Ms Fung was admitted as a
solicitor in September 2002.

Ms Fung worked at Woo, Kwan, Lee & Lo
between September 2002 and June 2007, with
her last position being an assistant solicitor. She
then joined Reed Smith Richards Butler (formerly
known as Richards Butler) as an assistant solicitor
between July 2007 and August 2009, and between
April 2011 and December 2012. She joined BOC
Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited (stock code:
2388), the issued shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange, as an assistant company
secretary between August 2009 and March
2011. In January 2013, Ms Fung co-founded CFN
Lawyers, a law firm in association with Broad &
Bright, and is currently a partner of the firm. She
is the first batch of lawyers who passed the 2021
Examination for Hong Kong Legal Practitioners to
Practise Law in the Greater Bay Area.

While devoting to her practising solicitor career,
Ms Fung is also committed to contributing to
society. She has been appointed by the Hong
Kong Government as a member of the Hong
Kong Air Transport Licensing Authority since
2022. She has also been appointed by the Film
Censorship Authority as a member of the Panel
of Advisers on Film Censorship since 2023.

Dr Sung Ting Yee (“Dr Sung”), aged 49, was
appointed as our INED and the chairman of our
Remuneration Committee. She is also a member
of each of our Nomination Committee and Audit
Committee on 26 April 2016.

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR
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Biographical Details of the Directors and Senior Executive

EFRERITHRARBNEEFR

Dr Sung obtained a bachelor’s degree in
accountancy at the Birmingham City University
(formerly known as University of Central
England in Birmingham), United Kingdom, a
master’s degree in business administration at
the University of Birmingham, United Kingdom
and a doctoral degree in business administration
at The University of Newcastle, Australia. She is
a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants.

She has more than 25 years of experience
in accounting, finance, internal and external
auditing.

Dr Sung is currently the Responsible Officer
of AccFin Corporate Finance Limited, which is
principally engaged in advising on corporate
finance (with SFC Type 6 license) and a certified
public accountant (practicing) of her wholly-
owned audit firm.

SENIOR EXECUTIVE

Mr Li Kit Chung (“Mr Li”), aged 41, is the chief
financial officer and the company secretary (the
“Company Secretary”) of the Group. Mr Li joined
the Group in August 2015.

Mr Li is a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of the
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute and
the Chartered Governance Institute. Mr Li has
more than 17 years of experience in accounting,
auditing and corporate finance. Prior to joining
the Group, he worked in a managerial grade
position in the assurance department of an
international accounting firm and chief financial
officer of listed company in Hong Kong. He
was awarded a bachelor’s degree of commerce
(honours) in accountings at the Hong Kong
Shue Yan University in 2006 and a master degree
of corporate governance at the Hong Kong
Polytechnic University in 2017. Mr Li oversees the
overall financial, budget control, internal control,
company secretarial matters and corporate
finance affairs of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company is committed to maintaining
good standard and procedures of corporate
governance to ensure the integrity, transparency
and quality of disclosure in order to enhance the
shareholder value.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board considers that good corporate
governance of the Company is crucial to
safeguard the interests of the shareholders of
the Company and to enhance the performance
of the Group. The Board and management of the
Company are committed to enhancing corporate
governance standard, in compliance with all
relevant provisions as set out in the Corporate
Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report (the “CG Code”) in Appendix 14 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). The
Company has, through out the year ended 30
June 2023, complied with the code provisions
of the CG Code (“Code Provisions”), save for
the deviations disclosed under the sub-section
headed “chairman and chief executive officer”
below.

THE BOARD

The Directors, individually and collectively, are
committed to act in good faith and in the best
interests of the Company and its shareholders.
As at the date of this report, the Board comprised
three executive Directors and three INEDs. The
profile of all Directors are set out on pages 14 to
20, where relationships among members of the
Board (including financial, business, family or
other material or relevant relationship(s), if any)
are also disclosed.

The Board is responsible for performing the
corporate governance functions of the Company
in accordance with the CG Code, including
determining the Group’s corporate governance
policies, and reviewing and monitoring the
corporate governance practices of the Group.
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Corporate Governance Report

ERELIRS

The Board is responsible for the management of
the business and affairs of the Group with the
objective of enhancing shareholders value and
presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of the Company’s performance,
position and prospects in the annual and
interim reports, and of other inside information
announcements and accounting policies, and
reports to regulators any information required to
be disclosed pursuant to the relevant statutory
requirements.

The Board has fiduciary duty and statutory
responsibility towards the Company and
the Group. Other responsibilities include,
formulation of the Group’s overall strategy and
policies, setting corporate and management
targets and key operational initiatives, monitoring
and control of operational and financial
performance, and approval of budgets and major
capital expenditures, major investments, material
acquisitions and disposals of assets, corporate
or financial restructuring, significant operational,
financial and management matters.

The Board delegates day-to-day management of
the business of the Group to the management
of the relevant principal subsidiaries and certain
specific responsibilities to the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee (collectively, “Committees”).
These Committees have specific functions and
the authority to examine issues and report
to the Board with their recommendations (if
appropriate). Final decisions rest with the Board,
unless otherwise provided for in the terms of
reference of the relevant Committee.

The Company has arranged appropriate liability
insurance cover for liabilities in respect of legal
actions against Directors arising out of corporate
activities. The coverage of such insurance is
reviewed regularly.
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company Secretary provides the Directors
with updates on developments regarding the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements. Any Director may request the
Company Secretary to arrange for independent
professional advice at the expense of the
Company to assist the Directors to effectively
discharge their duties to the Company.

All INEDs, whose designations as INEDs are
identified in all corporate communications of
the Company, bring a variety of experience and
expertise to the Group. The INEDs serve the
important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance
framework. The INEDs participate in Board
meetings to bring an independent judgment on
the issues arising in the meetings and monitor
the Group’s performance in achieving the
corporate goals and objectives. Each of the INEDs
has to provide an annual confirmation of his/
her independence to the Company. The Board
considers that each of the INEDs is independent
in character and judgment and that they all meet
the specific independence guidelines as set out
in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

All Directors are regularly updated on governance
and regulatory matters. There is an established
procedure for Directors to obtain independent
advice where necessary at the expense of the
Company in discharging of their duties to the
Company.

Board Meetings

The Board meets at least four times each year to
review the overall strategy and to monitor the
operation as well as the financial performance of
the Group. During the year ended 30 June 2023,
the Board held 4 regular meetings.
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ERELWRSE

The attendances of the respective Directors at the
meetings are set out below:

Executive Directors i

Mr Samson Fung” eyl
Mr David Fung® Uy €y
Mr Alex Fung® RS
Independent Non-executive Directors BT
Dr Loke Yu G357 INUER

Ms Fung Po Yee Lt

Dr Sung Ting Yee R

Notes:

(1) Mr Samson Fung is the father of Mr Alex Fung and the elder
brother of Mr David Fung.

(2)  Mr David Fung is the younger brother of Mr Samson Fung and an
uncle of Mr Alex Fung.

(3)  Mr Alex Fung is son of Mr Samson Fung and a nephew of Mr
David Fung.

Notice of at least 14 days is served for regular
board meetings. Reasonable notice would
be given for all other special board meetings
which are not held regularly. The chairman of
the Board is primarily responsible for drawing
up and approving the agenda for each board
meetings in consultation with all Directors and
ensure that all Directors are properly briefed on
issues arising at board meetings. Agenda and
accompanying board papers in respect of board
meetings are sent out in full to all Directors
within a reasonable time before the date of every
board meetings to allow them to review these
documents in advance. Minutes of all board
meetings, and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and
the Audit Committee are kept by the Company
Secretary and the Directors may inspect these
minutes at any time during office hours upon
giving reasonable notice. Minutes of all board
meetings, and meetings of the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the

BER MR EOER T :
Meeting attended/held
R BT I Bk

Audit Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee
KBZEHA HMZEH G REZRA
4/4 N/AAE 1n 11
4/4 N/AAE N/AAE N/AANE
4/4 N/AAE 1n 11
4/4 3/3 1" 1M
4/4 3/3 11" 1N
4/4 3/3 1M 1"

Wi -
() S T S 5B ) AL S 2 3. -

() UGSCHRSEA: Ty U5 SRS A AL 20 B IS A AE S A AR

() UBZAE A T G SRS A 1 B B U SO S A R

REF TN RN S > SEEFEERED14H
AN > ik BT A At N S R AT
hE o AT AR - HREFER EEARE
Al AR AR o R S A K R
e > DL B R 3 = ok b TR 9 S 0 R
Il A S0 o B 0l X W i 2 3 O fE
Z BN RE ST ok BT A — B B
RF ] IR B T TR o RO SEAE DA S B B
CfF e TR Rk - HNLTET A%
B & REY LT & Gk 803 A w B E IR
ARG T A B AR > A IR ] A B R A
Abiisk - A ESGEHRITBRULHTMNEE S -
RUZEGABERLTHTZ Glilsk - CHERG
L5 T AR B W 58 I A A ARG R
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Audit Committee, have recorded in sufficient
detail the matters considered by the Board and
the board committees, including any concerns
raised by Directors or dissenting view expressed.
Draft and final versions of these minutes were
sent to all Directors for their comment and
records respectively, normally within 10 days after
the relevant meeting was held.

General Meeting
The attendances of the respective Directors at
the general meetings of the Company are set out

below:

Name of director

ERELIRE

B o L A R AR N AT SRS B 2 RO
S ARA R B Bt e R AT RI0H ;> SBARHE
T w0 Sk R R S e A E R B I i > MR
ERLERA > BRERAMERERZH -

& N
A A B E DU T3

Attendance of general meeting

L 2% YR B ROR B 2 5 Ot
Executive Directors PATHP

Mr Samson Fung R A 11
Mr David Fung e 11
Mr Alex Fung BR A 11
Independent Non-executive Directors B I AT

Dr Loke Yu BT 17
Ms Fung Po Yee gLt 11
Dr Sung Ting Yee Kb St 11

The Board is responsible for maintaining an
on-going dialogue with shareholders and in
particular, uses annual general meetings or other
general meetings to communicate with them and
encourage their participation. The Board notes
that the chairman of the Board and the chairmen

P A EBORIR R R AT S > JUILR A
IR A R i o At Je R OK B S i R e 5D e
KRB - ERFMEL > EFFEMAARAFRELE
B - R4 % H G LM Z B 760 32 R 2 5 5 sk
J o B2 B i L Ath pl H 2 H R BRI AR K & DA
[ 2 B e S R L T A

or, in their absence, the Audit Committee, the
Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company should attend annual
general meetings to answer questions and collect
views of shareholders.
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ERELWRSE

Directors’ Training

According to code provision A.6.5 of the
CG Code, all directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. The
Directors have been given relevant guideline
materials to ensure that they are apprised of
the latest changes in the commercial, legal
and regulatory requirements in relation to the
Company’s businesses, and to refresh their
knowledge and skills on the roles, functions and
duties of a listed company director.

The Company also continuously updates Directors
on the latest developments regarding listing rules
and other applicable regulatory requirements to
ensure compliance and enhance their awareness
of good corporate governance practices. Circulars
or guidance notes are also issued to Directors
where appropriate to ensure their awareness of
best corporate governance practices.

This is to ensure that their contribution to the
Board remains informed and relevant. Directors
are required to provide a record of the training
they received to the Company annually. The
participation by Directors in the continuous
professional development with appropriate
emphasis on duties of a Director of a listed
company and corporate governance matters
during the year ended 30 June 2023 is as follows:

Name of director

[e3i¥a

Executive Directors WaT#R

Mr Samson Fung RS

Mr David Fung s S

Mr Alex Fung RIS
Independent Non-executive Directors M7 k3
Dr Loke Yu e AT 1

Ms Fung Po Yee UEhdE SN

Dr Sung Ting Yee RIS

* including physical attendance or by webcast

RIS A

Reading regulatory updates,

B AT BOR AT Z OB RO
WACE T

v v
v v
V v

WA HH

ALBE A SE A IR A P U BROCSR AL .51 » 2l
WS B AT SRR > DLELE NG TR AL A Z ik
ettt o AR OHRA B TIA0RE > DRk %5 50 2%
SR 24 W) SE 5 R B 2 B T v S~ TR B A R A
B > S DL R B A R R AL - Bk AR A K
HZAHANHRE o

A0y ) 5 A 1 S BN i AR R R A
SR U W SRR R > DU AR 3 M ST i S LA
o B S e R ToE e A T A A o (L
Efﬂ%tﬂﬁ@ﬁfﬁgl > DAREDRIL T fif fcHE A SR 4T ¥R
b i o

e Tl R AP S5 A A A L 2 R S U Bl 2 A L
THEFERNER o & FHGF AL T R
SRR GES  c BEZF_=FANA=THIE
R ERY B FIFE BN AT EFRE KA
EERB AR ERR

Attending seminars/
conferences/forums*
St &/

£ /i

newspapers and journals
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code provides
that the roles of the chairman and chief
executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. The
Company does not at present separate roles of
the chairman and chief executive officer. Mr
Samson Fung is both the chairman and chief
executive officer of the Company. The Board
believes that vesting the roles of both chairman
and chief executive officer in the same person
has the benefit of ensuring consistent leadership
within the Group and enables more effective and
efficient overall strategic planning for the Group.
The Board further believes that the balance of
power and authority will not be impaired by
the present arrangement, and is adequately
ensured by the current Board, which comprises
experienced and high calibre individuals and a
sufficient number of INEDs.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The number of INEDs throughout the year ended
30 June 2023 has met the minimum requirement
of the Listing Rules and represented at least one-
third of the total Board members. Further, at
least one of the INEDs possesses the appropriate
professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise as
required under the Listing Rules.

The Company has received from each of the
INEDs an annual written confirmation of his/
her independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has reviewed their
independence based on such confirmation and
considers that all of them remain independent.

All INEDs have been appointed for a term of 2
years commencing from 26 April 2023 and are
subject to retirement by rotation in accordance
with the Articles of Association of the Company
(the “Articles”).

ERELIRS
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BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board currently comprises the following
three executive Directors and three INEDs:

Executive Directors

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (Chairman)
Mr Fung Man Kam
Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr Loke Yu
Ms Fung Po Yee
Dr Sung Ting Yee

All INEDs are expressly identified as such in all of
the Company’s corporate communications that
disclose the names of Directors.

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Company adopted a board diversity policy
(the “Board Diversity Policy”) from 18 May 2016
up to the date of this corporate governance
report. A summary of this Board Diversity Policy,
together with the measurable objectives set for
implementing this Board Diversity Policy, and
the progress made towards achieving those
objectives are disclosed as below.

The Company recognised the benefits of having
a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. The Board Diversity Policy aimed
to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board. In designing the Board’s composition,
Board diversity has been considered from a
number of measurable aspects including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills,
knowledge and length of services, all of which
the Company considers to be important to
enhance the quality of its performance. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and
candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regards for the benefits of
diversity on the Board.
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The Nomination Committee will monitor the
implementation of the Board Diversity Policy
and recommend any proposed changes to the
Board for approval. The Nomination Committee
will from time to time review the Board Diversity
Policy as appropriate to ensure its effectiveness.

The Nomination Committee of the Board has
reviewed the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
its effectiveness and considered that the Group
achieved the Board Diversity Policy for the year
ended 30 June 2023.

APPOINTMENT AND RE-ELECTION OF
DIRECTORS

In accordance with the Article 84(1) of the Articles,
any new Director appointed by the Board, whether
to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
existing Board, is subject to retirement and re-
election by shareholders at the next following
general meeting of the Company following his/her
appointment. At every annual general meeting of
the Company, one-third of the Directors for the
time being (or, if the number of Directors is not a
multiple of three, the number nearest to but not
greater than one-third) shall retire from office and
being eligible for re-election.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation
and re-election by shareholders at annual general
meetings of the Company at least once every
three years.

BOARD COMMITTEES

As an integral part of good corporate governance,
the Board has established the following Committees
with defined terms of reference.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee
in compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing
Rules. As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s Audit
Committee comprised a total of three members,
all being INEDs, namely, Dr Loke Yu (chairman),
Ms Fung Po Yee and Dr Sung Ting Yee.
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The Audit Committee oversees the financial
reporting process, risk management and internal
control system of the Company. The management
of the Company is responsible for the preparation
of the Group’s financial statements while the
external auditor is responsible for auditing
the Group’s financial statements. Members
of the Audit Committee assist the Board in
fulfilling its responsibilities by providing an
independent review of the financial statements,
and supervising the Company’s system of
financial reporting and internal control. The Audit
Committee presents a report to the Board on its
findings after each Audit Committee meeting.

The Audit Committee also provides an important
link between the Board and the Company’s
auditors in matters coming within the scope of its
terms of reference and keeps the independence
and obijectivity of the auditor’s under review.

The written terms of reference, which describe
the authority and duties of the Audit Committee,
are regularly reviewed and were updated by the
Board to comply with Code Provision C.3.3 of
the Code in 2023. The Audit Committee held two
meetings during the year ended 30 June 2023.

Subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2023 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Audit
Committee reviewed and discussed the 2023
consolidated financial statements included in
this report with management and the external
auditor. In this regard, the Audit Committee held
discussions with management with regard to new
accounting policies or changes in accounting
policies that had been applied, and significant
judgements of the management which affected
the Group’s financial statements. The Audit
Committee received reports and met with the
external auditor to discuss the general scope of
their audit work, including the impact of new
or changes in accounting policies that had been
applied and their assessment of the Group's
internal controls. Based on these reviews and
discussions, and the report of the external
auditor, the Audit Committee recommended
the Board to approve the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 30 June 2023 and
the independent auditor’s report.
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During the year, the Audit Committee also
reviewed the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements for the six months ended 31
December 2022 and recommended the Board to
approve the unaudited condensed consolidated
financial statements.

The members of the Audit Committee considered
the appointment of external auditor, their audit
fees and recommended the Board to seek
shareholders’ approval for the re-appointment
of Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the
Group’s external auditor for the year ending 30
June 2024.

Nomination Committee

The Company has established a Nomination
Committee with terms consistent with the CG
Code Provisions A.5.1 to A.5.6. The written terms
of reference of the Nomination Committee have
included the duties as set out in the relevant
CG Code Provisions. As at 30 June 2023, the
Nomination Committee comprises a total of five
members, being two Executive Directors, namely,
Mr Samson Fung and Mr Alex Fung, and three
INEDs, namely, Ms Fung Po Yee (Chairman), Dr
Loke Yu and Dr Sung Ting Yee. Accordingly, a
majority of the members are INEDs.

The primary responsibilities of the Nomination
Committee include (i) making recommendations
to the Board regarding candidates to fill
vacancies on the Board; (ii) reviewing the Board
Diversity Policy for the Board’s consideration,
and monitoring the progress on achieving the
objectives of the Board Diversity Policy to ensure
effective implementation, and (iii) reviewing
the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge, experience) of the Board
on a regular basis at least annually and make
recommendations to the Board regarding any
proposed change to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy.

The Nomination Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 30 June 2023 to review the
structure, size, composition and diversity of the
Board.
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Remuneration Committee

The Company has established a Remuneration
Committee to deal with matters of remuneration
and compensation arrangement of Directors
and senior management. The written terms of
reference of the remuneration committee have
included the duties as set out in the relevant CG
Provisions. As at 30 June 2023, the Remuneration
Committee comprises a total of five members,
being two Executive Directors, namely, Mr
Samson Fung and Mr Alex Fung, and three INEDs,
namely, Dr Sung Ting Yee (Chairman), Dr Loke
Yu and Ms Fung Po Yee. Accordingly, a majority
of the members are INEDs.

The primary responsibilities of the Remuneration
Committee include, among others, (i) making
recommendations to the Board on the policy
and structure for all remuneration of the
Directors and senior management and on the
establishment of a set of formal and transparent
procedures for developing policies on such
remuneration; (ii) reviewing and approving the
management’s remuneration proposals with
reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and (iii) making recommendations
to the Board on the remuneration packages
of executive Directors and members of senior
management. The Remuneration Committee shall
meet at least once a year.

The Remuneration Committee held one meeting
during the year ended 30 June 2023 to review the
remuneration package of the individual Executive
Directors and senior management for submission
to the Board for approval.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Company’s corporate governance functions

are carried out by the Board pursuant to the code
provisions as set out in the CG code.
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The corporate governance functions currently
performed by the Board are (i) to develop and
review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance to ensure compliance
with the CG Code and other legal or regulatory
requirements; (ii) to oversee the Company’s
orientation program for new Directors; (iii) to
review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior
management; (iv) to develop, review and monitor
the code of conduct and compliance manual (if
any) applicable to employees and Directors; and
(v) to review the Company’s disclosure in this
Corporate Governance Report.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Board
has reviewed the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The position of Company Secretary is held by
Mr Li, a Fellow of the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, a member of The
Hong Kong Chartered Governance Institute
and The Chartered Governance Institute, who
is an employee of the Company. The Company
Secretary reported to the Board from time to
time. All Directors have access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary to ensure that
Board procedures, and all applicable laws, rules
and regulations are followed.

Pursuant to Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, the
Company Secretary must take no less than 15
hours of relevant professional training in each
financial year. The Company Secretary provided
his training records to the Company indicating he
took more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by means of attending inhouse
briefings, attending seminars and reading
relevant guideline materials.

DIVIDEND POLICY

In considering the payment of dividends, there
shall be a balance between retaining adequate
reserves for the Group’s future growth and
rewarding the shareholders of the Company.
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The Board shall also take into account, among
other things, the following factors when
considering the declaration and payment of
dividends:

— the Group’s overall results of operation,
financial condition, expected working
capital requirements and capital expenditure
requirements, liquidity position and future
expansions plans;

- the amount of retained profits and
distributable reserves of the Company;

- general economic conditions, business cycle
of the Group’s business and other internal or
external factors that may have an impact on
the business or financial performance and
position of the Group; and

- any other factors that the Board deems
relevant.

The declaration and payment of dividends by
the Company is subject to any restrictions under
the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands,
the Company’s memorandum and articles of
association, the Listing Rules and any other
applicable laws and regulations.

The Company does not have any pre-determined
dividend distribution ratio. The Company’s
dividend distribution record in the past may not
be used as a reference or basis to determine the
level of dividends that may be declared or paid
by the Company in the future.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute
a legally binding commitment by the Group in
respect of its future dividend and/or in no way
obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any
time or from time to time.

The Board will continually review the Dividend
Policy and reserves the right in its sole and
absolute discretion to update, amend and modify
the Dividend Policy at any time.
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PERFORMANCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ DUTIES

The Company has adopted the rules and
procedures on INEDs’ work. The Company
has three INEDs, representing more than one-
third of the total number of the Directors as
required under the Listing Rules. The INEDs
are professionals with extensive experience in
the fields of accounting, finance and business
management. Dr. Loke Yu has appropriate
accounting and financial experience. The INEDs
do not hold other positions in the Company other
than being members of the board committees.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the INEDs
had no objections to the resolutions made by the
Board.

During the year, the INEDs earnestly and diligently
performed their duties in accordance with the
relevant laws and regulations and the Articles of
the Company. The INEDs actively attended board
meetings during the year ended 30 June 2023, and
reviewed documents presented by the Company.
They also provided professional and constructive
advice on the Company’s major decisions.

The Company has received confirmation from
each of the INEDs about their independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.
The Company considers that the INEDs are
completely independent of the Company, its
substantial shareholders and its affiliates and
comply fully with the requirements concerning
the INEDs under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

It is the external auditor’s responsibility to form
an independent opinion, based on their audit,
on the consolidated financial statements and to
report their opinion solely to the shareholders
of the Company, as a body, and for no other
purpose. They do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for
the content of the auditor’s report. For the year
ended 30 June 2023, the Board has accepted the
recommendation from the Audit Committee on
re-appointing Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
as the external auditor of the Group.
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For the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, the
remuneration paid and payable to the Company’s
external auditor for the provision of services are
as follows:

BE B SER B ENASTH IR
%f&@ﬁ?$ﬁﬂ%%&ﬁﬁ¢ﬁ%ﬁ%%%%
N

2023
e ey

2022
SRR
HK$'000
Tt

HK$’000
T

Statutory audit services Wi RS 618 600
Non-audit services Bl 73180 3
— for interim review — v 400 % R IR 350 300
968 900
DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES F R

STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility
for preparing the Group’s financial statements
in accordance with statutory requirements
and applicable accounting standards. The
responsibilities of the Directors are to prepare the
financial accounts for each financial period which
gives a true and fair view of the state of affairs
of the Group and of the results and cash flows
for that period. The Directors also acknowledge
that the publication of the financial statements
should be distributed to the shareholders of
the Company in a timely manner. In preparing
the accounts for the year ended 30 June 2023,
the Directors have selected suitable accounting
policies and applied them consistently; adopted
appropriate Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and Hong Kong Accounting Standards;
made adjustments and estimates that are prudent,
fair and reasonable and prepared accounts on
a going concern basis. The Directors are also
responsible for keeping proper accounting
records which disclose with reasonable accuracy
at any time the financial position of the Company.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems.

The risk management process includes risk
identification, risk evaluation, risk management
and risk control and review.

The management is entrusted with duties to
identify, analyze, evaluate, respond, monitor
and communicate risks associated with any
activity, function or process within its scope of
responsibility and authority.

The Group has conducted a review of the
implemented system and procedures, including
areas covering financial, operational, compliance
and risk management functions. The systems are
implemented to minimise the risk to which the
Group is exposed and is used as a management
tool for the day-to-day operation of business.
The system can only provide reasonable but
not absolute assurance against misstatement or
losses.

The Group does not have an internal audit
function as the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control system of the
Company and is currently of the view that there
is no immediate need to set up an internal audit
function within the Group in light of the size,
nature and complexity of the Group’s business.
The situation will be reviewed from time to time.

The Group has engaged an external professional
consultant to conduct an independent internal
control review for the year ended 30 June 2023.

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the Board
considered the Group’s risk management and
internal control system as adequate and effective
and that the Company has complied with the
code provisions on internal control of the CG
Code.
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ENTERPRISE RISK MANAGEMENT
FRAMEWORK

The Group established its enterprise risk
management framework. While the Board has
the overall responsibility to ensure that sound
and effective internal controls are maintained,
management is responsible for designing and
implementing an internal control system to
manage all kinds of risks faced by the Group.

Through the risk identification and assessment
processes, risks are identified, assessed,
prioritised and allocated treatments. The Group's
risk management framework follows the COSO
Enterprise Risk Management - Integrated
Framework, which allows the Board and
management to manage the risks of the Group
effectively. The Board receives regular reports
through the Audit Committee that oversees risk
management and internal audit functions.

Principal Risks

For the year ended 30 June 2023, the following
principal risks of the Group were identified and
classified into Market Rate Risk, Liquidity Risk,
Operational Risk, Legal and Compliance Risk and
Listing Risk.

Risk Areas
Rl It 41

Market Rate Risk

T 5] 5 R

Liquidity Risk

B R

Operational Risk

B T L

Legal and Compliance Risk
BB B

Listing Risk

i B

4 3 o 4 B2

SR [ s o 3L A S R B A BRAE R o B e R
Ik A e DR A R RS R Sz TR B o A B
R B TG P S B 4 R A DA A LA 452 P T TG B
F1 45T L

775 308 JL B e ) M REAG AR o A% LB Bk - BE

i~ B B AE RSB A 1 o A 45 1 9% L bR 4 PHLAE

ZLEMECOSOMR R P M — B AHES » HHEFG
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Principal Risks
E

No significant risk identified
AR BB i
No significant risk identified
AR BB i
No significant risk identified
AR BB i
No significant risk identified
AR BB i
No significant risk identified

AR BB K B
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RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Group adopts a “three-layer” corporate
governance structure with operational
management and controls performed by
operations management, coupled with risk
management monitoring carried out by the
finance team and independent internal audit
outsourced to and conducted by external
professional consultant. The Group maintains
a form of enterprise risk to keep track of all
identified major risks of the Group. The form
of enterprise risk provides the Board, the Audit
Committee, and management with a profile of its
major risks and records management’s actions
taken to mitigate the relevant risks. Each risk is
evaluated at least annually based on its likelihood
of occurrence and potential impact upon the
Group. The form of enterprise risk is updated
by management as the risk owners with addition
of new risks and/or removal of existing risks,
if applicable, at least annually, after the annual
risk evaluation has been performed. This review
process can ensure that the Group proactively
manages the risks faced by it in the sense that all
risk owners have access to the form of enterprise
risk and are aware of and alert to those risks in
their area of responsibility so that they can take
follow up actions in an efficient manner.

The Group’s risk management activities are
performed by management on an ongoing
process. The Company has adopted risk
management policy and procedures. The
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
framework will be evaluated at least annually,
and periodic management meeting is held to
update the progress of risk monitoring efforts.
Management is committed to ensure that risk
management forms part of the daily business
operation processes in order to align risk
management with corporate goals in an effective
manner.

The Company will continue to engage external
independent professionals to review the Group’s
system of internal controls and risk management
annually to further enhance the Group’s internal
control and risk management systems as
appropriate.
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HANDLING AND DISSEMINATION OF
INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company regulates the handling and
dissemination of inside information according
to the “Guidelines on Disclosure of Inside
Information” published by the Securities and
Future Commission in June 2012 to ensure
inside information remains confidential until the
disclosure of such information is appropriately
approved, and the dissemination of such
information is efficiently and consistently made.
The Company regularly reminds the Directors
and employees about due compliance with
all policies regarding the inside information.
Also, the Company keeps Directors, senior
management and employees appraised of the
latest regulatory updates. The Company shall
prepare or update appropriate guidelines or
policies to ensure the compliance with regulatory
requirements.

MODEL CODE FOR DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct
regarding securities transactions by Directors
(the “Securities Code”) on terms no less exacting
than the required standard set out by the Stock
Exchange in the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiries, all
Directors have confirmed that they have met the
required standards of dealings as set out in the
Model Code and the Securities Code during the
financial year under review. Directors’ interests as
at 30 June 2023 in the shares in the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the SFO) are set out on pages 109 to
110 of this annual report.
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SHAREHOLDERS'’ RIGHTS

The general meetings of the Company provide
an opportunity for communication between the
shareholders and the Board. An annual general
meeting of the Company shall be held each
year and at such place as may be determined
by the Board. Each general meeting, other than
an annual general meeting, shall be called an
extraordinary general meeting.

Shareholders to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

According to the Articles, extraordinary general
meetings shall be convened on the requisition
of one or more shareholders holding, at the
date of deposit of the requisition, not less than
one tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
having the right to vote at general meetings. Such
requisition shall be made in writing to the Board
or the Company Secretary at the address set out
in the sub-section headed “Putting enquiries
by Shareholders to the Board” for the purpose
of requiring an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of
any business specified in such requisition. The
requisition must state clearly the name(s) of
the requisitionist(s) concerned, its/his/her/their
shareholding in the Company as at the date of
the of the requisition, the reason for convening
an extraordinary general meeting, the agenda
proposed to be included and the details of the
businesses proposed to be transacted at the
extraordinary general meeting, signed by all the
requisitionist(s) concerned. Such meeting shall
be held within 2 months after the deposit of such
requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit, the
Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting,
the requisitionist(s) himself/themselves may do so
in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the
failure of the Board shall be reimbursed to the
requisitionist(s) by the Company.
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Putting Enquiries by shareholders to the Board

Shareholders may send written enquiries to
the Company for the attention of the Company
Secretary at the Company’s principal place of
business in Hong Kong. The relevant address is as
follows:

Block C, 5/F., Gee Hing Chang Industrial Building
No. 16 Cheung Yue Street

Cheung Sha Wan

Kowloon

Hong Kong

Procedures for putting forward proposals by
shareholders at shareholders’ meetings

Shareholders should follow the procedures set
out in the sub-section headed “Shareholders to
convene an extraordinary general meeting” above
for putting forward proposals for discussion at
general meetings.

Voting by Poll

Pursuant to Rule 13.39(4) of the Listing Rules, any
vote of shareholders at a general meeting must be
taken by poll except where the chairman, in good
faith, decides to allow a resolution which relates
purely to a procedural or administrative matter
to be voted on by a show of hands. As such, all
the resolutions to be set out in the notice of 2023
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) will be voted
by poll.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND COMMUNICATION

The Company is responsible for ensuring
that shareholders’ rights are protected.
In order to fulfill this responsibility, the
Company endeavours to maintain a high
level of transparency in communicating with
shareholders and the investment community at
large. The Company is committed to continue
to maintain an open and effective investor
communication policy and to update investors
with the relevant information on its business
in a timely and accurate manner, subject
to the relevant regulatory requirements. In
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order to ensure effective, clear and accurate
communication with investors, all corporate
communications are arranged and handled by
the executive Directors and designated senior
executives according to established practices and
procedures of the Company.

The Board uses annual general meetings and
other general meetings as the principal channel
to meet and communicate with the shareholders.
Registered shareholders are notified by post
for these general meetings, and the notice of
meeting contains the agenda and the proposed
resolutions. Any registered shareholder is
entitled to attend the annual and special general
meetings, provided that their shares have been
recorded in the register of shareholders. The
Board also encourages shareholders to participate
in these general meetings to maintain an on-
going dialogue with the shareholders.

Extensive information about the Company’s
activities is provided in its interim and annual
reports, which are sent to shareholders, analysts
and other interested parties. The Company’s
publication of announcements on the annual and
interim results, issue of other announcements
and shareholders’ circulars in accordance with the
continuing disclosure obligations under the Listing
Rules are circulated on the Stock Exchange’s
website in a timely and accurate manner.

Separate resolutions will be proposed by the
chairman of the meeting in respect of each
substantially separate issue at the Company’s
forthcoming AGM. The chairman of the AGM,
audit committee, the nomination committee
and remuneration committee will attend the
forthcoming annual general meeting to answer
questions of shareholders.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS OF THE
COMPANY

During the year under review, there were no
changes in the constitutional documents of the
Company. A copy of the latest version of the
Memorandum and Articles of Association are
available on the Company’s website and the
website of the Stock Exchange.
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ABOUT THE REPORT

This is the seventh Environmental, Social and
Governance (“ESG”) Report of Hang Sang (Siu
Po) International Holding Company Limited
(the “Company”), presenting the efforts and
achievements of the Company during the
reporting period from 1st July 2022 to 30th June
2023.

Reporting Boundary and Scope

This report has been prepared in compliance
with Environmental, Social and Governance
Reporting Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”). It discloses
environmental and social performance of Hang
Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited and its subsidiaries (the “Group”).
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The reporting principles of Materiality,
Quantitative, Balance, and Consistency underpin
the contents of this ESG report. The following
are outlines explaining the Group’s adherence to
these reporting principles:

Materiality
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Materiality assessment is conducted regularly to identify the key issues of

the Group, ensuring that the impact and performance of these issues are

addressed in this report.
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Quantitative
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The report indicates which data have been checked and verified, assumptions

and techniques used for estimation, and where that information can be found.
Standards, methods, tools used to calculate quantitative key performance
indicators and sources of the conversion factors are also disclosed in this

report.
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Balance The information disclosed in this report is presented in a format that allows
readers to evaluate in an impartial and transparent manner, the Group’s
performance in every aspect of sustainable development.
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Consistency

Unless stated otherwise, statistical methods and criteria applied in this report

are consistent with those used last year. Quantitative data are analysed to
account for year-on-year changes and are presented in a way that allows for
consistent comparisons by the stakeholders.
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This report discloses ESG performance of
the Group’s core business which includes
manufacture and sale of apparel labels, packaging
and printing products, and sale and distribution
of food, daily necessities and utility products.

In respect of governance, the Company has met
requirements of the Corporate Governance Code
as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules;
please refer to Page 21 to 43 of the annual report
for the Corporate Governance Report.
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Feedback

The Group is committed to maintaining
communication with stakeholders, understanding
and responding to their concerns and improving
the comprehensiveness of this report. We
welcome your feedback on this report and on any
aspect of our sustainability performance. Please
contact us at:

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited

Address: Block C, 5/F, Gee Hing Chang Industrial
Building, No. 16 Cheung Yue Street,

Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon, Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2385 1067

E-mail: ir@hangsangpress.com

Website: www.hangsangpress.com

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group is committed to gradually integrate
principles of sustainable development into
its business development and operations
to continuously enhance the Group’s core
competitiveness. We actively identify and manage
relevant risks and opportunities, aiming to create
long-term value for the Group.

Board Statement

The Board is the highest governing body
responsible for overseeing sustainable
development of the Group. It is responsible for
supervising the Group’s sustainable development
strategy, including management of significant
ESG-related risks and opportunities, as well as
monitoring the progress of targets and ensuring
accountability. The Group has established
an ESG Enterprise Committee to oversee the
implementation of sustainable development
strategies. Our ESG Committee is led by the
Chief Financial Officer, General Manager, and
Administrative Manager, who are responsible for
managing the Group’s performance in sustainable
development. The ESG Committee is responsible
for reviewing specific sustainable development
policies, goals, risks, and opportunities of the
Group and monitoring the process of achieving
targets.
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The Board and the ESG Committee are fully
responsible for veracity and authenticity of
the annual ESG report, including materiality of
issues for the Group, compliance with statutory
requirements and articulate reporting of the
Group’s ESG performance. This report details
the measures taken by the Group to address the
identified material issues, as well as the related
risks and opportunities. In addition, the Board
regularly reviews the progress of environmental
objectives to ensure that management policies
effectively mitigate the impact of the Company’s
operations on the environment.

The Board acknowledges its responsibility to
ensure the integrity of the report. To the best
of its knowledge, this report fairly discloses the
details, impact, and management of significant
issues related to the environment, society, and
governance for the Group. This report has been
reviewed and approved by the Board.

The Board Statement is prepared in accordance
with requirements of the Listing Rules and was
approved by the Board of the Group on 22
September 2023.
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Bl o Ay QB S i A AL Ao o

PGB IR b i s R B A A R
CEAANA S S H AR e i
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Stakeholder Engagement

In order to follow the “Materiality” principle
in reporting, we invite various internal and
external stakeholders, including the community,
employees, customers, government, investors
and other stakeholders, to participate in
assessment of material issues and identify issues
that have a major impact on the long-term
success of the Group.

5 B

SO0 R [ T | ME R R o BRI 5 N A
& > WifikE - BB - FF - BOF - #EH &L
e 0y 8 25 > 2 BUECUR P B REAS > DL B AR
V-5 A R A KB S R

Example of Engagement Channels

L3S ]
Community e Helping communities in need e Support charity organisations
£id 2 o HIATENALE o IRFREEALAR
e Environment protection e Compliance with laws and regulations
o IR o JENLHIEHR
Employees * Remuneration * Training courses
B B o FHiH o A
e Training and development e Grievance redressal system
o ISR o HIRHIEE
* Occupational health and safety e Employees’ activities
o HRSEAERRESL A o HTIWH
e Workplace discrimination
o IR
Customers ¢ Product quality e Recall system
%P o ENMHE o A Iml il B
e Customer satisfaction survey
o FRMBENE
Government e Legitimacy of service and business e Compliance with applicable laws and
BORF ethics regulations
o A B v SEIE R A ik o NI R A
e Employee protection
o HTREE
e Tax compliance
o BLBAH
Investors e Corporate governance e Annual reports » ESG reports and
& Other o WEEIW announcements
Stakeholders * Business operations o AELIREL -~ dE RERECE KA E
BeEH RILMbF o HHEE * Annual general meeting
e * Information disclosure o JBHIAGRE
o HRHNER e Company website
o AHEIAU
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Materiality Assessment

We prioritise material topics through online
survey forms and present them in the following
matrix chart. The Board has reviewed and
confirmed the material topics evaluation result.

Level 111
s BEH
4
-3}
=
=)
.~
(7]
-
£
w
B
S % |2}
[+F]
o E
s % .
c 4F
o0
> &

BE  -ERELIHESE

it Y T B

FA I 0 A L ) o A B T S Y R R Y R e
PR o Sl DL 50 e i R R 50 o o O B A
R P U R A R

Level Il
B B

11

Significance to the Group

A [ Y TR

Environment
BREE

Employee ‘ Operation

g

Materiality matrix

A
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Level I
B
Category
i g

Environment
805

3. Material consumption

JEASREBE

20. Customer satisfaction
E-IR D93

18. Product compliance
R

19. Product quality & safety
JE B B A

Operation
B

Employee Talent management
& 8 AA B
Occupational health
and safety
T e R B2 4

The topics in the matrix are divided into three
levels, the first level being the Group’s material
topics. This year, the Group’s focus is on
materials consumption, customer satisfaction,
product compliance, product quality and safety,
talent management and occupational health and
safety. We will continue to monitor the latest
developments in the industry, and the needs
and expectations of stakeholders, and regularly
review and revise the issue repository.

Level 11
B
Category
i WG

9. Cleaner production and
green product
R 2 e B0

1. Energy

h

7.Hazardous waste
A EREED

6. Effluent & reduction
JaE 7K By

10. Environmental compliance

R

23. Supply chain management
3% i 4 L

25. Anti-corruption
R ERE

26. Business ethics
[LE SR

24. Operating compliance
BB

2. Protection of customer’s

privacy
PRIGE% 5 FLRE

Employee engagement
BTIz2H

Employee training and
promotion
BRI E T
Protection of human rights

VN

Level 111
BE
Category
i g

4. Greenhouse gas
emissions
= R

2. Water
K&

5. Air pollutant
22 5R5 e

8. Non-hazardous waste

22. Protection of
intellectual property
rights
AR

27. Community
engagement

I 22 B

Anti-discrimination
AT
Precautionary
measures of child/
forced labour

TE B & 1% 5@ il

55 T it

O e e N A s =M R A > L SR — AR R
Fy 7 G5 V] B TR B o EARAEJE > AR Y R R
Pk B R AR R MR - B PR - B
B~ B E B - N BDL R S e R S
o BRAM I A A R T AT 3 1A SRR B e Je A R B Y
ORF R > s hat AT s e
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The table below describes the actions taken TR T AR S R IR ATH) > AR
by the Group regarding important issues and T B A% 2 e Y A AR R P R B o

the subsequent chapters provide detailed

explanations of performance on these issues.

Aligned

Sustainable

Development  Identified

Goals Material Topics

3 W] A Ll iy Our Actions

B HER LE-3 7] A" 47 B
Responsible - Customer e Conduct Customer Satisfaction Survey
Products Satisfaction regarding product quality, service quality,
FE WAL ZPWEE communication and efficiency.

o EWIHEPRUENEE - M HE - W8 RBR

e Handle customer complaints in accordance
with Customer Complaint Procedures.

o IRI[F P BRI DERE PR

e Investigate the issue raised by the
complainant and implement the necessary
corrective measures.

o EPBETRAH B P PR AT A 5 3 B0 BE A 4

TE B H it
- Product e Compliance with the latest laws and
Compliance regulations.
i £ 8 o HNFROHTA LR

* Develop specialised quality control guidelines
for various production processes such as
the use of printing equipment, inspection,
storage, packaging and delivery standards.

o SPEFEDRIBATABIA - AR A BAEE - ARER -
T~ A B A2 A e 55 2 A A 2 R R ) A
M B B A 4

e Conduct regular internal evaluations on
product instructions, including detailed
quality inspections throughout the entire
printing process.

o EMISHEPE IR HEAT IREEAL O EDRI 2R
ETABE )

— Evaluate finished products
- WA
— Recall and dispose unqualified products
—  [DBCRE BN E i
* Assign product testing to a third party.
o TS =05 43 b B A
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Aligned
Sustainable
Development
Goals

S v A
PR HE

Identified
Material Topics
Lk i
R

Our Actions

A 947 Bh

12 RESPONSIBLE
CONSUMPTION
AND PRODUCTION

QO

12 352

QO

People T,
Oriented

DA |!ﬂ|

4 BEHE

]

Product Quality and
Safety

VB LR A
12.2 By 2030,
achieve the
sustainable
management and
efficient use of
natural resources.
12.2 F20304F » HH
H AR E IR T R A A
PR BRI A

Talent Management
AA B

4.4 By 2030,
substantially
increase the
number of youth
and adults who
have relevant
skills, including
technical and
vocational skills,
for employment,
decent jobs and
entrepreneurship.
4.4. F|20304F > KiF
Byt E - B
AR AR ZE R B 75 Y
FHBA B AR » ARl
PERIRESE PR RE 5
SRR NB

Check the correct usage of FSC™ labels and
set up measures to prevent mix-up of Forest
Stewardship Council® (“FSC™”) and non-
FSC™ products.

H A F S CTMARE B Y T e 5 D 175 00 30 ) 2 45 76 By 1
AR H@e (TFSC™]) KIEFSC™MEE fh AL &
Adhere to strict assay and testing protocols.
TN Bk AL B A R

Establish product recall procedures.

ST S i 1T ORE

Provide quality control training to employees.

#s B TR BUR B 3

Launch in-house training program with

designated training objectives, content and

learning outcome depending on the job

requirements and skill nature.

HEor ARSI > M ARBRAS ] £ AR BT S S

;g%*ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%ﬁ%%ﬁ~%ﬁmﬁﬁ
3

Evaluate the effectiveness of training

programs through internal assessment forms.

25908 A S A M b A S 2 P B
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Aligned

Sustainable

Development  Identified

Goals Material Topics

3 Y A ol Our Actions
B HE R R 47 B

DEGENT WORK AND Occupational e Strive to develop a “Zero-accident” workplace
M Health and Safety by incorporating suitable health and safety
/‘/i BB B e B % 2 provisions in business operations procedures.
(| 8.8 Protect o ERIEHH T > F AL S
nEzin labour rights and L2 GRS e -
e promote safe and ¢ Develop Safety Policy that outlines the
/‘/" secure working steps to be taken for its implementation
‘I environment for all and conduct regular work risk assessments
workers, including and training sessions on employee safety
migrant workers, in procedures.
particular women o fil%E (A E R A KAERBUR) - IREBOR Hiti 5
migrants, and Bi o s AT A R B APl I 2 vk B g B TR A
those in precarious Bl Bl Bk g
employment. * Launch Safety Committee to list the selected
8.8 TR % THER personnel and their duties and safety

BB BHAELIA - & management system related responsibilities.
BRI 4Rl o #[RSERERM@ERELTEE] - BIIHBAE X
MR R AR L BB 2 A PR A A oA Mk B

T A AR 2% 4 A Conduct internal and external evaluation of
A ORBER TARBRSE o performance in safety management.

o SHERREHIEST NINIE D HAEAY

Environment 19 tsoisme Material e Offer FSC™ certified paper to clients as an

Protection ANDPRODUCTION Consumption option.

BYIR m JEAERHE o AEFRBFSC™MER AR 2R 7
12.2 By 2030, * Use vegetable-based printing inks.

12 xmemn achieve o {55 A A B BRI ol 2
the sustainable e Adopt digital printing technology to reduce
m management and ink consumption and regularly clean

efficient use of production machines to avoid reprinting and
natural resources. minimise ink consumption.

12.2 BI20304F > FBL o  BRAHE EDRIBAT > 980 b B AR A o S T
HAAGWM R R - RS EHT E R S8 il 2 #E
BRI - Develop an in-house ERP (“Enterprise
Resource Planning”) system to digitise
paper documents, reduce paper consumption
and minimise adverse environmental impacts
as much as possible.
o PAERNEASREIEBIE ([ERP]) R AT - JIFAVE L
PR T AL - 500 SRR R G 3 o B e (K S B B
AT 5 2
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to enhancing
environmental management and pursuing
excellent business practices. From raw material
selection to waste disposal, we consider
environmental factors in our daily operations
and strive to minimise our impact on the
environment.

To practice sustainable development, the Group
has developed plans for improvement of energy
and water usage and waste handlings, in order
to reduce its carbon footprint. This year, we
will continue to achieve our goals in carbon
reduction, water usage, hazardous and non-
hazardous waste generation and electricity
and other resource consumption. We will also
establish air emission targets for this year.

The Group strictly complies with all applicable
laws and regulations, including but not limited
to Air Pollution Control Ordinance, Water
Pollution Control Ordinance and Waste Disposal
Ordinance. We regularly review all regulations
to ensure compliance and avoid violation.
During the year, the Group was not aware of any
violation of relevant laws and regulations’ that
have a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges
into water and land and generation of hazardous
and non-hazardous waste.

Environmental
Protection Policy

BYIR 5 8t

BB

ACSE E B iR R B B 5 JE R SRR o 1R
FHERE R B IR E > JAAE H W8 % IR
& > WA BB -

BB R AR > AR O R RV ~ K R R
Yool R B A > IS EREE H AR » DU BAM Y
BRI o AAEBE > BAME Fp A HOR W ~ K
A H REE B GEY) - ) 55 IR 5 T R
P AR BE 1 5 22 SR FL AR

A8 I e 8 S A R AL > BRI
T (22 R A W) ~ ORi5 3 Hl B K
Yy EARB) o FAM A HIEAT 2w B A A > DARER
R IR o AR > ACHR N AR N BAE T 9 IR
A7 B B SR Sl S SRR PR ~ K R R PR - A
T e T % e W A L S A B O R T R B Y
EERr YR E

Strict compliance with national and local laws, and environmental management
in accordance with internally established procedures.

AR TN B Je M7 SR ~ A o SRR I PO R B AR R A A T R AT B

Reduce energy consumption, conserve resources, promote resource recycling

and reuse.

WEARHERE » BIADRER > (23 S U T oA 9 B A

Prevent and control pollution and hazardous sources. Reduce or eliminate
emissions of pollutants and prevent the occurrence of various types of

accidents.

BT 160 M 42 195 e B S5 AR » 92 Bk A 35 el A il S 45 S i 8 2

Conduct internal environmental eduction exercises and promote the concept
of green and sustainable office practices.

WEREAT IR AR O EEHE > SRR ARG B

! Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
environmental-related laws and regulations.

! A BB B LR > 552 Bk R IR — 1 -
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Every year, we refer to important categories of
environmental indicators and goals, providing a
solid foundation for setting indicators and goals
for the following year. The corresponding goals
and implementation plans for the important
categories of environmental issues identified in
this year are as follows:

Primary Environmental

Targets
HER

GHG Emissions

Tk 58 SRS T i 20234 i kA 10%
Water Reduce 5% by 2023
KEW 202341l A5 %

Waste Emissions (include
hazardous and non-hazardous

emissions)
gﬁwﬁm(@%ﬁ%&%ﬁﬁﬁ 20234 HiT kA 10%
)

Electricity Consumption
Kt
Air Emissions

ZERIB

Emission Control

We strictly adhere to national laws and
regulations, control pollution emissions and fully
implement relevant domestic and international
policies and requirements. The pollution
emissions generated by our Group mainly include
air pollutants such as nitrogen oxides (“NOx “),
sulphur oxides (“SOx “), and particulate matter
(“PM”), as well as wastewater and some solid
waste.

Reduce 10% by 2023

Reduce 10% by 2023

Reduce 10% by 2023
JA20234F B il A 10%
Reduce 10% by 2023

20234 R ¥ A 10%

BE  -ERELIHESE

MM 44 2 2% B BR BT 0 G o A S 7 BRI AR AR
HRR > il a2 28t H R34 M H AR SR B ER T AL - 3.
AP AR A JEE e A W) T S ERE G  OATE HA  E
TEEEA T -

Base Year Progress

AR i

2018 Reduced 49.83%
(achieved)

2018 Ci#%449.83%
(H BT 2R

2018 Reduced 5.62%
(achieved)

2018 A 5.62%
(HEE TR

2018 Reduced 43.93%
(achieved)

2018 C % 443.93%
(H BT EERR)

2018 Reduced 36.28%
(achieved)

2018 Ci#436.28%
(H BT 2R

2018 Reduced 17.63%
(achieved)

2018 kA 17.63%
(H BT 2R

HtEW

T AN e A SN B L L B > PRI T PRI > A
AR P AR B B S R o AR 5 ) i A 3 e
PEign 1 AIE R - ALY - KBk (E
PRRSRIG el > VA SRR 7K I [ e g ey
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Air Emissions

The Group strictly adheres to all applicable
regulations and provisions on exhaust gas
emissions and air pollution. The Group’s air
pollution is mainly attributed to petrol used for
business commuting, including nitrogen oxides
(“NOy “), sulphur oxides (“SOx “) and particulate
matter (“PM”). During the year, the Group
emitted 2.93 kg Nitrogen oxides, 0.12kg Sulphur
oxides and 0.22 kg particulate matter.

Our production processes generate intensive
volatile organic compounds (“VOCs”) that
have an impact on the environment. In order
to mitigate the corresponding impact, we have
gradually replaced the conventional chemical
solvent with vegetable soy-based ink.

ype of Air Pollutants

SOx
Bt A AL
PM

ERIEI

A5 [0 AR SRS P A T P 8% SR TR % ¥ e v L1
ok o A SR T ) 22 535 e B B DY 7 S A )
B > AR REL (TRAL ) ~ sy
(B AL |) BRI (TPM) © 4R > ARG F HR
;ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁﬂs% » 0. 12T Se i S b4 % 0.22 T 3 #
IR °

SR 0 A O o A R A S A R A
HAL B (VOCs) o R 588 » JAMH% B A KLY
PR SRS A 27T

YoY

Percentage

Emissions (kg) Change (%)
P (T-38) AR 8L (%)
2.93 10.57

0.12 9.09

0.22 10.00

Air Emissions (kg)

ZRIGRMPRE (T3)

3.50
00 020
2550 '
2.00
1.50
2.65
1.00
0.50
0.00
FY 2022
TR TRME

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited

o

mParticulate matter
Sulphur oxides
2.93 i A AL

Nitrogen oxides

AL

FY 2023
B
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Effluent & Waste

The Group strictly complies with the relevant
laws and regulations on waste management,
and strictly controls generation, classification,
transfer and disposal processes of waste. During
the year, the Group generated 36.22 tonnes of
waste, of which 4.65 tonnes was hazardous waste
that included chemical wastewater and 31.57
tonnes of non-hazardous waste that included
industrial and office waste. The overall hazardous
and non-hazardous waste intensities were 0.03
tonnes and 0.22 tonnes per million pieces of
products produced. Of the total, 28.44 tonnes
of non-hazardous waste were recyclable. These
recyclables include scrap paper and confidential

paper.

Classification

ype of Waste

BE  -ERELIHESE

157K B e e

A [ A% 8 ST R B B A B R AR
oy bR - M R EHBEREYAEAER -
EN > AREEEEA36.22AMEEE Y > W IGIL S
K465 WA FBEFEY K TEMPEA EBEFRMF
31.57AMIIEERERY) - BEAEREEBREYEE
A3 ) B A B E R 0.03 A WA J2 0.22 A W o 48 5% 5T
%;gmmﬁ%ﬂ@W°§%ﬁﬁwﬁﬁﬁﬁ&%
f‘ﬁ”“» °

Handling Procedure

)% €y BRI Vg |

PRI i

Non-hazardous  General non-hazardous waste: e  General waste is collected and
waste Production waste, discarded equipment, handed over to the treatment units
e 8 HE ) non-toxic wastewater and kitchen waste for processing.
iy N s T
FRRERERY - RS R ~ MR BRI AR bR WA T i B
Recyclable/degradable non-hazardous e  Recyclable waste is collected by
waste: authorised recycling companies for
Scrap and confidential paper, zinc plates sorting and recycling.
] ol W A A T ) e Scrap paper is reused for quality
JBE IR MM AR ~ BEAR inspection and upgraded for use
in internal memos. Zinc plates are
reused during the printing process.
o ATIE] SR S ER A FY [ 0 2 T
5 > VAT /3 B El ik
o BERARE TR A ST O8N
TP A S > STARCET A BRI AR v R
A
Hazardous Chemical wastewater, chemical solution e  Hazardous waste is stored separately
waste {LELEEK ~ (LB and labelled along with general
A HBERED and recyclable waste, collected and

disposed of by licensed external
waste contractors.

e Aliquid waste disposal system has
been installed to filter, recycle and
reuse the generated wastewater.

o HEBEEYIE B ST [ g e oy
P i BELARE, > Sl K2 Pl LAY A1 I i
0y 0 W A X i

o WLRBHEVIEE R > DRI - 5
e e AR 1) o e A By 95 K
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YoY
Emissions Percentage
ype of Waste (tonnes) Change (%)
g Zp e v 2 B (2 W) JEAE S (%)
Hazardous waste 4.65 21.052
AHBEY
Non-hazardous waste (recyclable) 28.44 -11.48
fF gy (vr i)
Non-hazardous waste (biodegradable) 3.13 -13.90
fF Ry (T PR
Total Waste Generation (tonnes)
BEREY R AR (A W)
45.00
40.00
3.84
35.00
4.65
30.00
25.00 mHazardous waste
HEREREY
20.00 32.13
28.44 Non-hazardous
15.00 Waste (recyclable)
fEFEREFEY (AT
10.00 Non-hazardous
Waste (Biodegradable)
5.00 fE R (V] FfR)
3.64 3.13
0.00
FY 2022 FY 2023
TR RS

Total waste generation intensity
(tonnes/million pieces of products produced)

B8 6 PR TBC BE (AW T )

2 The increase in hazardous waste emission as compared to
last year was due to the increase in business related to such
emission during the year.

3 The total waste intensity increased compared to that of last year
is due to the reduction in business activities for this year.

58
[ |1
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YoY
Percentage

FY 2022
R R

FY 2023
—R A

Change (%)
AR S (%)

0.17 0.25 50.03?

2 A 1 B OB AR AT — S SR TR R B AAE BE DS B AT B ki 2 3
BHm

3 8% S I L DR AP AT — R PR T B A AR AR BE S M
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If hazardous waste is not handled properly, it not
only directly affects the environment but also
has the potential to cause secondary pollution.
Hazardous waste generated during production
and other operations of the Group include
wastewater produced during the printing process
and chemical solutions used in the cleaning
process. We attach great importance to the
management of such hazardous waste and have
established a systematic management approach.
All waste is collected and disposed of by licensed
external waste contractors, and a liquid waste
disposal system is installed to filter, recycle and
reuse the generated wastewater. We do not
discharge wastewater into the sewer system in
our operations.

Our Group generates non-hazardous waste
during the production process, including scrap
paper and zinc plates. In order to minimise waste
generation, we follow the principles of “reduce,
reuse, and recycle” and continuously implement
waste reduction measures. For example, scrap
paper is reused for quality inspection and is
upgraded for use in internal memos, while zinc
plates are reused during the printing process.

Raw Materials Management

A good production plan can reduce production
time and save materials consumption. We
incorporate sustainable development into
our daily production process and contribute
to improving sustainable development. The
Group has implemented an internal ERP system
to ensure effective production planning and
improve production efficiency, covering
customer service representatives and production
teams. The ERP system can digitise paper
documents, including packaging lists, sales
invoices and sales orders, thereby reducing
paper consumption and minimising adverse
environmental impacts.

BIE - tERERWE

AHEBEDEREANEANMME AR BREEE > 2
ARIRBRE R KI5 - REEAEEEE P EENE
EREEY) > KGEN R R A A 0 R K R R AR
o A AL BB VA o AR B R R AN A
REYREBL > BB RILE BT 3 o TR JBEEY
YR MFEMAINT SR R EREE - W&
SERREREY R E RS > OB ~ B K& HAG A F B
E%%%*o%ﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%¢ﬁﬁﬁ?%%%m
157K °

A AR T A AR o 2R R B ) o B B AR K
FEAR o Ryl A SR AE A > RAMESE WD -
AR % T g g D ) o S o A UG 9 A © 51
Jo A% BT FEAR AR o A A % T A 8 R A
Bk > T EEAR I L5 ED R AR AR AR -

B3 Fg A T ) T Rk A A IR % B A BRI RE
AN TR AT B R AN H W AR AR AR 5 s R T
BB A ERR o AL CRBUH NARERPR AL » DA
DRAT 280 04 A2 7 WLl D 48 v A2 R O > T SR P RS
REEAEBEK o ERPFR AL I A0 SCHF (45 658
L~ RS R BT ) Wb o AT A AR
TH R o B (RSB BRI R A P S 2 o

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4£#

59



|

m

60

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B ERELIHSE

In addition, we have adopted new digital printing
technology to avoid the use of plugins and
reduce ink consumption. We also regularly
clean production machines to avoid reprinting
and reduce ink consumption, and use imaging
technology (computer-to-plate) instead of
traditional computer archiving during the printing
process. This technology saves photos and related
chemicals, minimising the generation of chemical
waste.

The Group attaches great importance to selection
of raw materials. We use certification from the
Forest Stewardship Council® (FSC™) to ensure we
use only materials sourced from reliable sources
and produced from wood grown in qualified
forests. Therefore, we encourage customers to
use paper from sustainable forests and promote
sustainable development practices. In the future,
the Group will seek more opportunities to
improve its raw materials management.

Environmental Conservation

The Group has developed a specialised
investigation system and emergency plan for
addressing incidents of natural disaster. When a
natural disaster occurs, the Group immediately
activates the emergency plan to ensure a prompt
and orderly response, maximising the safety
of employees and property. After the disaster
event, we conduct a comprehensive post-disaster
investigation and evaluation to understand the
extent of the losses and impacts, to continuously
enhance our ability to respond to sudden natural
disasters and improve the emergency response
mechanism.

BT > A T BR FH BT i SRS B R Bl > DA E 4 B
3 5 B i b SR TG o BEAh > FRAM I R A
RS > DURE S ST B R R 9ol A i SR R o AR B
AR R DLSEAR B0 (R B L B AR B A SE i A
o RGBT AT H A MR SR B AL B s LB Y
B B A o

ACHE [ AL R ALRE B8R o BT B B
FORA® (TFSC™]) MR > ACSR HH 4t o v S22
VAR B Hy 5 A% AR ObR AR E B SRR R o PRLE > FAM 35
W% 50 P 2 8T AR AR AR > S I T R A
BRI o RO » A B =5 R 5 2 # o o 3% SR
FARHE B o

A R IRBER

SR [ T2 18 A 5 T S S T A o) R A =
oo FEEE AR ISE IR > AR 5K 1 B RO HE =
%o DUEDRAES R - A A R > B KR
Ho R iR E R K A o AR SEHBEARAR > AR MY
HEAT AT Y SEARR A Al > T R R A S B R
JE o ANEHETH AN ME € B H AR GEF MRE Ty - 58
5 KT o
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Our business operations have a certain impact
on the ecological environment, including
resource consumption, waste generation and
pollutants emissions. Therefore, we actively
seek solutions to minimise the impact on the
ecological environment while ensuring the
provision of high-quality products and services
to our customers. Currently, we have set
energy-saving and emission reduction targets,
upgraded operational systems and adopted
advanced technologies to gradually improve
energy efficiency, avoid unnecessary resource
consumption and reduce emissions.

The Group is committed to promoting more
environmentally friendly practices in its business
operations in the future and considers ecological
environmental protection in major decision-
making processes. In the future, we will continue
to invest resources and efforts to promote green
transformation and maintain the health and
diversity of ecosystems. This year, the Group's
business operations have not caused significant
impacts on the environment and biodiversity.

Climate Change

Climate change induced physical risks and
transition risks can have significant impacts on
our businesses. To better prepare for climate
change, we have drafted the Climate Change
Policy outlining mitigation and adaptation
strategies to effectively manage climate-related
risks in our business operations.

During this year, we conducted a fundamental
analysis of climate-related risks that the
Group’s businesses might encounter. Following
recommendations of the Task Force on Climate-
related Financial Disclosures (“TCFD”), our ESG
Committee continuously assesses the financial
impacts of climate change, outlines feasible
measures to adapt to the changes and mitigate
the risks arising from climate change, and it
has formulated a special inspection system for
natural disaster incidents and contingency plans
to guide emergency rescue and relief work, while
embracing excellent opportunities to transition to
a low-carbon economy.

BIE - tERERWE

A R EB B A R B EAE —E R &
5B VRIS AE ~ B T A A RS e i s - My lb
T AR A R AR DT 5 > DUSIAE AR 2 AP B & P
PR3t b B b SR RO RTIR T - 3 T R A B
PEREERIER S o H AT o BN OO 8 i L B RE I Ak
HER ~ THaE i R A e R e 50 S5 3R 4 > B2
ﬁi;ﬁﬁ%ﬂ?%ﬂfﬁ%ﬁ%i* E S 7 e S 1 S D P I 9 A

SR [ 4y B B AR S B TR HE B B S IR BT R
S > TEMEAT HOR R SRY > % A IRIRBEOR A A
FREHE o R > WA BATIR AT ITAR S >
I Sk G R > e ) A A B R A M R R B 5 B o
A > REM B E @A BRI NS
ZRUFSIBE N2 I

R

SRR S T i 20 G o 2 L e T i o 3 4R
VI ) S 75 A TR o L > FRAMY R e S Mk A
LR > 8 rh AR 1 4R A S MBS SR > DA ARAY
LSS 8 T v A SRR ) L

[l AR 9 > A S8 402 ) 3 75 A TR 108 S0 R I D o e
177 BEAAY B o W8 2 5% E %M B A B 45 8 P 8
([TCFDJ) My ik » AREBESGE B & F¢ 8 bl R %
2 T 2 RO B R s WL e T e RIS SR A 5
Ak 3 B P JEL B T B BB P AT AT R > B R B H AR S
HICETEM MBS TSR > HERE SRR T
TORR o OB (AR AR R Y AR AR o
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Physical Risks
L0 B

| ‘

Potential Financial Impact

A B 5

Mitigation Strategy
AR SR

e Extreme weather events such
as typhoons, rainstorms and
floods

o R - FRTH B YLK AR KR
HE

* Rising average temperatures
and persistent elevated
temperatures

o CPIFIR BT RS R

e The Group’s revenue may
decline due to business and
supply chain disruptions

o R M HE G B AT R B
2 T e

e Safety risks and costs of goods
transportation may increase
due to the extreme weather
events

o S RSFIHOE T RE I
i P 24 2 R R 394 o 25 o J A

Develop an extreme weather
action plan to respond to
unforeseen weather conditions
and safeguard business assets
from the impact of climate change
HRE 11 A 5 T8 o S SRR 2 ol R A R
ST > DB AT S R SUIR
DU o M R A SR T S 2 SRR
2

Formulate a post-disaster
recovery plan to ensure swift
resumption of operations and
minimise the level of disruption
il 3 AR ALt A > DA AR AE S IR
T A AT PRI o I S M A
&K T

Transition Risks

Tl R o B

e Issuance of higher standards
of environment-related
regulations

o HEAE T A A BRORAT B 1 L

e Shift in consumer preferences
and needs

o M BRI AN TR B

e Potential increase in costs
and resources required as a
result of adjustments of daily
operations or the adoption of
new technologies

o MHEE H W R SR IO B Al T
A SO AN I 5 9 U T
W

e Decline in demand for printing
and other products, and create
adverse impact on market
share and business revenue

o EPR B b TR R R - i
i R A SE B W AR A 2 4R

Implement energy-saving
measures and use eco-

friendly equipment to reduce
carbon emissions during daily
operational activities and adapt to
higher environmental standards
‘Tt S A B 0 B R ER R
i > DL H T ) e A
TR0 JE B e Y BR R 2R
Embrace the Group’s commitment
to sustainable development,
optimise production technology,
and provide higher-quality
products to meet market and
consumer demands
FRFFAGE B AT R AR > B
LA EEB K F > AR TE BEEL Y
R iy DAARE £ 1i 5 A0 3 2 R
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Energy Management

The Group’s energy consumption mainly
comprises purchased electricity. During the year,
the Group consumed a total of 821,951.00 kWh of
electricity and the use of vehicles for commuting
consumed 7,940.90 litres of petrol. The Group’s
total energy consumption was approximately
3,212.11 Gigajoules (“GJ”) (892,253.99 kWh).
Among them, the consumption of electricity and
petrol accounts for 92.12% and 7.88% of the total
energy consumption, respectively. The energy
intensity was 22.36 GJ (6,212.47kWh) per million
pieces of products produced.

ype of Energy Consumption
B U5 1 FE AT

Petrol
i
Electricity

CW)

BIE -HERELSWE

REIRAT B

AREEREEIEEFAEERAMWEE D « £N > K4
] 3 #€821,951.00T FL IR 2R 7 S A FH VR B4 BT #E
7,940.90 2 FHA I o A< SR 18 i RE R A8 FE BE 43,2121
T IR H-(892,253.99 T EL ) » Hodpr » T ~ Wb
RG> BIAG B RERE92.12% ~ 7.88% © RETREE S A5
ﬁi#%&.zzsﬁ%%ﬂ(@ﬁ{%#%ﬁhemz.w?
FLIRE) o

Energy Consumption (GJ)
REIRIH AR (TIREH)

3,400.00

3,300.00

3,200.00

3,100.00

3,000.00

3,110.61

2,900.00

2,800.00

2,700.00
FY 2022
TR TME
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YoY
Consumption Percentage
(¢])] Change (%)
H#E (TIRALH) AR AL(%)
253.09 3.58
2,959.02 -4.87
mPetrol
Yo
Electricty
%)
2,959.02
FY 2023
TR =
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YoY
Percentage

FY 2022 FY 2023 Change (%)
e e “ R =R AR EE AL (%)

Energy consumption intensity
(G)/million pieces of products produced) 14.24 22.36 57.09*

RRUR I RE R B (TR AEH. " E A )
Energy Conservation Initiatives i i it

The Group has defined clear regulations for each A 45 [ 3 B B A SR P W R 2 0 TEBT BRI
department, which include assessing energy FREP AR > BRI EN R > SN sE
usage and evaluating progress towards emission HWitE TR BER G > TR TFREEAER » i HAE RS 1
reduction goals. The Group is committed to WAL » 5% 6~ Bl > SHAEMA&E
improving energy-saving and emission reduction WHETAE -

measures, enhancing energy efficiency, and

implementing the fundamental tasks of corporate

energy management. It oversees, integrates,

coordinates, and manages various emission

reduction efforts within the Group.

Key energy-saving measures for the year A R TN B E M

e  Strictly follow the seasonal usage time of electrical equipment to control energy consumption.

B BT 5 R A Y 2 B0 P R ) - 92 A DTS 6

Turn off lighting equipment, air conditioning and other appliances when they are not being used,

encourage people to turn off lights when leaving and eliminate unnecessary long-lasting lights

and daytime lighting.

BN P 5 ) P R e~ 22 S LA TR A% - S B TR B IR B R > ST BR A e A R W S H e SR B

Regularly maintain and replace outdated equipment.

TSI DR B B B A

Deploy natural light, use energy saving T5 and T8 fluorescent tubes and LED lights.

B ARG ~ BRI T RETS RT8NEHE K LED

Promote double-sided printing to reduce paper consumption and minimise duplicate printing and

copying.

PRABRE T AR » RERARIRIEFE > i) AT ED ~ WENIRM

e  Establish a wastepaper recycling mechanism and utilise non-confidential documents as draft
paper.

. %EE&%&@WK%J 71 P 25 S [T WA 2 o A P

e  Encourage the reuse and proper disposal of old equipment to extend the lifespan of printing

devices.

o IRABMEEERIREE > HERATED M A B A

4 The total energy consumption intensity increased compared to 4 BEVR TN B LM B4R AT — S B TH R IR Jy A4 BE SE TS 4 Uk,
that of last year is due to the reduction in business activities for
this year.
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We support the “Indoor Temperature Saving
Charter” program to maintain the average indoor
temperature at 24 to 26 degrees Celsius. We
will continue to explore energy saving potential
and make full use of our resources in order to
mitigate our environmental impacts.

GHG Emissions

The Group’s Greenhouse Gas emissions consist
of direct emissions generated from petrol
consumption by vehicles (Scope 1) and indirect
emissions generated from purchased electricity
(Scope 2). During the year, total Greenhouse Gas
emissions amounted to 341.68 tonnes of carbon
dioxide equivalent (tCO,e), a 4.39% decrease
compared to FY 2022. Scope 1 and Scope 2
carbon emissions were 21.12 tCO,e and 320.56
tCO,e respectively. The total GHG emissions
intensity was 2.38 tCO,e per million pieces of
products produced. By implementing effective
environmental measures and promoting clean
technologies, we will continue to strive to reduce
our carbon footprint.

GHG Emissions
ik 2% e, 1 o

BE  -ERELIHESE

P A SRR T2 P 0 3 B A0 2 B L A > R S N3y
I AERFAE24 26 5RO o R > WAIFBATIRE
gﬁ%?@ﬁ&?ﬁﬁa‘ﬂlﬂﬁ% > DR BRI

2 SR P

ZA S [0 A 0 2 SR B A YO Il Y R A Y
PR (1) e SRR Ty 2 A 1 ] B A (Wi 2)
AR AR B A SR PR AR B 2534168 3 M
SALBRE B > R AR A 4.39% o FiRE— K&
A ] R T 0 A 2112 M S AR B
320.562 M A ALRRE B o S S AR PR B Ry i
TR Ah2.38 03 M S AL B o 70 T AT AR
fﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ@&?&%fé%ﬁm > FRAMHE A B 5% ) A ik
SR o

Emissions YoY
(tCO,e) Percentage

PEdis (AW 4 Change (%)
ALk i) AR 8L (%)
21.12 3.58

320.56 -4.87
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BE HEREIES

GHG Emissions (tCO,e)
R E (AW S LRE &
400.00
350.00
300.00
250.00

mScope 2
i —

Scope 1
i —

200.00

150.00

100.00

50.00

0.00 20.39 21.12

FY 2022 FY 2023
SRR TR

YoY
Percentage

FY 2022 FY 2023 Change (%)
TR M4 TR AR AL (%)

GHG emissions intensity
(tCO,e/million pieces of products produced) 1.52 2.38 56.87°

2 SR T
(2 M S AR B P i )

Resource Consumption HHFEN

The Group actively cooperates with national 7 £ [ R A TC 5 136 5K A 3ty Y RS BRIBOK > FRAEOE
and local resource management policies, & RX& &S BRI HAT 2 HEGE - @K -
continuously improves its internal resource A & JEIH LW 5 & B VR RS o
management system, and implements various

energy-saving and water-saving measures, aiming

to reduce resource consumption and improve

resource utilisation efficiency.

s The total GHG emissions intensity increased compared to that s 2 SR B TR P 24T — R ST PR AR R S Al
of last year is due to the reduction in business activities for this
year.
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Water

The printing industry is a water-intensive industry
that consumes a large amount of water during its
operations. During the year, the Group consumed
3,873.30 cubic meters of municipal water,
representing an increase of 26.03°%. The water
consumption intensity was 26.97 cubic meters per
million pieces of products produced. While we
have not experienced any issue in sourcing water
across our operations, we will continue to make
every effort to conserve water resources. We will
continue to implement water-saving measures,
monitor water usage, and identify opportunities
for water recycling.

BE  -ERELIHESE

EDR 62 K B SR RUAT 3 > R MR P IHFE KRR
BI7K o A > ARSIV FE T B /K 3,873.300% 5 K
B E—4EEERIIN26.03% o ¥EAKEE RS E &M E
26,9735 K o fAE FRAMAE 2 4 A AR v 3 AT o)
B KR B > R — IS h @K E
VR o Ty Fp SO > A A 2 R EUER A0 K At
BE R KL » 0k 048 B P K i g o

YoY

Consumption Percentage

(md) Change (%)

i G5 K) AR SAL(%)
3,873.30 26.03

Water Consumption (m>)

REVIHFE (SLT5K)
4,000.00 3,873.30
3,200.00 3,073.41
Water Consumption

2,400.00 o

, IKRE IR FE
1,600.00

800.00

0.00
FY 2022 FY 2023
TR TR

K The increase in water consumption compared to last year is due
to the increased water usage of the water based air conditioning
system.

¢ FEK B SARAT — PR TH R s 7K 2200 2 A5 1) K B
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YoY
Percentage

FY 2022 FY 2023 Change (%)
R R HBAEEEL (%)

Water consumption intensity
(m*million pieces of products produced) 13.04 26.97 106.78"

KU RE B (325K A i E )

Water Conservation Initiatives 5 &9 1 R 35
e Install dual-flush systems in toilets and display water-saving signs.
o RIREEUUKIGAN - ARG HIKA
e  Turn off the water source after use, even if there is no difficulty in accessing water.
o QEFAREAPHAKIR o B AE UK IR _E 3 4 PR 3
*  Report matters related to water leakages to the Administration Department for follow-up.
o [RATIBCHR ME R K [ DL A e
e  Use recycled water instead of running water for rinsing zinc plates.
o PEAFEERA KA A ROKEVEER
e  Optimise production schedule to minimise water consumption.
o LA AR DA FEK B
e  Regularly inspect the water supply network to prevent leaks.
o EMIMREMKEHLB ILRK

7 The total water consumption intensity increased compared to 7 FEAK B LR R ATAT WY BT I TR 2 A I SR S 4 0,
that of last year is to the reduction in business activities for this
year.
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Packaging Material

The usage of packaging materials in the Group
fluctuates due to factors such as product
sales volume and customer demand. We
are committed to reducing consumption of
packaging materials and continuously optimising
the efficiency of their usage. During the year, the
Group consumed 36,040 pieces of paper boxes,
480 rolls of transparent wrap and 221,000 pieces
of rubber band.

BE  -ERELIHESE

ARk

AREE AP EZE MR  FPRRRE
BB B E - MBI A SEDBHEFE
A AL A B R RO © 4R > ARAEE
THFE36,0407 KA ~ 4807 125 W B I 12 221,000 45 12
@ °

YoY
Consumption
Percentage
Change
Consumption Intensity SEPETTHE
LA W SE1(%)
Paper boxes 36,040 pieces 250.93 pieces/million pieces of products produced -51.43%
Eiv] 36,0401F 25093 H A E b
Transparent wrap 480 rolls 3.34 rolls/million pieces of products produced -15.79
BV 480% 3.34% /H B R A A B
Rubber band 221,000 pieces  1,538.75 pieces/million pieces of products produced -64.30°
BB 221,000fF 1,538.75FF, T E 1 B o

The Group’s daily operations consume
packaging materials, including paper boxes,
transparent wrap and rubber bands. To reduce
the consumption of packaging materials, we
have minimised the use of tape and strapping for
sealing, and we reuse plastic and wooden pallets
received from suppliers. Additionally, we raise
awareness among our customers and encourage
them to use one large box instead of multiple
small boxes, among other measures.

8 The decrease in paper boxes consumption compared to last
year is due to the reduction in business activities for this year.

o The decrease in rubber band consumption compared to last
year is due to the reduction in business activities for this year.
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AR EH H WSRO > BIEAUH - B
BIERAR B o R WA RHEFE > R CHE
T B B M AT S HEAT H R M EARAE AR
R i WA )y SRR S R R AR BB A > AP P Y
R > B P — R R AR R A MRS
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Environmental Performance Data Summary TRBELTRCH 7 5 22

Environmental (Unit)"

R (HLE) 0

Total Resources Consumption

U RO A

Electricity (kWh)

B (T )

Petrol (litres)

Tl (A7)

Total energy intensity (GJ/million pieces of products produced)

ALRBVR BE (TR AR,/ e i 1)

Water (m?)
K (LI k)

Water intensity (m*million pieces of products produced)

FEARH B L7k /T A i )

Greenhouse Gas Emissions and Intensity

o S e 1

GHG emissions (tCO.,e)
N Ek: £ N I (A8 )

GHG intensity (tCO,e/million pieces of products produced)
L S SRR L (M SR T B )

Scope 1 (tCO,e)
Al — (0 — S )

Scope 2 (tCO,e)
9 = (A M LR )

Air Emissions

2RI

Nitrogen oxides (NO,) (kg)
REULH(INO,) (T30)

Sulphur oxides (SO,) (kg)
A (SO, (T3)

10 Description of Environmental KPI Calculation Methodology:

FY2022

—F -

WA

864,059

7,666.49

14.24

3,073.41

13.04

357.37

1.52

20.39

336.98

2.65

0.11

FY2023
—F=
W

821,951

7,940.90

22.36

3,873.30

26.97

341.68

2.38

2112

320.56

2.93

0.12

il

YoY
Percentage

Change (%)"
RSB (%) "
-4.87
3.58
57.09
26.03

106.78

-4.39
56.87
3.58

-4.87

10.57

9.09

Calculation of environmental KPIs, including emission factors used for GHG emissions calculations are referenced from the HKEX’s “How to
Prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. The Global Warming Potential (GWP) values are referenced

from the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

w0 BBT B SO R S5 Wl -

BRI B BRI B A (6 5 = SRR A A5 B A PR TR ) T3 225 T i A2 5 B i Tl BRAES G sy — WP — + IROEBR B AUKIR A E AR 1

R ERIEALTE ST 255 BOR R SRR B2 L 3 M 2 L 3 TR it

n The results of the rate of change calculation are based on precise data values.

" SEAC ARG ST A R RN e (AT R 5T
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Particulate matter (PM) (kg)
WKL) (PM) (F-32)

Waste
;g 2]

Total waste éeneratlon (tonnes)

Jo% S 2 A R A ()

Hazardous waste (tonnes)

HHBER (L)

Hazardous waste intensity (tonnes/million pieces of products produced)

A H Y L (A )

Non-hazardous waste (tonnes)

HEE BT (A W)

Non-hazardous waste intensity (tonnes/million pieces of products
produced

SEH TR I (LN i )

Recyclables (tonnes)

AT (8] e (20

Sent to landfill(tonnes)

SRS (Z20)

Usage of Packaging Materials
WRIBHEN

Paper boxes (pieces)

AR (FF)

Pa er boxes intensity (pleces/mllllon pieces of products produced)

»n ﬁ‘iﬁ}# ﬁ‘/ﬁﬁﬁ:ﬁnnﬁﬁ

Transparent wrap (rolls)

EYBEK (%)

Transparent wrap |nten51é (rolls/million pieces of products produced)

BVIBIE L (8, 1 E A )

Rubber band (pieces)
BBE ()

Rubber band mtenmﬁ:éleces/mllhon pieces of products produced)
RRIBREI E (P i i )

Description of Environmental KPI Calculation Methodology:

FY2022

2t
JAE
0.20

39.61

3.84

0.02

35.77

0.15

3213

3.64

74,200

314.87

570

242

619,000

2,626.73

YoY

FY2023 Percentage
Z#Z= Change (%)"
WHAE A A (%)

0.22

36.22

4.65

0.03

31.57

0.22

28.44

3.13

36,040

250.93

480

3.34

221,000

1,538.75

10.00

-8.56

21.05

98.62

-11.74

44.82

-11.48

-13.90

-51.43

-20.30

-15.79

38.17

-64.30

4142

Calculation of environmental KPIs, including emission factors used for GHG emissions calculations are referenced from the HKEX’s “How to
Prepare an ESG Report - Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on Environmental KPIs”. The Global Warming Potential (GWP) values are referenced

from the Fifth Assessment Report of the Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC).

BBT B SO R S5 Wl -

BRI B BRI B L (6 i = SRR A A A PR TR ) 5 225 T s 22 5 T G Tl BRARES G sl — Wi —

R ERIEALTE ST 255 BOR R SRR B2 L 3 M 2 L 3 TR it

The results of the rate of change calculation are based on precise data values.

SEAC ARG ST A R RN e (AT R 5T

BB RO AT -
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PEOPLE-ORIENTED

The Group strictly adheres to national and local
laws and regulations related to employment and
labour management. We effectively safeguard
legitimate rights of employees and care for their
physical and mental well-being. Employees are an
important asset for the long-term development
of the Group. We view equality and compliance
as principles and are committed to creating a
diverse and healthy working environment. We
continuously improve our human resources
processes, innovate and develop a reasonable
and diversified compensation system, and
enhance employee proactiveness and team
cohesion.

Employee Profile

As of June 2023, the Group has a total of 68
employees (non part-time employees) in Hong
Kong. Among them, there are 37 males and 31
females, with a male-to-female ratio of 1:1.2.
There are 54 general employees and 14 managers.
Employees between the ages of 31 and 50 account
for 48.5% of the total workforce, while employees
aged 50 and above account for 51.5% of the total
workforce.

Age Distribution
C8 gl

48.5%

31-50 years old m 50 years old and above
31-505% 505 L

DALy A

A48 1 e 8~ R 5K T i 5 A ) O AR D 5 T B
sl > UIEORFEIR B A PR S B 208 5 & O
JE o A B 2 A SR I R JUT R o v TR BE SRR > AN ER A
VS A B R R > BOD AT % o0 ~ MR RER TAR
B> FrAEH N B IR > AR E £ B2 oo
LHRE R > Sl B LB RN B ERBER T

HITHR

BECRT=EAH  REFARTHBH8AEE (JE
IR H) o HrpBEM37 A > k31 s Bl s
1:1.2 o G544 — i E B K144 K8 - 31 - 50% 18
B A48 N\ #148.5% > 50 DA L8 B A 58 A #51.5% o

Gender Distribution

1531 53 i

45.6%

m Male Female

ok Lok
Position Distribution

Bk GE 2> i

79.4%

® Managerial staff General staff
L —BHT
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In the year, the Group hired 1 new employee.
The employee turnover rate and new hire rate are
17.65% and 1.47%, respectively. The distribution
of employee turnover rate and new hire rate by
gender and age is shown in the following graph:

Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate (by Gender)

i 2R BB AR (Fie PR 43 )
25.00%
19.35%
20.00%
16.22%
15.00%
10.00%
5.00%
3.23%
0.00%
0.00%
Male Female
Sk Lk

® Turnover Rate

B S

New Hire Rate

AR

Employee Rights and Welfare

With the growing awareness of the need to
follow a people-oriented approach, we aim
to create a fair employment platform and
continuously improve employee well-being.
We ensure the quality of our employees and
cultivate outstanding talents. We are committed
to creating an equal and friendly working
environment, fostering a collaborative and
progressive atmosphere, and opposing all
forms of discrimination based on gender, race,
age, region, education, religion, disability,
sexual orientation, or political affiliation. We
prohibit any form of coercion, threats, abuse, or
exploitation, and promote a diverse and inclusive
work environment.

BE  -ERELIHESE

A > AREEHARRE B 14 > BERRERR
BB M E517.65% 2 1.47% o Tk i) B AR ) 4
A B It 23 O ABR R 2 an R B R o

Turnover Rate and New Hire Rate (by Age)

i 2R BB AR (S 4E i 343 )
5.00% 22.86%
20.00%
15.00%
9.09%
10.00%
5.00% 2.86%
0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
0.00%
<30 31~50 >50
H Turnover Rate New Hire Rate
MR AR
W2 B 1 25 B g A

AL MG BFUNTA » STEAFHRET 6 -
AR BT R THE B Ra Ak > WEORE B R B R RS
i 5 o FAM B R F A B R AR BRI 2 0
i 17 28 20 1) TAR S > B — DIkl ~ REER - 4
WY~ Mo~ ERIEE  SRBCEA - BRI ~ B
161 B AR B S [R] T0 A AE ABAR AT 2 > B G 45k — D) il
o JERPEEIE > U S RRYE - AR T AR
S e
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We uphold the principles of fairness and justice,
and continuously improve our Compensation and
Welfare System. We guarantee that all employees
enjoy statutory basic leave, including personal
leave, annual leave, paid leave, maternity leave,
and others. We also conduct age and basic
information verification and registration during
the recruitment process. Furthermore, at the end
of each year, employees are eligible for additional
bonuses, which stimulate their motivation and
contribute to a healthy workplace.

Compensation and Benefits

The Group provides employees with a range of
benefits as outlined in the Compensation and
Welfare System, including but not limited to
performance-based bonuses, in order to retain
and motivate exceptional talents. For outstanding
employees, all received rewards are documented
by the Human Resources department, which
serve as important criteria for individual salary
increases and promotions.

Labour Practices

The Group adheres to the principles of fairness
and voluntariness, and strictly complies with
laws™ and regulations regarding prevention of
child labour and forced labour. We enter into
employment contracts with employees based
on legal requirements®™ and voluntary consent.
Before signing the contract, we proactively inform
applicants of our Group’s basic information,
management policies, and regulations. We
do not engage in any form of coercion or
deception during the recruitment process, and
any violations during the recruitment process
are immediately investigated through internal
procedures.

2 Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
child labour and forced labour laws and regulations.

" Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
employment and labour standards related laws and regulations .
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We strictly prohibit employment of child labour.
During the recruitment process, we conduct
rigorous background checks on potential
applicants in accordance with Group policies.
We take multiple measures to verify the age
of applicants, ensuring the maximum possible
avoidance of child labour. If any illegal activities
are discovered during the investigation, we
immediately report it to the local authorities,
terminate the employment relationship promptly,
arrange for appropriate medical examinations,
and bear all related costs.

During the year, the Group was not aware of
any significant violations of laws and regulations
related to the prevention of child labour or
forced labour that could have had a significant
impact on the Group.

Employee Communication

The Group emphasises effective communication
and connection among employees during
the operation process. We regularly evaluate
employee attendance and work performance, and
incorporate their communication, collaboration,
and suggestions to colleagues or superiors
into the annual performance evaluation.
We provide relevant feedback and advice to
motivate employees to help each other improve
performance. Based on the evaluation results, we
develop talent management plans to effectively
assist the personal career growth of different
employees and distribute year-end bonuses
to outstanding employees to stimulate their
motivation.

To facilitate employees’ growth and progress,
we encourage internal mobility and provide a
complaint mechanism and channels to ensure
employee rights. If any improper behavior occurs,
employees can report to their supervisors or
relevant departments, or report problems to the
Board through letters, emails, or hotlines. After
verifying the authenticity of the complaint, the
issue is promptly addressed according to the
established procedures.
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Occupational Health & Safety

The Group attaches great importance to
occupational health and safety of employees
and strictly adheres to internal regulations such
as the Safety Policy. We consider it our primary
responsibility to ensure the physical and mental
well-being of both management and employees,
and to provide a comfortable and safe working
environment. We integrate health and safety
into all aspects of our operations, working
collaboratively to create a “zero-accident”
workplace.

For occupational health and safety, the Group has
developed Safety Policy, which outlines its scope
and implementation steps. We allocate resources
for reasonable safety facilities, conduct regular
work risk assessments, and organise multiple
employee safety training sessions and lectures.
These efforts help to enhance employees’
awareness of their health and safety, and help
collectively achieve the goal of “zero accidents,
zero injuries”.

To implement and ensure the management
of employee health and safety, the Group has
established a Safety Committee composed of
the General Manager, Administrative Manager,
and representatives from various departments.
We have set up a specific organisational
structure to clearly define the key personnel and
responsibilities for safety, jointly managing the
safety management system. The division of safety
work responsibilities is as follows. The General
Manager takes the overall responsibility for safety
management; the Administrative Manager, in
collaboration with the Production Department,
focuses on workplace safety management, and
formulates annual safety plans with targets
and strategies; the Safety Coordinator, in
communication with the management and
frontline workers, conducts regular safety
inspections, and builds a better two-way
communication bridge for safety.
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Supervising the implementation of the safety
management system is a necessary means
to ensure implementation of policies. We
convene two Safety Committee meetings
annually to comprehensively review and verify
various safety policies, demonstrating the
specific measures required to address health
and safety issues and making corresponding
commitments. To better assess and quantify
the results of safety management, we have
established Key Performance Indicators (“KPIs”)
for occupational health and safety, continuously
monitoring and improving safety management
performance. Regarding the management of
the Safety Committee, we conduct annual
reviews of the safety organisational structure
and the responsibilities of each person in charge
of occupational health and safety, ensuring
transparency and effectiveness in management.

BE  -ERELIHESE

BB 20 2 PR A0 1A R AR BUSR VM v 6 B T
B BERMEMAMMAKLELZEG@® > 2
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p
Manage and monitor the
safety and health system

| EE MBS S R RAR A

N
General Manager
Ao e

x
Formulate an annual safety plan

with targets and strategies Manager
A A B 5 At ) AT B B
| R

Administration

Safety Committee Structure and its Responsibility

LE LRI R E(CHE
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The Group emphasises the quality of safety AL E L2 BVE & o E WHEAT R AR R
management and regularly conducts internal and Ao PP A B ) R R 2 4 L I B i A A
external assessments. The management identifies  SEBi » AR 45 50 5 ] J3E 415 28 B0t A HE &2 22 1 it » S HH
relevant safety risks, conducts investigations ML 2FEERE - H  FF/)\FE > RMNEH
of accident cases, and provides guidance on BHBCE L LR R EEE 2R RETA
implementing corresponding safety measures ROME ~ R RO AN AT SR A > W R R A R R
according to relevant regulations. This process [CISPROS | = 8 B xE FnSMER T4l 45 R B v 3% T
generates corresponding safety review reports. UK » GHASOEZER > DAL Ry BERR i) T —4F
Since 2008, we have invited the Occupational AT Bl it ) S T H R SE R ] o BRSO b A R
Safety and Health Council (“OSHC”) to conduct 8% » B %R b 75 1 B4 2 g i 40 B e
annual reviews of the Group’s safety management 7k » DAHECRA MR 245 7L o

system for effectiveness, efficiency, and

reliability. We continuously improve and enhance

our management level based on the results

of Continual Improvement Safety Programme

Recognition of System (“CISPROS”) Level

Three requirements and external evaluations,

identifying areas for improvement and using

them as a basis to develop the next year’s

action plan and expected completion timeline.

In addition to document checks and physical

verifications, the review process also includes

interviews with management and frontline staff to

ensure effective safety management.

For this year, we have developed action plans  AN4EFE > FAM T il & o35 A 0 22 2 BOR ~ JekE4
to improve our safety policies, personnel A~ BRI ) Ao Al R R BR A AT B 7 8 o SR
composition, training plans, and other issues il B 2RI T

related to safety. The safety measures are as

follows:

Strict monitoring of hazardous chemicals: Formulate chemical usage rules in accordance with the Factories and Industrial
Undertakings (Dangerous Substances) Regulations. Permits are required for the storage of hazardous chemicals, and

employees are onlg/ allowed to work after receiving proper safety training. ‘
e 5 B 0L TR e Rbh L) W DL IS 500 LI » B ol 5 7 R O HE T

A N B 5ERE R H R T 4 A b

Government-compliant certified operating equipment: Conduct risk assessments on work facility equipment with reference to
laws and regulations and establish appropriate safety procedures and control measures.

BOR 8 AR+ 2 IR Rk 3 T R i 0 2 A Il sl B 5 2 A 45 A

Provision of personal protective equipment and regular inspection and training: Conduct regular safety training programs and
check the effectiveness of personal protective equipment training. Review training content in a timely manner to ensure
the correct use of protective equipment and machine operation.

AR 19 0 25 0 0 D00 L ¢ T BT R 2 o SO A I e A R 1 SR,

Post equipment operation guidelines in prominent locations: Post warnings such as "Wearing noise-proof earmuffs" to remind
operators to pay attention to dangerous machinery, equipment, and equipment safety.

SRR o SR I A SR AR 51 = RN TR B W L ) S o > DAPRIRBRAE N e b b ay - el > SEmifesii s -

Require valid identification before work: In cases where permits or training certificates are lost, employees are required to submit
an application for reissuance of the permit before they can begin their duties.

BT EPERG SO RGR I BREF AT SR E RN > B T RE Al 8 v e a2 s e ki o
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To the best of our knowledge, the Group has
not violated any laws or regulations™ that have
a significant impact on the Group relating to
creation of a safe working environment and
protecting employees from occupational hazards.
There were no incidents of work-related injury
accidents, and there were no person days lost
due to injuries during the year under review.
Over the preceding three years, including the
reporting year, the Group did not record any
cases involving work-related fatalities.

Safety Training

To prevent safety-related accidents and create
a “zero accident” workplace, our employees
are required to adhere to appropriate safety
guidelines. To achieve this, we provide mandatory
safety training to our employees. At the beginning
of each year, we collect training needs from each
department and develop specialised training
programs for different categories. The specific
actions we take are as follows:

BIE - tERERWE

WRBRAM P > A 45 ] Sl 06 0 AT e A R A 0 A 4 T
VEBRBE R AR e H 0 % Bk o8 fa i LB AR A K
SRR AR R o R AR B AR TR
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e Collect training needs from employees in different departments.

* Analyse and develop specialised training plans, including department information, training
content, planned completion month, and actual completion time.

o ST A OESE IR ¢+ EARERFTEORE BRI - HESE T I R AR B T R S R R

® The Supervising Department designates responsible personnel for training allocation,
ensuring that the training plan is implemented in a systematic, orderly, and efficient manner.

o EFHIRE AT IA WA TN - A8 - ARF - FR TR I

extinguishers.

¢ All departments receive routine training, including fire safety, fire drills, and the use of fire

o AR PRS2 B B > BRI B2 A (6L 45 B AR B IR AR B 1)

® The specialised training plan is implemented in an orderly manner according to the established

schedule.

o MR A2 B SRR R B AL > A

The Group also provides specific training on
handling hazardous materials, machinery, and
implementing safety measures. The training results
are tracked through assessment forms filled out by
participants and evaluated by trainers to achieve
the safety goal of “zero accidents, zero injuries.”

” Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
health and safety related laws and regulations.

SR [ 5 B2 A3k B S O B A B e ~ AR > DA RERI
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Z AT RE Y B R 2IGINAR > HBIER
b~ ZZEGINREHR -

” A B R BB > 052 B H R

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4£#

79



80

Environmental, Social and Governance Report

B ERELIHSE

The specific training contents include:

KN AT

Provide training related to the operation and use of cranes and boom trucks,
handling of chemical substances, safety and operation guidelines for elevated

PO GRS TR A R R A B > AL EREL - AR A S RAE R 51 DA AR B
Provide training and safety operation guidelines related to the safe use of

A B % 220 OO B Y Bl S & A R 5155 9

Production
Department
platforms, as well as personal protective equipment.
A T 1Y
e L 2
Warehouse
forklifts.
1501
Office Provide training on risk assessment during work.
A S BT R AR ) B B A 4 3

In order to enhance employees’ awareness of
safety issues, we regularly organise health and
safety seminars, requiring relevant employees
to participate. This ensures that employees have
a full understanding of safety hazards and can
promptly address any safety issues that exist in
various departments. Our goal is to ensure the
health and safety of our employees and create a
high-quality working environment. This year, the
total safety training hours for employees reached
73 hours, with a total of 54 employees completing
the relevant safety training.

Training & Development

The Group considers employee development
and training as an important component of its
development strategy. We have formulated and
implemented a series of development training
programs that are in line with the Group’s
development goals. These programs aim to
enhance abilities and qualities of our employees,
strengthen the core competitiveness, and lay the
foundation for sustainable development.

Fy 2R TR B 4 A P LR L AN
FRI AR SR A > BORMBEE 2 - e
¥R 2R ER50 1 3 K g i g 45 38 A7 A2
2R R o PRIEIR B RER 2 > FT7 BRI A
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We have established internal specialised training
programs. Newly hired employees undergo a
one-week orientation training and guidance
program, with training goals, content, and
outcomes set based on job requirements and
skills. For professional talents, we focus on skill
enhancement by offering skill training courses,
and the training results are rigorously evaluated
by instructors to assess employees’ training
achievements. We ensure the effectiveness
of each training program by using internal
assessment forms to evaluate the visibility of all
learning outcomes.

BE  -ERELIHESE

B A 3 3 A SR S A G o B AR B A IR A
31— F B NI S SR A > S AR 4 e o SR X B B
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G7 color management

G7EN | R4 B

Online color training

TEARBR A

Chemicals usage guidance

LB b i FH 45 25

Learn the principles and
applications of G7,
employees must pass the
G7 specialised exam
before they can be
employed to their

Complete the online
color test and achieve
a good performance.

SERTEARB AN > il
i B A3 A A SR T 2
REF| Wk DL B

Identify the colors, types,
changes, and usage
scenarios of different
chemicals, and employee
training results should
be above average.

positions.

o TRGTHYEBLKHER >
(R B ME 00 G 7 JE % 5t
®Ahe LA

o MR A AL ER A
B~ - L R
Bkt > BrA R Bl
KR THEIER M hr L B

Examples of training program cases

A2 it BIFE B
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During the year, the total training hours of all
employees of the Group reached 95 hours, with a
training coverage rate of 82.4%, and the average
training time per employee was 1.70 hours.

Average training hours per employee by gender

(hours/person)
Foe Ak R B 43 A B T35 32 90 RF
(N AIR)
2.50 2.23
2.00
1.50 1.08
1.00
0.50
0.00
m Male Female
Pitus 2tk

AR s AR [ A RA0E B Y AR I R O 95 /N IRE 5 B
IR 82.4% > NGRS 1,70/ o

Average training hours per employee by position

(hours/person)
TR RE B 23 08 B T35 32 9 8
(PERIAIR)
2.00 1.75
150 1.38
1.00
0.50
0.00

m Managerial Staff General Staff
B g —ET
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Social Performance Data Summary

Workforce Demographics
Total Headcount

By Geographical Distribution

Hong Kong
Others

By Age

30 or below
31-50

Above 50

By Gender
Male

Female

By Employment Type
Full time

Part time

By Position
Managerial staff
General staff
Employee Turnover Rate
Total

By Age

30 or below
31-50

Above 50

By Gender
Male

Female
Employee New Hire Rate
Total

By Age

30 or below
31-50

Above 50

By Gender

Male
Female

-

S8 h Bt
MO

T Hb A e
i

HAth
AR By 5y
30 PA T
31-505%
505 PA b
i 1 3 43
5B

‘S

50 528000 2 7y

2k

FEHk
FERk A 2 43
HHAHR
—E T
BTHREX
b

FiAE Byl
30K PA T
31-505%
50i% PA |
Fie i # 4y
5

4

BT ARRR

Al

FAE Byl oy
30 PA T
31-505%
50 DA b
e 3 43

%
%

H- T AV ZE

FY2022

TR

14
65

13.9%
200.0%
19.4%
4.8%

9.3%
19.4%

12.7%
100.0%

13.9%
9.5%

11.6%
13.9%

FY2023
e S L K 3

14
54

17.7%
9.1%
22.9%

16.2%
19.4%

1.5%
0.0%
2.9%

0.0%
3.2%
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FY2022 FY2023
SRR

R HE

Development and Training B BRI

(Total training hours) (BRI e )
By Gender Er3aiF P
Male 9 100 67
Female % 47 28
By Position /3104 g
Managerial Staff HHAR 14 1
General Staff —E T 133" 84
Development and Training B BRI

(Percentage of employees trained) (Z DR B & 4 1)
By Gender Er3iiF P
Male % 100% 81%
Female % 100% 84%
By Position /3104 g
Managerial Staff HHAR 100% 57%
General Staff —f BT 100% 89%
Health and Safety il e Bl 2 2
Work-related incident (case) TEER(HR) 0 0
Lost days due to work-related injury P TAGHR R AR H ¥ 0 0
Work-related fatalities FSERIABYN ¢ 0 0
Supply Chain Management M G4 L

(Total number of suppliers) (3% v 48 )
By Region 352 3 [ ) 3
Hong Kong iR 60 133
Other regions Al o 0 1
Community 2N
Donation (HKD) sk (L) 21,780 -

" R oERT

s The report data has been revised
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RESPONSIBLE PRODUCTS

We aim for excellence in our operations and
production process to offer high-quality products
that meet the regulatory provisions, industry
standards, and our customers’ expectations. To
improve the quality and responsibility of our
products, we have implemented several policies
and processes.

Upholding the Highest Quality Standard

The Group is committed to ensuring product
quality and has consistently adhered to high-
quality standards. By strictly following the
quality management system defined in the
quality manual, the Group ensures compliance
with all relevant laws," regulations and
internal policies in its operations. The Group
regularly provides quality control training to
its employees and evaluates its effectiveness to
ensure that employees are up-to-date with the
latest knowledge and have a comprehensive
understanding of quality control. In addition, the
Group has developed specific quality control
guidelines for various production processes,
such as personnel in charge, the use of printing
equipment, product development, inspection,
storage, packaging, and delivery standards.

The Group conducts regular internal assessments
of product quality to ensure that its quality
management system complies with ISO standards
and remains effective. To continuously identify
and take appropriate measures for areas that
require improvement, the Group conducts
regular evaluations of quality control, internal
and external communication, procurement, and
training, among other aspects.

1 Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
product quality related laws and regulations
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Laws and Regulations Compliance ¥t B ¥ 83551

e The Sales of Goods Ordinance of Hong Kong

(& A B E D)

e The Consumer Product Safety Improvement Act (“CPSIA”) of the US

S TH # i K 2 BOEER) (CPSIA)

e Relevant trading, custom and excise ordinances in respective countries

AR BB B 5 ~ BB T e Bl

International Qualifications B F% % &

e Quality Management: ISO 9001:2015 Quality Management System

BUEATEEL: 1SO9001:201 52 A5 B R i
e Trim Supplier Qualification Programme

T3k 1 e A% it )

e The requirement of the apparel industry: Achievement Award of the Trim Supplier Qualification

Programme

Ml e SE SR+ iDLt R vl S A Bl 38 R 2

e Printing proficiency: G7 Master Facility qualification

ERRIPERE ¢ G7 s8I KRS REAK-F

Quality Compliance
HAGH

Quality Control

The Group strictly monitors product quality
throughout the entire printing process,
conducting detailed inspections before,
during and after printing. Prior to printing, we
inspect the content and quality of the product
and inspect products delivered by external
contractors before packaging.

The Group adopts and complies with strict
inspection and examination procedures to ensure
that raw materials, semi-finished products, and
final products meet the highest quality standards.
In the event of non-compliance, the Group
immediately launches a thorough investigation
and takes appropriate measures to prevent similar
situations from occurring again.

P

7SR [ 2 R M B AR > S D R S0 2
A E BB AT AR AT o BRI AT o BAM 3 A Y ED R
WA SR BB AT IR AT o A B4 AT S A R A2 AT Y
B AEATIRA o

7SR [ PR IO T8 ST v AR B AR AR R DA AT
REE R IR R ~ 22 1 il % doe A% 78 o 329 A 5 B v O L
AR o — BB GBI OL > ACSE M5# 5 B e B
FEE A > S PRIBCHT MBS > 7 1 AU D0 1 U 3%
A o
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Before the start of the inspection, the
Administrative and Information Technology
Departments of the Group are responsible for
collecting relevant data to fully understand
the latest laws, regulations, requirements,
and customer expectations. The subsequent
inspections are based on this information. For
products that fail the inspection, the Group
makes improvements and conducts retesting.

Product testing mainly focuses on the integrity
and consistency of new paper, ink, and other
materials. In order to maintain sample quality
stability and ensure the effectiveness of testing.
Samples used for product testing are stored at
a specific temperature, humidity, and storage
periods according to relevant requirements. For
new materials, we conduct quality testing through
sampling, and label, record, and isolate products
that fail the testing. To ensure the authenticity
and effectiveness of the test results, the Group
commissions third-party organisations to conduct
product testing, and in the event of problematic
products, the Group takes immediate corrective
actions.

The Group has established procedures for
handling non-compliant products, clearly
defining the relevant processing procedure
and methods. After the responsible department
identifies and distinguishes non-compliant
products, the Production Department takes
further measures. If non-compliant FSC™
products are delivered to customers, the Group
provides feedback to the customer within three
working days and immediately notifies the
certification body.
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Labelling

Correct labelling is crucial for maintaining
product quality and reputation of the Group.
Therefore, the Group uses FSC™ labels only on
products that comply with FSC™ requirements
and after obtaining approval from external
certification bodies. To prevent non-compliant
products with false FSC™ labels from entering
the market, the Group follows the guidance
on suspension of trading and timely recalls of
non-compliant products when such cases are
discovered.

During the year, the Group did not have any cases
of violation of laws and regulations related to
health and safety, labelling, or privacy of products
and services. Also there were no product recalls
due to product or health and safety issues. Our
operations do not involve advertising related
activities and these have no significant impact on
the Group.

Customer Satisfaction

In order to have comprehensive understanding
of customer satisfaction, the Group regularly
conducts satisfaction surveys with customers on
various aspects such as product quality, service
quality, communication, and efficiency, so as to
collect customer feedback. For any instances
of dissatisfaction, the Group handles them
carefully according to the Customer Complaint
Procedure to prevent similar situations from
happening again. In response to customer
complaints, the Group conducts investigations
and takes appropriate measures to address the
issues. During the handling process, the Group
maintains communication with the customer and
ultimately provides a satisfactory response. All
customer complaints and product returns cases
are recorded for future review.

During the year, the Group did not have any
product recalls due to safety and health reasons
and did not receive any formal complaints
regarding products and services.
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Intellectual Property Rights and Customer Privacy

The Group respects and protects intellectual
property rights (“IPRs”) of original works. In
accordance with relevant laws and regulations®,
the Group ensures that the information provided
by customers does not infringe copy rights of
others works. For the printed materials produced
by the Group, trademarks are used only with the
customer’s consent to avoid any infringement of
intellectual property rights.

Regarding customer privacy, the Group adheres
to provisions specified in a set of documents and
data control procedures for protecting customer
data. All relevant confidential documents are
centrally managed by The Document Control
Centre, which is responsible for monitoring
copying and distribution of original documents.
During the year, the Group was not aware of
any violations of laws and regulations regarding
intellectual property rights and customer privacy.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

The Group places high importance on supply
chain management and is committed to
enhancing brand quality through effective supply
chain management. Following the supplier
selection and evaluation criteria outlined in
the ISO 9001:2015 quality management system,
we manage the Group’s entire supply chain.
Evaluation factors include, but are not limited to,
operational management, quality management,
production capacity, health and safety
performance, environmental management, and
social responsibility. According to the relevant
requirements, the Group conducts regular
reviews of suppliers. Additionally, the Group
closely monitors suppliers to ensure they hold
valid and qualified certification. During the year,
the Group conducted a total of 134 reviews and
evaluations of suppliers.

” Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
intellectual property related laws and regulations.
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To maximise the quality of raw materials
and effectiveness of the supplier selection
process, we strictly adhere to procurement
procedures outlined in the operations manual.
We continuously monitor supplier production
processes, environmental protection, and
social responsibility performance to identify
potential risks and mitigate any negative impacts.
These guidelines serve as the standard for raw
material procurement and supplier selection. All
procurement requests require approval from the
procurement manager, and thorough inspections
are conducted of purchased raw materials before
storage.

FSC™ Certified Products

To ensure procurement aligns with green,
ethical, and sustainable principles, the Group’s
printing products are made using materials
(paper) certified by FSC™. We fully comply with
the FSC™ procurement control procedures to
ensure that suppliers certified by FSC™ meet
FSC™ requirements. Based on this, we prioritise
suppliers with better reputation, capabilities,
and experience to maintain the quality of FSC™
certified products procured. We provide FSC™
training to employees to ensure they have a
thorough understanding of FSC™ procurement
control standards. To properly handle FSC™
certified paper, we handle it separately from non-
FSC™ certified paper to avoid any mixing.

ANTI-CORRUPTION

The Group ensures compliance with applicable
laws,'® regulations and industry standards in all
business activities, prioritising honesty, integrity
and strict ethical standards. We are committed
to preventing corruption and strictly adhere to
internal guidelines that prohibit bribery, fraud
and money laundering, as outlined in our Internal
Controls and Operations Manual, to ensure
the legality and transparency of our business
activities.

1 Please refer to the section headed Laws and Regulations for
anti-corruption-related laws and regulations.
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Managers and supervisors are responsible
for overseeing daily operations to ensure
compliance with legal requirements and internal
anti-corruption policies. They ensure that all
relevant employees are aware of internal policies
and remind the management committee or
relevant departments to be vigilant against any
potential corruption threats. During this year,
our senior management team attended the
“Integrity Management Role of Directors and
Senior Executives of Listed Companies” seminar
organized by the Hong Kong Independent
Commission Against Corruption (“ICAC").
Directors and executives were provided with
training materials by the ICAC to enhance their
awareness of integrity and risk. We will continue
to provide relevant training and support to the
Group’s management and other employees.

During the year, the Group was not aware of
any significant violations of relevant laws and
regulations on bribery, extortion, fraud, and
money laundering that could have had a major
impact on the Group. The Group has not been
involved in any corruption cases during the year.

Whistleblowing Policy

We have implemented a strict whistle-blower
policy to enable employees to express concerns
and report potential violations. We provide
multiple channels for reporting, including written
reports, formal meetings with protected reporting
coordinators, dedicated reporting hotlines
and email. We have established confidentiality
measures to protect the identity of whistle-
blowers from being disclosed and to prevent
retaliation or persecution. Additionally, relevant
whistle-blower information is securely encrypted
to prevent unauthorised access.
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Senior Management

AR e

)
)

Corruption ("ICAC").
2N FRIBC A B E I 1 R 245 Bl

and policies.

e Attending anti-corruption training conducted by the Independent Commission Against

e Pay attention to changes of anti-corruption laws and regulations, anti-corruption programmes

VIR £33 H L ~ [ 205 B BB )

Managers and Supervisors

KB 48

—

BB B VR AT A

e Overseeing subordinates’ business conduct.

e Supervising proper execution of daily operations and business processes to ensure lawful compliance.
BB H R TR B R M 25 AT > RGBT
* Raising suggestions to the management or relevant departments to improve procedures and practices.

1) 7 L g s 8 P 908 Y RS R B L st

General Staff
HEE T

]
)

LY 4 T L T e A R B SR
T A 4 B R V) B8 AT A

e Complying with the Internal Control and Operational Manual and other anti-corruption policies.

® Reporting suspicious misbehavior to the Group.

Anti-corruption Governance Framework

RETTEIGRHE

ENGAGING IN PUBLIC WELFARE

The Group has always been committed to
contributing to sustainable development of the
community. We actively participate in various
community activities to promote environmental
well-being and healthcare, gradually
incorporating the needs of the community into
our corporate development strategy.
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Striving for Environmental Wellbeing

Companies have a responsibility to contribute to
environmental protection, promote sustainable
development, and continue to actively advocate
for a low-carbon lifestyle. During this year,
we participated in the No Air Con Night 2022
event organised by Green Sense, aiming to
raise awareness among employees and the
public about the environmental impact of air
conditioning usage and reduce carbon emissions
from our daily operations.

We actively support the World Wildlife Fund’s
Earth Hour campaign, advocating and guiding
sustainable lifestyles to protect irreplaceable
natural wetlands. Through participating in such
activities, we hope to further raise awareness
among employees and the public about
environmental protection and encourage them
to implement more eco-friendly actions in
their daily lives, dedicating efforts to reduce
unnecessary energy consumption.

REXBHREEREDEMR—
15 COMMITTED TO WWF'S EARTH HOUR

Healthcare

This year, we participated in the Love Teeth Day
event organised by the Hong Kong Community
Chest, the Hong Kong Dental Association, and the
Oral Health Education division of the Department
of Health. Our employees collectively raised
HKD1,620 for this event, providing financial
support to the Hong Kong Community Chest to
offer oral health services to residents in need.
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LAWS AND REGULATIONS B R

The Group ensures strict compliance with all AR 05 008 ) 2 B BB ERBE ~ Ak Ko AR AH B BOR
relevant laws and regulations by establishing B > e DR e b 338~ B A A R SR S L - TR
and implementing environmental, social, and WHRERE RN

governance policies and measures. The list of

applicable laws and regulations is as follows:

Applicable Laws and Regulations Section/Remarks
2T B e i
e Air Pollution Control Ordinance ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
o CEEISRAE R BB
e Air Pollution Control Ordinance (Volatile
Emissions Organic Compounds Regulations)
ik o CERFBAREHIGED) GRS AL)
e Water Pollution Control Ordinance
o ORI RATHIBRSI)
e  Waste Disposal Ordinance
o (MR EIRG)
e Employees’ Compensation Ordinance Labour Practices
. <Eéﬁt§ﬁ%1ﬂ> i AL
Employment and Labour : 2%%?&%>m Ordinance
%%%g;#ﬂ e Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
o (AR HIBRG]
e Minimum Wage Ordinance
o (BRI HEHBD
e  Factories and Industrial Undertakings Occupational Health & Safety
Ordinance gl R B &
o (IR IR AR
&%‘g%’g Safety e  Fire Safety Ordinance
N o (IHBIR 2B
e Occupational Safety & Healthy Ordinance
o (WL A R IRERRGEB)
e Copyright Ordinance Intellectual Property Rights and
. CRRREAGR A1) Customer Privacy
HERERE B % PR RE
e  Trademarks Ordinance Upholdm the Highest Quality Standard
o HRARA) 5 d oy AR
Product Responsibility Sale of Goods Ordinance of Hon
. g Kong
RN o THECE TR
e The Consumer Product Safety Improvement
Act (“CPSIA”) of the US
o SRECIHE MK EUOEHE) (T CPSIA )
e Relevant trading, custom and excise ordinances
in respective countries
o MBABIZ T 5 - W0 BIH LBk
Anti-Corruption e Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong ~ ANTI-CORRUPTION
BTG o AU BT IR RG] REG
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HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX

T LB - A FHRAARY]

General
Disclosure
and KPls
— R K HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
L EEie TR TR - A R AT Bl il ik
Governance Structure
IR
General A statement from the board containing the following elements: Board Statement
Disclosure (i) adisclosure of the board’s oversight of ESG issues; HRERY
— itk % (i)  the board’s ESG management approach and strategy, including the process used to evaluate,
prioritise and manage material ESG-related issues (including risks to the issuer’s businesses);
and
(iii) how the board reviews progress against ESG-related goals and targets with an explanation of
how they relate to the issuer’s businesses.
HAEF RN EY > H WA TN :
() DEEHEHEHRS - HARERE TN
(i) EHEABEE - AL e RATRAT By 8 RN > WARAEA - BRAHRI AT B R A EREE - A R AT
TR B L (B AR AT A SRR IR IR 5
(i) HHEMPTIRBSE AL KRR B AR EHER > ARSI ] BB AT AT A7 B o
Reporting Principles
BE R
General A describe of, or an explanation on, the application of the following Reporting Principles in the | Reporting Boundary and
Disclosure preparation of the ESG report: Scope
— B % (a) Materiality: The ESG report should disclose: (i) the process to identify and the criteria for the | it il & EH
selection of material ESG factors; (ii) if a stakeholder engagement is conducted, a description
of significant stakeholders identified, and the process and results of the issuer’s stakeholder
engagement.
(b) Quantitative: Information on the standards, methodologies, assumptions and/or calculation
tools used and source of conversion factors used, for the reporting of emissions/energy
consumption(where applicable) should be disclosed.
(c) Consistency: The issuer should disclose in the ESG report any changes to the methods or
KPIs used, or any other relevant factors that affect a meaningful comparison.
A S ARREAE AT IR ~ A& AT W (T R 5 RE A
(@)  TEEEHE : BUBE - ALE ARG ENEE ¢ ()BT - A BRI R MR SR R SR
HAER )W BAT N THEATHRONE 2 5L > TRl A T SRR 022 OB SR AT A HF 0 2 SR b
RAR
(b) A : A7 B RES R REIRAEIT Gl i) B O REE ~ i ~ MRS T LR - D)
T 5 4 e R R A A T 45 o
(©  —BebE : BT AMETEERBE ~ M@ RS BUBR AT 7 kB AR BRI B () AT
HAEEHERLRAHEAREE -
Reporting Boundary
WS
General A narrative explaining the reporting boundaries of the ESG report and describing the process used| Reporting Boundary and
Disclosure to identify which entities or operations are included in the ESG report. If there is a change in the | Scope
— Bt % scope, the issuer should explain the difference and reason for the change. ﬁ%ﬁl&@ﬁ
FREEERYE - M AR M ER AR &Vﬁﬁk%@ﬁ“%?ﬁ%ﬁ*ﬁ]\fm% A R RS 1R
T o IR P > BT AR R Z JE SR B R -
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b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.

Note: Air emissions include NO,, SO,, and other pollutants regulated under national laws and

regulations.

Greenhouse gases include carbon dioxide, methane, nitrous oxide, hydrofluorocarbons,
perfluorocarbons and sulphur hexafluoride.

Hazardous wastes are those defined by national regulations.

— R

7 BB SR B 2 SRR ~ r0 K B S ~ A SR RS A A Y

a) B R

by HETHBT A TR BB RS LR -

b BERERBAE R A - WA BRI AR R R s el -

RS LS R - e SRR ERBLG Y - 2B R AR -
HE BRI BT RS

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PSSR BB » A RIS A/ i

A. Environmental

A. 55

Aspect At: General Disclosure ENVIRONMENTAL
Emissions Information on: PROTECTION
JEiA1 : HEicH a) the policies; and B IR#E

KPI A1.1 The types of emissions and the respective emissions data. Air Emissions;
LE HECTRER S A B Bt Environmental Performance
AL Data Summary
ZERHRML 5
RSO R
KPI A1.2 Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2) greenhouse gas emissions (in GHG Emissions;
B AR tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | Environmental Performance
A2 per facility). Data Summary
FLA% (A1) AR 2 (WP 2) L 2 SR B 2 (DA 30 T CHR ) 4 B A g | I SRR 5
AR - I - RSO R R
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, intensity | Effluent & Waste;
LE (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Environmental Performance
#HifA1L3 o A AT S A (AT ) e CHi ) 6 6 Cm AR B BRLAS: ~ BOERRET | Data Summary
) o 5K KB 5
RSO R R
KPIA1.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, where appropriate, Effluent & Waste;
L E intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per facility). Environmental Performance
HiFiAL4 o 7 A A e A (DAMEGRT ) B CHB ) 6 6 Com AR B BRLAS: ~ ROECRRERT | Data Summary
) o 5K BB 5
BRI
KPI A1.5 Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. ENVIRONMENTAL
LS HRTAT SRR B R A ke B A H AT IR IR P B PROTECTION
#iBRA15 B
KPI A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous wastes are handled, and a Effluent & Waste
B s description of reduction target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. 5K R
#i#AL6 e AT S TR T 8% o Bt o AT S A R R R B 2 A
R o
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PR BRER B TR - @ B AT I B il ik
Aspect A2: General Disclosure Energy Management
Use of Resources Policies on efficient use of resources, including energy, water and other raw materials. AR
JETRiA2 : BRI Note: Resources may be used in production, in storage, transportation, in buildings, electronic | Resource Consumption
equipment, etc. HRFE
— e
AR U (BLIE AU ~ Ak B AR BIBOR -
b PRI - G - T BT RS
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) Energy Management;
BB BR in total (kWh in ‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per Environmental Performance
HEEA2.1 facility). Data Summary
FAU A B SR R AR (R ~ S ARE R (AT T RORHAT) o | eURAT L
JE (A B B ~ AR BB
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, | Water; Environmental
B S per facility). Performance Data Summary
#iEiA2.2 AREK BT L (o DA B SRLANE ~ RO T 5) o TKER 5
RSO R
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve Energy Management
L E them. A
#HHEA2.3 ALY 37 REJRBE A P I i B 2 AR 25 B
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing water that is fit for Water
B g purpose, water efficiency target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them. KB
#ikiA2.4 e KT P KU WU AT R s D B 9 AT S K B R S RE BB 2
JITSRBUHY 5 55 -
KPI A2.5 Total packaging materials used for finished products (in tonnes) and, if Packaging Material;
L E applicable, with reference to per unit produced. Environmental Performance
#iFiA2.5 SR T R R AR (DA B (i ) 2 A WA Data Summary
WL
RSO R
Aspect A3: General Disclosure Environmental Conservation
The Environment Policies on minimising the issuers’ significant impact on the environment and natural resources. | 4 fEERSE{R
and Natural — ek %
Resources RIS T N S SRIE R A U8 1R B BORE
FAIGIA3 : . KPI' A3.1 Description of the significant impacts of activities on the environment and Environmental Conservation
SRR NG L i natural resources and the actions taken to manage them. HEREBIE IR
#EiA3.1 T T B B B R AR R T O R CORBUE LA B B AT
Aspect Ad: General Disclosure Climate Change
Climate Change Policies on identification and mitigation of significant climate-related issues which have impacted, | %21k
JEViA4 : FEEML | and those which may impact, the issuer.

— s

ol T 3 LA T T AT N e B TR SRR AT B S BB

KPI A4.1 Description of the significant climate-related issues which have impacted, and | Climate Change
LE e those which may impact, the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them. s 414
HHEAd.1 0 ELA B v RE T B BT AR A SR KSR I 8 RIEHATE) -
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issuer relating to providing a safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

KPls HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PR BRER BT BRI ~ @ AT I Bl il ik
B. Social
B.AL €
Aspect B1: General Disclosure Employee Rights and Welfare;
Employment Information on: Labour Practices
JEEiB1 : I a) the policies; and HTHRERSBLER 5 DR A
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working hours, rest
periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
— i
HEAHI R ~ W RET ~ TAERRY - BN~ PEE - Zoolt - B RILAAHB BRI -
a) BURs R
b) BT AT B MR RS E R -
KPI B1.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type (for example, full- or parttime), Employee Profile; Social
BB ATR age group and geographical region. Performance Data Summary
#EiB1.1 TR ~ TR (2 sk ~ 47 B ALRI R b IR 30 73 110 O LAY HTHEN 5
A SRR
KPI B1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and geographical region. Employee Profile; Social
B A8 TRk ~ A7 B AL B I 343 0 0 LR 2R HE 2K o Performance Data Summary
#iBiB1.2 BTG 5
GiREE P T E
Aspect B2: General Disclosure Occupational Health & Safety
Health and Safety | Information on: L ES R e
JEWiB2 a) the policies; and
BB % 2 b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the

— R
A TR % 2 ARSI ORI R B R A
a) BURs R
b)  RSPEIFAT A TR B Bk RO R -
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred in each of the past three Occupational Health &
BB ATR years including the reporting year. Safety; Social Performance
#1821 % =4 (RAR MERAE ) 4 I LSO AR L3R o Data Summary
eSS
A B R
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. Occupational Health &
B AR HLAGHETAEA Y Safety; Social Performance
HkiB2.2 Data Summary
L Ed i3 i e
A BRI R
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety measures adopted, how they are | Occupational Health & Safety
BB AB implemented and monitored. Wt R 2
#1823 LT R A R I B 2 M > DA BRI BR BT R B s
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BE  -ERELIHESE

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks
PR BRER B TR - @ B AT I B il ik
Aspect B3: General Disclosure Training & Development
Developmentand | Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and skills for discharging duties at work. Description| 35 #ll 5 % J&
Training of training activities.
J&iB3 : Note: Training refers to vocational training. It may include internal and external courses paid by
BRI the employer.
— R R
A BHARTHE SRAT TARRRE Ak B B BRI o SR B -
ik SRR o JUNT AR iR 0 20 P RO A
KPI B3.1 The percentage of employees trained by gender and employee category (e.g. Training & Development;
L senior management, middle management). Social Performance Data
#HHB3.1 R B AR SO (R A LG ~ o AR B E) B 2R R E AL Summary
BRBNE 5
MBI
KPI B3.2 The average training hours completed per employee by gender and employee | Training & Development;
B g category. Social Performance Data
#iB3.2 TR AR SRR > 44 R HSERZ DN T I Summary
RN 5
MR R
Aspect B4: General Disclosure Labour Practices
Labour Standards Information on: TR
JE B4 : &% 1. HEH a) the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to prevention of child and forced labour.
— Bt
A7 B B3 11 TSR 55 T
a) B K
b)  REFHBT A TR BB EH A LR -
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment practices to avoid child and Labour Practices
L b forced labour. TR
#iiB4.1 SRR I REL ) ) DA 4 T A5 T
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices when discovered. Labour Practices
L L AT SR BUIL N B B R DLDT R B B8 o T 1
#F%B4.2
Aspect B5: General Disclosure SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
Supply Chain Policies on managing environmental and social risks of the supply chain Bemesg e
Management — ik
JEWiB5 : A L G BRI T e B o
Brrs sy KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
WA | B R - B
$HEEB5.1 Social Performance Data
Summary
AR
KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging suppliers, number of suppliers where | SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
[ B the practices are being implemented, how they are implemented and monitored. | fE G457
#82B5.2 AT BRI P B ERG R B > SR BT BRI B R e~ DU B
T RES T -
KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify environmental and social risks along | SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
BB A8 the supply chain, and how they are implemented and monitored. Bemeses e
##iB5.3 g?ﬂiﬁEﬁé‘&ﬂﬂﬁ%ﬂﬁﬁé@@%ﬁﬁﬂ@%ﬁ&ﬁ@!ﬁFﬁﬁﬁfﬁfﬁl » DU BT B BT
KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote environmentally preferable products | SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT
BB A and services when selecting suppliers, and how they are implemented and Bemesey B
$ikiB5.4 monitored.
T DR M D0 0 20 PRV SRR o B IR AL DA BT R B0 ¥
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KPIs
W BOR

HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements
T2 PRARBE ~ 6 AT I B

Section/Remarks

Wi/ ik

Aspect B6:
Product
Responsibility

JEWiB6 : 7 AL

General Disclosure

Information on:

a) the policies; and

b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products
and services provided and methods of redress.

Upholding the Highest
Standards
BRI o B R

JEWiB7 : AT

a) the policies; and
b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the issuer
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

— R

1B P4 B A B MBS AR B % 2 ~ T ~ BB R AL R F DA BBy Y

a) BURs R

b)  RNFEBT AT BB T R EERL o

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject to recalls for safety and Customer Satisfaction

L health reasons. E9Sk! V=93

£iB6.1 U o M08 7 4 R 2 2 SRR o 280 W 77 43 L o

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints received and how they are | Customer Satisfaction

L E dealt with. &R

#$7B6.2 ML 7 i B s A A ARy 3% o

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and protecting intellectual Intellectual Property Rights

B SRR property rights. and Customer Privacy

#1B6.3 e LAl AR ek 2 WA A A AL kA R K P AL R

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall procedures. Quality Control; Labelling;

LS L P R O e e MR HRPER 5 8

1i#iB6.4

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and privacy policies, how they are Intellectual Property Rights

LB implemented and monitored. and Customer Privacy

#1EB6.5 AT B BRI RARRIBOR - DB B AT R B0 3% o A R % P AL R
Aspect B7: General Disclosure ANTI-CORRUPTION
Anti-Corruption Information on: REG

— Rk
B0 R G BB ¢
a)  BORs R
b)  RESPEIPAT A TR B B BB R -
KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt practices brought against | ANTI-CORRUPTION
L i the issuer or its employees during the reporting period and the outcomes of R
#EiB7.1 the cases.
TSN Py 31T A SR EL B 3 LA 0 BTG sl A W9 H Rk AR
KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistleblowing procedures, how they | ANTI-CORRUPTION
L Esie are implemented and monitored. REG
##iB7.2 D R S R > DARH BT BT
KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to directors and staff. ANTI-CORRUPTION
CES e e o % B RPN R BT A - RETG
##iB7.3
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report
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al

"

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guide Requirements Section/Remarks

PR BRER B TR - @ B AT I B il ik

Aspect B8: General Disclosure ENGAGING IN PUBLIC
Community Policies on community engagement to understand the needs of the communities where the issuer| WELFARE

Investment operates and to ensure its activities take into consideration the communities’ interests. BATAR

FWiBS : HLAEE | R

A B DR I 22 BT e A I 5 S A R LS T W B0 8 A A 25 R

KPI B8.1 Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education, environmental concerns, labour ENGAGING IN PUBLIC
BB needs, health, culture, sport). WELFARE
$HB8.1 HEE R (B - R B THEK - Uk ) - BAT A
KPI B8.2 Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the focus area. ENGAGING IN PUBLIC
BB ATB SR B P 80 O (O 4 B R ) o WELFARE
HEBs.2 BATA R
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Directors’ Report
EFEERE

The Board is pleased to present their annual
report and the audited financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 30 June 2023.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company,
the principal activities of its principal subsidiaries
are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A discussion and review in the business activities
of the Group, including a description of the
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the
Group and an indication of the likely future
development of the Group’s business, are
set out in the sections headed “Chairman’s
statement” and “Management Discussion and
Analysis” on pages 4 to 5 and pages 6 to 13 of
this annual report, respectively. Certain key
performance indicators, a discussion on the
Group’s environment policies and performance
and its compliance with the relevant laws and
regulations, and an account of the Group’s
relationship with its key stakeholders are
included in the “Management Discussion
and Analysis” and “Environmental, Social and
Governance Report” on pages 6 to 13 and pages
44 to 101 of this annual report, respectively. These
discussions form part of this “Directors’ Report”.

In addition, the financial risk management
objectives and policies of the Group are shown in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.

EREFRARELAFPEFE ALK E R =4
AHZEAH A BRI B ik -

B3

AN TIBE WA ) > e B 4 W) i R
BEOR AR B R M k14

S5 Il i

A B AS 42 0 2L 545 B 2 b v I 1o R 355 A 44 1 i
2 2F B e A W B PR R 2 e M A A [ S 2 T
AE A 21 5 1 DL W) 2 ol U A AE i SR 4 5 B R
6ZE13H Z [ Bk | M [ B & 5 S 20T | 224 o
TS RBLIEEE - ASHE B BROR BLOR S 3R B B L 38
<Y AH B 9 19 e 30 LA 0 =2 i DA B A 4 [ L o B
2 AH B Z AR R AR B E13H MBM4E
101 H Z [ BRI o am S o b | S [ BRBE ~ &1 KR
ﬁ%lﬁﬁfﬁ W oo FZER A EEGHRE |25

BB > A G2 [ i S 85 J e A B A R BOR RO £
S 5 e Mt 27
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USE OF PROCEEDS

The Company’s shares have been listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange since 18 May
2016. The receipts of proceeds, net of listing
expenses (including underwriting fee), including
both recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and deducted from the share premium from the
Company’s listing were approximately HK$36.1
million (the “Net Proceeds”) and the unutilised
balance of net proceeds as at 30 June 2023 was
approximately HK$9.9 million.

The Net Proceeds from the Company’s listing
have been and will be utilised in accordance with
the intended uses as disclosed in the prospectus
dated 30 April 2016 (the “Prospectus”) of the
Company and subsequent change in use of
proceeds announcement issued by the Company
dated 20 September 2019, 24 September 2021 and
21 December 2022 (the “Announcements”). The
table below sets out the intended uses and actual
application of the net proceeds as at 30 June 2023:

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

Pife sk B &

AN B B ZF—NAEHH )\ H AR A B 32
MR T o BIER TR AR A 1 25 R At i Y 2 R N
TR % A B4 e b F0 B 7o BR S (a2 )
% » A AT B WO BT 19k Y8 £ % 36,100,000
W ([ EFH]) - MR ZFZ=24AAH=1
H AR B F B 1535 JE 3 #8458 £ 459,900,000 5 7G

i A3k S A O A R A A R H IR %
—ANFEMA =+ H R SRR (THBRER]) kA
AR ZF-JFEIAZTH s ZEF D FIUH
ZAWNH EZF A - R BER
SRR Ak S & 2 i ([ 1) B 5@ WY it 1 il i
o T ARAB P A5 sk A BB R =%
ZEEANHZA HEBRE DL

Actual use of
proceeds up to

30 June 2023

Intended use e S Expected time
of proceeds ARZFTH Unused Amount for utilisation
Bt CEABARE KBRS 908 e

HK$ million HK$ million HK$ million

[if 2o HE#®T [if- 2o
On or before
31 December 2023
S
Development of potential projects ~ #EHHH 99 - 99 K2 Hi
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Directors’ Report
EFEERE

The business objectives, future plans and planned
use of proceeds as stated in the Prospectus,
the announcement of offer price and allotment
results dated 17 May 2016 (the “Allotment
Results”) and the Announcements were based
on the best estimation and assumption of
future market conditions made by the Group
at the time of preparing the Prospectus, the
Allotment Results and the Announcements
while the proceeds were applied based on the
actual development of the Group’s business, the
actual situation and the industry. The Directors
will constantly evaluate the Group’s business
objective and may change or modify plans against
the changing market condition and technology
development to ascertain the business growth of
the Group. The Directors will also take a cautious
approach continually when considering using the
proceeds and closely monitor the changes of the
market conditions and technology development
from time to time.

The unused Net Proceeds have been placed as
bank deposits with a licensed bank in Hong Kong
as at the date of this Annual Report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES
AND CUSTOMERS

The key relationships with the Group’s employees
and customers is discussed under section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report”
on pages 44 to 101 of this annual report.

HBRER - BB HIA - ANFEL +EH %
B TG B A5 R (TRCEEAS R ) Je o i v a3
B H B~ R E B P Ak AT 8 & T AR R AR B2
VI P A A B TR ~ TG A SR A i I AR 2R i L
P di A it B MBS AE > T P 4k L 9 AR A 4
SE R T P e S AT SR T BGIR DU A - AR
B A A 45 I 1) SE B R S RT RE BB RS B AL T
iR L R 5 A % P B A s WA ol DA i DR A 4R [ Y
SEB IR o 1 F T I A8k T 38 IRt A A BRI
gﬁ%%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%w%M$%&&ﬁ%@%%

TAACAE S H O > R B F T 45K I R A CAR 2 RAT A
KR ATF W ERAT -

SLfE B K % P i R B AR

ACHE [ g B MR R R BRI AR RSB 44 F101
BB b & R | — 8 ot o
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KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH SUPPLIERS

The Group understands that the sustainable
supply of quality products is indispensable for
long-term business development. In view of this,
the Group has adopted a supplier management
policy to ensure quality and sustainability of
product supply. The Group selects its suppliers
prudently. The suppliers need to fulfill certain
assessment criteria of the Group, including
meeting the Group’s standards for the quality
of raw materials, reputation, environmental
friendliness, production capacity, financial
capability and experience. We view our suppliers
as partners who make important contributions to
the success of our business.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year are set out
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 127 of
this annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 30 June 2023, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution, calculated in
accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as
consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands,
amounted to approximately HK$49,495,000 (2022:
HK$65,256,000).

DIVIDEND

The directors do not recommend the payment
of any dividend for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements of the property, plant and
equipment of the Group during the year are
set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

L3 I v 1 2 B R

ACHE [ Y gt B VT A O L i R YT S O %
DA A o A HRIL > AR [ BR 40 43t 1 7 A LB
B HEDREE iV EL R B AT A ERE o AR [ T
REBLME R o £t M 1 7 0 BOR SR B 9 T RE AN R
#e o B R AR B R R ARLECR - R - B
KAF ~ A hy ~ BB Re ) S AR A o P B
B T 2 R AT S 2 B ARt FE KRR S A

e 31

ACER A ACAR JBE 1Y SRR ACAR A1 27 H M AR B 4R
i S oAb 2 TR A

Yk Sy IR A
REFZEZAERNAETH o REBHSRE A RS
225 (—JUN A= > BERE RAERT) BROCGEHEZ

A% ] AT A 3 IR e A 40 %5 49,495,000 08 (—F
4E 65,256,000 7C) ©

JBe &

EH MR E R TSR TR TN
H=+H LA BRI S, -

B RR Y T

A B AR FEA SR I R Wy 3 ~ S D B ) 2 R
R AR A I B W M3
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Directors’ Report
EFEERE

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the
Group and of the Company during the year are
set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity on page 130 and set out in note 22 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

DONATIONS

During the year ended 30 June 2023, charitable
and other donations made by the Group
amounted to HK$Nil (2022: HK$22,000)

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The 2023 AGM will be held on Friday, 1 December
2023.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

For the purpose of determining the identity of the
shareholders entitled to attend and vote at the
2023 AGM, the register of members will be closed
from Tuesday, 28 November 2023 to Friday, 1
December 2023, both days inclusive, during which
period no transfer of shares will be registered. All
transfers of shares accompanied by the relevant
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
transfer office and share registrar in Hong Kong,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell
Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong
Kong for registration not later than 4:30 p.m. on
Monday, 27 November 2023.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share
capital for the year ended 30 June 2023 are set
out in note 21(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

i i

A7 B AR 4 PR A 5 1] e A 7 ] 4 ok A8 58 Bl 2 A 43
AR 5130 L A A% £ B 2 8 T o B A v A 5 AR B
22 0

i

BEZFR=FANAZTHIRERE » REEEH R
= R AAR S F o (ZF A £ 22,00000) ©

JB AR K €

CROEEBRBEERGIN _F_=ZF T A
H (BT 817 -

4 PRI £ 288 )P X i T4

R EA RN RS RRESE R &Rk
BENBRREH > RF_=44F+—HZ+/N\HE
W) =F1+"H—HEHRL) (BFERM
) 5165 7 455 30 B A0 208 5 e » BT TS R € AT AR o]
JBE 473 48 5 B F0 T4 o PR B A 48 P SO R A T e
FAR_F =+ —H L H (B8 T4
=43 Wi REHRA A ]I v A B R B PR A
B B A R AT > Hbhk s B AT RS R
HA83FE A7 712-171655 8 » DRSS o

JBe A
*Aﬂﬁﬁ—g::ﬁAﬁ—+am¢EM%¢%
B EOR AR A B IR M 21 (a

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#



PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year, neither the Company nor any of
its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed or sold any
of the Company’s listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights
under the Company’s articles of association or
the laws in the Cayman Islands, the jurisdiction
in which the Company was incorporated, which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders of the
Company.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ and officers’
liabilities in respect of legal actions against its
Directors and senior management arising from
corporate activities. The permitted indemnity
provision is in force for the benefit of the
Directors as required by section 470 of the
Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance”) when the Report of the Board of the
Directors prepared by the Directors is approved
in accordance with section 391(1)(a) of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of
the Group for the last five financial years is set
out on page 204.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the year
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors:

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson

Mr Fung Man Kam

Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander
Independent Non-executive Directors:
Dr Loke Yu

Ms Fung Po Yee
Dr Sung Ting Yee

Directors’ Report
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OB~ o o AR A W)l 2R

7S ) 8 AT A R B 2 B A8 A e oA 0 D L
Ie] o ) B A A W] B _E RS o
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A ) AL A R A B o B 2 I (AR A W) RE AT S 1Y
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A L) 3 SR K A o ] 2R 3 B A 1 AR
R BT T SR B M ST i R

0 e 99 S
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=
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In accordance with, amongst others, Articles 83(3)
and 84(1) of the Articles, Ms Fung Po Yee and Dr
Sung Ting Yee will retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming
2023 AGM.

INDEPENDENCE CONFIRMATION

The Company has received from each of the
INEDs a confirmation of independence pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all of the INEDs are independent.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The remuneration policy in respect of the
employees of the Group is formulated on the
basis of merit, qualifications and competence.

Emoluments of the Directors are decided, based
on factors such as their duties, responsibilities
and contribution to the Company, the prevailing
market conditions, time commitment and the
desirability of performance-based remuneration.

The remuneration of the Directors and the
details of the five highest-paid individuals of
the Company are set out in notes 8 and 9 to the
consolidated financial statements.

M L 55) A RI5E83(3) &84k » BEHELt
T A 05 B 1 519 7% B A% B2 47 1) R = A I R B AR
K _FIRAE S A B BT -

T8 e

A F] CCE  Sr IR T AR B RIS 3.13
W% A B L R o AR ARLR A o 2B L IER
(RE P Y NS

e P o S
ACER B R B #3557 T BOSRAR B L Sh A - AR BT B
TIE

TR R - AR R EAR AR AR
BUATT DU ~ Ak H A ey ] B 22 B S 0 M o 70 e
SRR ML

IR I S A A R T B N s 22 R O A
BB R 8 9 o
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE
OFFICER’S INTERESTS IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 June 2023, the interests or short positions
of the Directors in the shares, underlying shares
and debentures of the Company, its holding
company, any of its subsidiaries and other
associated corporation (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”))
which were notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of
Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short
positions which they are taken or deemed to have
under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to
be entered in the register referred to therein,
or which were required, pursuant to the Model
Code, are set out below:

(i) The Company

Long position/
short position

WRIRE

Nature of interest

L 3 HY0

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

0 B AT BB By ~ H BBy Be R
it

REFZEZAENAEH o EHEBARANT - R
O3 R B AT Ay B Ja 2 ) e LAt M v P (o 28 S 7 v
557158 25 B B AR (38 25 B9l B il 1) 56
XV) B JBeA ~ R R e Aoy B el v v e A L 0ttt o I
SRR S XV 555 7 % 843 ¥ 78 1k A ) 5 Mgk 32 T 43¢
7 A RE A5 SR (B AR B 5 B I B R ] % <5 1
SCREE AR SR 2 B PO RE SR IR ) o BB O Ik
J1 WA 575 3.5, 2080 ZE0 47 L B v It A X5 e - F A 2
i%iﬁé% > AR 5B AT S Y B 2 IR U T

(i) A2

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
Al 2 v JBe R Y
W&l

Number of ordinary
shares/underlying
shares held

i 5 0 0B W
Iy ¥ H

Mr Samson Fung Interest of controlled Long position 138,000,000 75%
P ey corporation (Note 1) -]

TR S22 w] W RE RS (W)
Mr David Fung Interest of controlled Long position 138,000,000 75%

D&Y i

TS el A w) R 2 (P )
Note 1:  Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung are the beneficial
owners of 62% and 38%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of HSSP Limited (“HSSP“) and are deemed to be
interested in the shares in the Company held by HSSP by
virtue of Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung being entitled
to exercise or control the exercise of one-third or more of
the voting power at general meetings of HSSP.

corporation (Note 1) -]

BiFRET « S SCMRRSe A KU SCER B ZE 43 B 2 HSSP Limited (THSSPY) T84T
JBEAR62% K 38% M) B 2 e N Kk A REAT A sl b Bl AT A HS SP
e RGP = 2 kDA b > HAR A B HSSPHAT B A
AT RARERS o
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(ii) Associated corporation

il

(i) MWLM

Number of
shares held/
Name of associated interested Percentage of
Name of Director corporation Capacity/nature ESTE, 3ip 21 shareholding
R HR: 1 vy 44 SR BBy ¥ H P A JBC A v 43 Be
Mr Samson Fung (Note 1) HSSP Beneficial interest 62 62%
PSS (RFRET) HSSP gL 0
Mr David Fung (Note 1) HSSP Beneficial interest 38 38%
WS A (k1) HSSP Hh
Note 1:  Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung are the beneficial FFRET = WSSOI A R UG SCH S 2k 4 2 HS SPEL 3847 I A< 62% B2 38% Y

owners of 62% and 38%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of HSSP and are deemed to be interested in the
shares in the Company held by HSSP by virtue of Mr
Samson Fung and Mr David Fung being entitled to exercise
or control the exercise of one-third or more of the voting
power at general meetings of HSSP.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors
of the Company and/or any of their spouses
or children under eighteen years of age had
any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the
Company, or its holding company, any of its
subsidiaries and other associated corporations
as at 30 June 2023 as recorded in the register
required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Share
Option Scheme”, no equity-linked agreements
were entered into during the year or subsisted at
the end of the year ended 30 June 2023.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the Share Option Scheme
pursuant to the written resolutions of the
shareholders passed on 26 April 2016. Pursuant to
the Share Option Scheme, the Board may, at its
discretion, offer to grant an option to subscribe
new shares in aggregate not exceeding 30% of
the shares in issue from time to time.

BRSBTS A AT sl AT HSSPIB SR R B i =
Sy —sill b s FEH A B HSSPRAT WA A Wl I 4 R 25 o

B ESCRT @RS > MR EERNAETH o AR
B R /A B AR S 18 DL R R AR A ]
Bl 4 B 2y ) B LA ] A 8 > v R LAt A B % 1 Y
LA e ~ AH Bl JBe Aoy M fRUARE W e A8 08 A AR R %
T2 391 55 0491 555 35 2 {6k Z8 47 L. 1A 368 e i P wd 8k L 4
Ei’%?ﬁﬂi‘aﬁ%ﬂ@ﬂ%&ﬁ&ﬂ%ﬁ&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%ﬁéﬁﬁ

B4 ) ik

3% [0 e R it 1) | — B0 BT e 8 5 A - 47 P9 I ST S B
BB R AN A S B IR BRI AR AT
B R A4 4t i

Yl VB it 8

AN MR RN A 0N B YRR
T R 58 R AP — 0 M B o L0 I A
# > AL IR L P 4 A LR
BRI AN IR T B AT H R A 30% BT R Ay
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The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme
are summarised as follows:

M

2

Purpose of the Share Option Scheme

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is
to provide an incentive for the participants
(defined below) to work with commitment
towards enhancing the value of the Company
and the shares in the Company for the benefit
of our shareholders and to attract and retain
persons whose contribution is or may be
beneficial to the growth and development of
the Group.

Participants of the Share Option Scheme and
the basis of determining the eligibility of the
Participants

The Board may at its discretion grant options
to (i) any executive Director, or employees
(whether full time or part time) of the
Company, any member of the Group or any
entity in which any member of the Group
holds an equity interest (“Invested Entity”);
(ii) any non-executive Directors (including
INEDs) of the Company, any member of
the Group or any Invested Entity; (iii) any
supplier of goods or services of the Company,
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (iv) any customer of the Company,
any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; and (v) any such persons (including
but not limited to consultants, advisers,
contractors, business partners or service
providers of the Company or any member
of the Group or any Invested Entity) who
in the absolute discretion of the Board has
contributed or will contribute to the Group
(individually, the “Participant”, or collectively,
the “Participants”).
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5)

Total number of shares available for issue
under the Share Option Scheme

The limit on the total number of shares of the
Company which may be issued upon exercise
of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme
and any other scheme(s) of any member
of the Group must not exceed 10% of the
nominal amount of all the issued share capital
of the Company as at the Listing Date (which
shall be 18,400,000 shares) unless approval of
the shareholders of the Company has been
obtained, and which must not in aggregate
exceed 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time.

As at the date of this report, the total number
of shares available for issue under the Share
Option Scheme is 18,400,000 shares, which
represents 10% of the issued shares as at the
date of this report.

Maximum entitlement of each Participant

The total number of shares issued and which
may be issued upon exercise of all options
(whether exercised, cancelled or outstanding)
granted to any Participant in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not
exceed 1% of the issued shares as at the date
of grant.

Basis for determining the subscription price

The subscription price for the shares under
the options to be granted under the Share
Option Scheme will be a price determined by
the Board at the time of grant of the options,
and will be not less than the highest of (i) the
closing price of the shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets on
the date of grant which must be a business
day; (ii) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant; and
(iii) the nominal value of a share.
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(6) Time of exercise of options

An option may be exercised in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
at any time during a period to be notified by
the Board to each Participant who accepts
the grant of any options, which must not be
more than 10 years from the date of the grant
(subject to acceptance) of the option.

(7) Payment on acceptance of option

HK$1.00 is payable by the Participant who
accepts the grant of an option in accordance
with the terms of the Share Option Scheme
on acceptance of the grant of an option.

(8) Remaining life of the Share Option Scheme

The Share Option Scheme shall be valid
and effective for a period of ten years
commencing on the Listing Date, i.e. 18 May
2016.

Other details of the Share Option Scheme are set
out in the Prospectus dated 30 April 2016.

No share option under the Share Option Scheme
has been granted by the Company since its
adoption and up to the date of this annual report.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 June 2023, so far as is known to the
Directors, the following persons (other than the
Directors of the Company) had interests or short
positions in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company which were required to be notified
to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the
register required to be kept under section 336 of
the SFO.
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Long position/
short position

WFRRRE

Nature of interest

Rt

Beneficial interest

A e

Note: It is directly wholly-owned by Mr Samson Fung and Mr David
Fung. They are controlling shareholders holding 138,000,000
shares of the Company.

HSSP' (Note)
HSSP' (BitE)

1 HSSP, a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability on 8 October 2015.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
aware of any other persons who have interests
or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions
of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO, or
which were recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 336 of the SFO.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the section headed “Share Option
Scheme” disclosed above, the Company, its
holding company or any of its subsidiaries or
fellow subsidiaries was at no time during the year
a party to any arrangements which would enable
the Directors to acquire benefits by means of
the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of,
the Company or any other body corporate. Save
as disclosed in this annual report, none of the
Directors or any of their spouses or children
under the age of 18 was granted any right to
subscribe for the shares or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

Long position

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding in
the Company
Pk ¥ B H/ Al 2 v JBe Y
BB B 8 H BRI 2l

138,000,000 75%

Number of ordinary
shares/underlying
shares held
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DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into
a renewed service agreements issued by the
Company on 30 November 2021 for a further term
of three years commencing from 1 December
2021. Each of the executive Directors may receive
a discretionary bonus, the amount of which will
be determined by reference to the comments of
the Remuneration Committee of the Company.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors
have signed a renewed letter of appointment
dated 23 April 2022 with the Company for a
further term of two years commencing from 26
April 2022.

None of the Directors who are proposed for
re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable within one year
without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

Saved as disclosed in notes 8 and 25(i) to
the consolidated financial statements, no
transactions, arrangements or contracts of
significance to which the Company, its holding
company or any of its subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which a director
of the Company had a material interest, either
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the
year or at any time during the year.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code
as the code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors. Having made
specific enquiries of all Directors, the Company
confirmed that all Directors have complied with
the required standard set out in the Model Code.

CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Group has entered into a number of
transactions with parties who, upon the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange, became connected persons of the
Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such
transactions are set out below.

Connected Persons

(1) Karwin Corporation Limited (“Karwin”)
Karwin is principally engaged in the business
of property investment and is wholly-owned
by Mr Samson Fung.

(2) Super Champion Limited (“Super Champion”)
Super Champion is principally engaged in
the business of property investment and is
wholly-owned by Mr David Fung.

Fully exempt continuing connected transactions

The following connected transactions constitute

fully exempt continuing connected transactions

for the Company under Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.
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TENANCY AGREEMENTS AL ik
Background GBS

(@) A7 Il 3 L L B B

(a) Tenancy agreement relating to Karwin

On 10 December 2022, Hang Sang (Siu Po),
as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Karwin, as landlord for the leasing of
the property at House 24 (comprising the
ground, first and second floors and the
terrace thereof, parking area, yard, garden
area and slope), The Riviera, 10 Pik Sha Road,
Silverstrand, Sai Kung, New Territories, Hong
Kong with a saleable area of approximately
2,208.8 sq.ft. to the Group for a current
monthly rental of HK$80,000 (inclusive of
rates, service charges and other outgoings).
The leased property is used as a director’s
quarter of the Group. The aggregate rental
payments payable to Karwin for the years
ended 30 June 2022 and 2023 approximately
HK$960,000 and HK$960,000, respectively.

(b) Tenancy agreement relating to Super

Champion

On 10 December 2022, Hang Sang (Siu Po),
as tenant, entered into a tenancy agreement
with Super Champion, as landlord for the
leasing of the property at Flat A, Ground
Floor, Content Lodge (duplex apartment
A on G/F and 1/F and the garden adjoining
to the apartment), 140 Waterloo Road,
Kowloon Tong, Kowloon, Hong Kong with a
saleable area of approximately 2,869.7 sq.ft.
to the Group for a current monthly rental of
HK$80,000 (inclusive of rates, service charges
and other outgoings). The leased property
is used as a director’s quarter of the Group.
The aggregate rental payments payable to
Super Champion for the years ended 30 June
2022 and 2023 approximately HK$960,000 and
HK$960,000, respectively.

PR ZETZAHH o EA OBR) (AR
P (TERZER) T ME RS > mARER
HHRH A 0 A Ve AR D B 1 O B T W A AR
2455 M — A (BRGHT ~ — MR A K%
B~ WHAL - ERE - ABRE KA » ERmEEL
2,208.8°F- 7R » Bilkidg H #H4x %580,000% G (L5
ZEM ~ MRS Wt K H 7 ) o L E W EMEALE
MEFFEEZHE BEFHER R =
RN A Z 1 H kA B R 5 R A A A A
%1 7%960,000%5 7C 5% 960,00045 G ©

(b) A7 Il it 5tk ¥ L 5 B

WZFZ AT ZHH A CRR) (EAHM
) BfaE (B R EF) ST e E W > mAR%EE
MRS ILER ST B 14098 E S H T
AR — Y% (BF5H T & — M N EALA >
DL R AT AR WA ) » B A £12,869.7°F
IR > BERE H 14 %580,0009 ¢ (L 55 240 - IR
B A ST ) o MLE ) EMEAREEE R
HEZHE BEZRERZFRZEHANA
= H kA B R 1 5 S A R A AR A I 2 A
960,000%5 7T £ 960,0004#5 7T ©

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4£#

117



|

118

H
'ﬂ

Directors’ Report
EFEERE

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and
exemption available to shareholders by reason of
their holding of the Company’s securities.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the percentage of sales
attributable to the largest customer and the five
largest customers of the Group is 5.9% and 21.3%,
respectively.

During the year, the largest supplier and the
five largest suppliers of the Group accounted
for approximately 14.4% and 43.4% of the total
purchases of the Group, respectively.

None of the Directors, their associates or any
substantial shareholder (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns 5% or more of the number
of issued shares of the Company) had an interest
in the major suppliers or customers set out above.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the subsidiaries of the Company are
set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly
available to the Company and to the knowledge
of the Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules during the year
and up to the date of this report.

COMPETITION AND CONFLICT OF
INTERESTS

During the year, save as disclosed in this annual
report, none of the Directors or substantial
shareholders of the Company or any of their
respective associates has engaged in any business
that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the corporate governance practices
adopted by the Company is set out on pages 21
to 43 of this annual report.

AUDITOR

Preceding the three financial years ended 30
June 2023, there was no change in the Company’s
auditor.

At the conclusion of the 2023 AGM, Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited shall retire as
auditor of the Company and a resolution will be
submitted in the 2023 AGM to re-appoint Grant
Thornton Hong Kong Limited as the auditor of
the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Fung Man Wai Samson
Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Executive Director
Hong Kong, 22 September 2023
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEhiEE

Q Grant Thornton
5]

To the members of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding
Company Limited
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together, the
“Group”) set out on pages 127 to 203, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position as at 30 June
2023, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 30 June 2023, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA’s “Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants”
(the “Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a

separate opinion on these matters.

Impairment assessment of non-financial assets
T 4k I LT A

The key audit matter

Wl 2

Please refer to notes 4 and 13 to the consolidated financial
statements and the accounting policies as set out on note
2.10.

S R A B R MR A B3 R ERE2A OB IR T T BUR o

As at 30 June 2023, the carrying amount of the Group’s non-
financial assets (including property, plant and equipment,
and right-of-use assets) amounting to HK$7,250,000, net of
impairment loss of HK$12,641,000.

REB-ZEANAZTH REEEGREE (BEDE - K
Jre B o s T I RE S ) W R T4 7,250,00098 7€ » 411 B Wi s
1812,641,000% G °

Management performed an impairment assessment when
indicators of impairment were identified. Impairment
assessments prepared by management contain certain
judgemental and sut()]H'ective assumptions which may be
inherently uncertain and could be subject to management bias.
BRI T - SRR G0
A SR B 1B B > de BT REAEFE A A B o AT
HESZ B BGOSR o

Management determined the recoverable amounts based on
the h|§her of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-
use calculations. In determining the value-in-use calculations,
expected cash flows generated by the assets from the cash-
generating units are discounted to their present value, which
require significant estimation relating to the growth rates and
discount rate. When performing an impairment assessment,
management used the value-in-use calculations and compared
the carrying values of such non-financial assets, to determine
@Pe impairment loss which should be recognised for the year,
if any.
%@@ﬁﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬁii%ﬂﬁlﬁﬁﬁﬁ%*E’Jﬁ%%

S T o O R R BLES » B g W
O TR A AT SO T N
EH Ao o e LR A4 S » 8 LR G 7 08 LA
B B W T R

We identified the impairment assessment of non-financial
assets as a key audit matter because of the estimation of the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units involved
significant management’s judgement and estimation with
respect to the assumptions used.

Al 7 S P 150 o B S 9808 > DXLt 3
e A BB I A R KRB At o

VR T

Wl 20

T2 05T B Y 0 3
2y A 5 A T 7 0 96 o I 4 7
) S o et e o I A 9 1P 7% o A%
W5 £ B B A Bt L HL R A
< TR B IS 6

How the matter was addressed in our audit

el v o M

Our audit procedures to assess the impairment loss of non-
financial assets included the following:

AP A i R0 SR A 9 R A DA T 480K

*  understanding management’s basis, methodologies and
assessments in relation to the impairment assessments of
non-financial assets;

o THREBRREA B R A AT A AR © e BEA
o evaluating the key assumptions used in the value-in-use
calculations, including the growth rates, by comparin

the approved cash flow forecasts with the historical actua
performance results and forward-looking market data;

o TR B O SRR B A R R A T
%‘%}Eﬁt@ s AN B A R S B T R B M L 93

o evaluating the reasonableness of the discount rates based
on our knowledge of the industries and taking external
market data into consideration;

. ﬁﬁ&ﬁﬁ%‘ﬁ%ﬁ’ﬁ%jﬁ%lﬁﬁl‘%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁkﬁ% s AEMHTBLR M &

*  engaging an internal valuation specialist to assist us
in evaluating manaﬁement’s impairment assessment
methodologies, the key assumptions applied, discount
rates used and calculations contained with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards; and

o ZRAEEEEREBY KNS L BT @R # R R B
I AR AR 77 2 ~ M P B BB~ O B A BB R
IR 5 K

o re-performing sensitivity analyses on the key inputs to
evaluate the magnitude of their impacts on the recoverable
amounts of the non-financial assets.

o HEIREABRETRURE AT > DIRFG I I G T
o SR BRI o
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VR S

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (CONTINUED)

I Sk A it 30 0 (%)

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment of trade and other receivables

U5 B JU b HEWOGK R OB 45 B0 48t (T BU0E S0l 1) WAl

The key audit matter
LS TR

Please refer to notes 4 and 16 to the consolidated
financial statements and the accounting policies as set
out on note 2.9.

i 2 A 7 B IR B4 B 16 00 B M 2. 9B 6 BUR -

As at 30 June 2023, the Group had trade and other
receivables (excluding prepayments) of HK$6,750,000,
net of loss allowance of HK$1,403,000.

RZFZZEAAZTH . REEME S RIAbE
WO E 56,750,000 78 (R BLEE T30 » 106 6 46 48
1,403,000 ©

The ECL assessment of trade and other receivables
involved significant management's judgement and use
of estimates to ascertain the recoverability of trade and
other receivables.

B0 B At ME W R UM 5 B B 4R A A 9 B LR B
5 T A S T W RO A A At

Loss allowance for trade and other receivables are
based on management’s assumptions about risk of
default and expected loss rates, which is estimated by
taking into account the historical credit loss experience,
existing market conditions as well as forward-looking
estimates, all of which involve a significant degree of
management judgement.

S0 0 At R Aol A AL 3 R L R 24 o
RSO R AR A th A Bt > T U R 5 A8 IR A £
SERRAE - BT DL R AT A AR i > W RER
TR BE i B P B

We have identified the ECL assessment of trade and
other receivables as a key audit matter because of
the assessment involves significant management’s
judgement and use of estimates.

AV 52 5 B Al G5 T B A £ 500 4 A 2
ST R o SR e B SRR LR M A At o

How the matter was addressed in our audit

AEA il sl 0 M3 2

Our audit procedures to assess the ECL of trade and other receivables
included the following:

FeAMREAN 52 5 B A ME Wk 01 £ S s SRR B B A R R DL T &
A :

reviewing the Group’s procedures on credit policy given to
customers;

FH REME PR RBCRARE 5

checking the correctness of the ageing analysis by customer on
a sample basis; and

Bk A RSB 2T SR 5 B

assessing the reasonableness of management’s ECL allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss
rates are appropriately adjusted based on current economic
conditions and forward-looking information and examining the
actual losses recorded during the current financial year and
assessing whether there was an indication of management bias
when recognising loss allowance.

80 At L s A R AR £ B O A SR A £
At A B o G BUR AL A R A SRR R AR
AR ALV SR D W R S R R B b A i A B
ﬁggE%EE&ﬁﬁ%éﬁ%%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ%%@%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%@
JE R o
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Independent Auditor’s Report

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in
the 2023 annual report of the Company, but does not include
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the other information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors assisted by the Audit Committee are
responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.

VR T

ERRHEILGEBAR - HMELS AR
Tl HAR R =4ERANE
AR R o AHR B 35 B T s e e AP
AR S T 7 o

T AN B A S 5 S A ) T R A 2 A
flufs B o BAM I Bk S A 7 8 Bk
REPZMIE vt

O RMBES B RENE > M
A AT B LA S - ARSI
5 B A A7 R 7 BRL A B S R R R
A 7 ST A A vp BT T R B DLAE AR EE K
1K Al 2 5 0L P A7 7 TR K B R A Y
Yo

R BAN T BT A > WRIFMR T
oAl 5 B AR AR TR BB > A5 =
§§%$§oﬁﬁﬁﬁ’&M&ﬁﬁﬁ

HAORA S B AR AURIE M AT

oA AREEBaatmad
A Y (7 v B 25 o YR JU) ) Je 7y o8 8 )
RA9) 4 0 8 A A R % L TG - 3 31
HWhr B B R > R TG A R A
o B 785 R A P e BE A P R ) o DA A
o A I AN AE R KR B8 i 2
B R B R PR -

A5 B 5% 6 S 5 R R > B T
fli  BBMFFARCE RIS > AR
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AR B R R S
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEhiEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

e W il R 7 il A5 B R R I Y
wWiE

BAT R B R B A I R R
ANAFAE B SR B B ok i 5 A FOR
BRI A A BLOR - 3 i R AL AN
RO AR B, o BRAMME ) AR
etk o BRUCDASE > FAM Bk A wT AR
oAl & o AN A €80 AS i o 19 R 2 1)
TR Al A L £ SR IE M BT

A BLAR RS K DR > R REAR R
AR G R QAT A B > FER—
K B R BRI AR A R R RE B B o B R BR
Al DL bR B S B TR o R L
S0 A B U A R A T R R A B
B A 1 P A AR S 85 ot T A ) i A
j}id%% > R B Y At T 48 A
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Independent Auditor’s Report

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also (Continued):

conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the
date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as
a going concern.

evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the
consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the
group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
Wi BEhiEE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT
OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
actions taken to eliminate threats or safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Grant Thornton Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

11" Floor,

Lee Garden Two

28 Yun Ping Road

Causeway Bay

Hong Kong SAR

22 September 2023

Han Pui Yu
Practising Certificate No.: P07101
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
GeRskAtZERRE

Revenue
Cost of sales

Gross profit

Other income

Selling expenses

Administrative and other
operating expenses

Impairment loss on trade
receivables

Impairment loss on
non-financial assets

Finance costs

Loss before income tax
Income tax credit

Loss and total comprehensive
expense for the year

Loss per share attributable
to equity owners
of the Company

Basic and diluted

The notes on pages 132 to 203 are an integral part of these
consolidated financial statements.

€ 5
FER= IO N
EEv |
A A 6
B B X
AT T Al 288 28 BH 2
B 5 WUk T 1 i s 4

7(c)
4 il 2 1A A R 1R

7(c)
& AR 7(b)
B 5 44 BE i s 1 7
B A58 el 3% 10
A JE 5 4H B
2 i 5% AR
AR v RERE B A
A 5 B M 4
FEA B

12

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=SHAA=STHIRER

2023 2022
S Jart —B 4
HK$’000 HK$000
T T
54,414 75,510
(45,016) (52,901)
9,398 22,609
2,852 2,856
(7,054) (8,330)
(21,678) (20,814)
(36) (59)
9,112) -
(693) (342)
(26,323) (4,080)
358 245
(25,965) (3,835)

(HK14.11 cents)
(14. 1134l

(HK2.08 cents)
(2.08%A1l)

B sk 3132 F 203 B 4 3% S 45 B B B 3t

R AR 2y
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e MBEKLE

As at 30 June 2023
REZBZ=4HENHAH=Z1H

2023 2022
—EF = R
HK$000

HK$’000
T Tt

128

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment

Current assets

Inventories

Trade and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Trade and other payables
Lease liabilities

Net current assets
Total assets less current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities

Net assets

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

B K ff

FE By 2 A
Yo ~ W e il
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B £
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FHE £
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FEiA B £1 4%
A
IESERLIE AR
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16

15
16
17

18

19

19
20

7,250 18,654
- 2,532
7,250 21,186
3,281 3,855
7,114 6,002
43,152 57,946
53,547 67,803
8,951 8,209
7,019 6,752
15,970 14,961
37,577 52,842
44,827 74,028
2,925 5,803
149 507
3,074 6,310
41,753 67,718
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
ReEMBEKALE

As at 30 June 2023
WoF=ENA=1H

2023 2022
—F = R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
EQUITY B %2
Share capital JBeA 21(a) 1,840 1,840
Reserves fifi it 39,913 65,878
Total equity B A 488 41,753 67,718
Mr Fung Man Wai Samson Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander
UGS UWGHAE A
Director Director
#HHF #HHF

The notes on pages 132 to 203 are an integral part of these B 5 P 132 22203 H 2 % S5 4 1 B 785 ¥k

consolidated financial statements. WA RSy -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GeEEDx

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BMEZREZHANAZTHILEE

Equity attributable to equity owners of the Company
A v MR AT AHEAY HlE
(Accumulated
losses)/
retained
Share Share Capital earnings

capital  premium reserve (Rit%)/ Total
Bk Rbs  WARE  REEA ikl
HK$'000 HK$/000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T T T T T
(note 21(@)) (note21(b))  (note 21(c)) (note 21(d))
(Wik21@)  (WEE210)  (WE21(0)  (WE21(d)

As at 1)uly 2021 HoZZ—HLH—H 1,840 77,105 (22,594) 15,202 71,553
Loss and total comprehensive B BETR AR e 2t A

expense for the year - - - (3,835) (3,835)
As at 30 June 2022 and REZFZZHEAAZTH

1 July 2022 k-Z-"HELA—H 1,840 77,105 (22,594) 11,367 67,718
Loss and total comprehensive SRR I 2t A

expense for the year - - - (25,965) (25,965)
As at 30 June 2023 REZ-=ZHEANA=1H 1,840 77,105 (22,594) (14,598) 41,753

The notes on pages 132 to 203 are an integral part of these B 5 P 132 22203 H 2 % S5 4 1 B 785 ¥k
consolidated financial statements. F AR 4
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
TERERE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECRC=ZEANA=ZTHIEE

2l]23 2022
Y et S
HKs'ﬂqq HK$'O@
T#x SR
Cash flows from operating activities SR BL iR
Loss before income tax bR A B G e 4 (26,323) (4,080)
Adjustments for: i
Depreciation it 7(c) 10,590 6,384
Gain on disposal of property, tﬂ%%% G B
plant and equipment B pde 7(c) - (1,020)
Impairment loss on trade receivables S BEAKIE 7(0) 36 59
Impairment loss on non-financial assets FEA R 7E G s 1 7(c) 9,112 -
Gain on early termination of lease A LS 2 W 7(c) (494) -
Interest expense S & 7(b) 693 342
Interest income FEBA 6 (1,183) (77)
Write down of slow-moving inventories B B 7(c) 628 583
Operating (loss)/profit before working BEELHHHKE (BR) G
capital changes (6,941) 2,191
Increase in inventories TEE KM (54) (252)
Increase in trade and & 50 T At P Ok E
other receivables i (1,077) (864)
Increase/(Decrease) in trade and B 5 B A REA kR
other payables K,/ (i) 742 (1542)
Cash used in operations i (7,330) (467)
Hong Kong Profits Tax refund R A R B - 304
Net cash used in operating activities BEWRHHN
BLewH (7,330) (163)
Cash flows from investing activities B ﬁblﬁﬂﬁiﬁﬁ
Purchase of pr JJerty, plant and equipment Ji B ~ R B (287) (1,282)
Proceeds from disposal of property, L E R Y E T
plant and equipment P kO - 1,020
Interest received RLIE NS 1,112 77
Net cash generated from/(used in) investing ~ $¢ % W@k /(97 ) W9 BL 44
activities 825 (185)
Cash flows from financing activities WS B A
Payment of lease liabilities L& B 26 (7,596) (3,411)
Interest paid SRS 26 (693) (342)
Net cash used in financing activities 5 0 W BV (8,289) (3,753)
Net decrease in cash and BEeRBE%ED
cash equivalents WO (14,794) (4,101)
Cash and cash equivalents at the ERMBERBEEED
beginning of the year 57,946 62,047
Cash and cash equivalents at the end ERBLE RIS EY
of the year 17 43,152 57,946

The notes on pages 132 to 203 are an integral part of these P 5 P 132 28203 H 74 % 56 4 1 B B
consolidated financial statements. F AR 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Bz

1.

SR EHEANASTHIRERE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company
Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands on 8 October 2015 as an exempted
company with limited liability. The address of the
registered office of the Company is Cricket Square,
Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman, KY1-1111,
Cayman Islands. The principal place of business of the
Company is Block C, 5/F., Gee Hing Chang Industrial
Building, No. 16 Cheung Yue Street, Cheung Sha Wan,
Kowloon, Hong Kong. The Company’s shares are listed
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) on 18 May 2016.

The parent and ultimate holding company of the
Company is HSSP Limited, a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”) and is beneficially owned
by Mr Fung Man Wai Samson (“Mr Samson Fung”) and Mr
Fung Man Kam (“Mr David Fung”) (collectively referred
to as the “Controlling Shareholders”). The Company is
an investment holding company. The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
principally engaged in manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products, and sale and
distribution of food, daily necessities and utility products.

The consolidated financial statements are presented
in thousands of Hong Kong dollars (“HK$'000”), which
is also the functional currency of the Company and its
subsidiaries, unless otherwise stated.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
30 June 2023 were approved and authorised for issue by
the board of directors on 22 September 2023.

1. — &R

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International
Holding Company Limited ([ &2
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

2. WREGHBORBEE

2.1 HRIE T

2.1 Basis of preparation

These annual consolidated financial statements have
been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”),
which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong
Kong.

The consolidated financial statements also comply
with the applicable disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and include the
applicable disclosure requirements of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange (“Listing Rules”).

The significant accounting policies that have been
used in the preparation of these consolidated
financial statements are summarised below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the
years presented unless otherwise stated. The
adoption of new and amended HKFRSs, and changes
in accounting policies and the impacts on the Group'’s
consolidated financial statements, if any, are disclosed
in note 3.

R Rk B A e T 1 P A i
VR B 2 ot 8 B (7 o B
ot Q) i > AW MBS
Q) BIEF WG AT ([
&Rt A ) B B R 9 A
B E R - HWE
Q) ([ e st Al ) KR
B s N iR rat A

fo B S S TR AT 6 A U O W AR
1) B Mgk A2 Bt 2 _b vl LA (7B
AU 1) Z 38 F e g B

B oo A i A - 4L S A% A B
B HR N R 0 T 2w BUOR
AT - ZFBORCHBEN
TEFT 23R A A o BRAHTET
Je REAEHT A v S B o e R > o
wH B SR A ) % K 4 I A
B Z 58 (WA B da i B ik
3o

The consolidated financial statements have A B 5 A UM R S A B
been prepared on the historical cost basis. The WA o FHESEER T HIE S
measurement bases are fully described in the SR e 4y A -

accounting policies below.

It should be noted that accounting estimates
and assumptions are used in preparation of the
consolidated financial statements. Although these
estimates are based on management’s best knowledge
and judgement of current events and actions, actual
results may ultimately differ from those estimates.
The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements
are disclosed in note 4.

WETERE > A AR £ B AR e
B Erat Al AR o AT S
il 7 B T A L S S
A7 B 4 s Rl R P B T AR o
AELTE P A5 SR B A T 7 B % A
AHA BTN o Jerp i R e R
BT Y R > BB B fdat
SRR B R I R KA
WS > BRI REAdEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.2 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries made up to 30 June each year.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power over the entity.
When assessing whether the Group has power over
the entity, only substantive rights relating to the entity
(held by the Group and others) are considered.

The Group includes the income and expenses of a
subsidiary in the consolidated financial statements
from the date it gains control until the date when the
Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains and losses on transactions between group
companies are eliminated in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Where unrealised
losses on intra-group asset sales are reversed on
consolidation, the underlying asset is also tested for
impairment from the Group’s perspective. Amounts
reported in the financial statements of subsidiaries
have been adjusted where necessary to ensure
consistency with the accounting policies adopted by
the Group.

2. WREGHBORBEZE ()
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANA=ZTHIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. HEAEFHBORBEZE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.2 Basis of consolidation (Continued) 2.2 FRArAEHE (4)
In the Company’s statement of financial position, AR Z BABIRDEE A > e HE
investments in subsidiaries are carried at cost less any J&§ 2 W] B T Hi BRAS IRAT AT Yk
impairment loss (see note 2.10). Cost also includes fERE R BIHR CLMEEE2.10) o A
direct attributable costs of investment. DINIRRE S GONERES 1700 %N
The results of subsidiaries are accounted for by the B JBg 2 W) 2 SRR A A W) R
Company on the basis of dividends received and WIRZ B B BB B BIHR © Fr
receivable at the end of the reporting period. All A IS (8 iy 2 1 e B8 ¥ WAL
dividends whether received out of the investee’s i) 5 WAL B AR 1 ¥ ) e SR 39 7
pre or post-acquisition profits are recognised in the AN FHH AR R o
Company’s profit or loss.
2.3 Revenue recognition and other contract costs 2.3 WoA e B Sl A 2 AR
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (@) REPSHZW R
Revenue arises mainly from the sales of apparel W o 32 BE AR B B IR ke A
labels and packaging printing products and sale T A 55 BV 28 i DA B B il
and distribution of food, daily necessities and H O B 2 2 il B 8 65
utility products. L ik o
To determine whether to recognise revenue, the T RN R AR
Group follows a 5-step process: VA0 A 2B BT ¥
1. Identifying the contract with a customer 1. REREFHEH
2. Identifying the performance obligations 2. RREGHINKELAEL
3. Determining the transaction price 3. EERER M
4. Allocating the transaction price to the 4. HRGEMSBERH
performance obligations B ) A
5. Recognising revenue when/as performance 5. B (ER) 2 )R8 # H A
obligation(s) are satisfied Il SR A
In all cases, the total transaction price for REAHBILT » GHRES
a contract is allocated amongst the various B 245 1 R 3 8 o vy B R
performance obligations based on their relative AMEXAFHBHEL - FH
stand-alone selling prices. The transaction price G EABRERELE =T
for a contract excludes any amounts collected on WCHL Y 48

behalf of third parties.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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—F =

HEAH=Z1HIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.3 Revenue recognition and other contract costs
(Continued)

(@)

Revenue from contracts with customers
(Continued)

Revenue is recognised either at a point in time
or over time, when (or as) the Group satisfies
performance obligations by transferring the
promised goods or services to its customers.

Where the contract contains a financing
component which provides a significant financing
benefit to the customer for more than twelve
months, revenue is measured at the present value
of the amount receivable, discounted using the
discount rate that would be reflected in a separate
financing transaction with the customer, and
interest income is accrued separately under the
effective interest method. Where the contract
contains a financing component which provides
a significant financing benefit to the Group,
revenue recognised under that contract includes
the interest expense accreted on the contract
liability under the effective interest method.

The Group takes advantage of the practical
expedient in paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 “Revenue
from Contracts with Customers” (“HKFRS 15”) and
does not adjust the consideration for any effects
of a significant financing component if the period
of financing is twelve months or less.

2. WREGHBORBEZE ()

2.3 WA T s B S A £ R (#1)
(@) R%F P HHIZ28EE (5)

B (B A0 B A
FE T S R 5 WS T % B
AT IR EENS > s LA
Bk
e

il £ 49 625 11 % P 4R AL
1218 FOK il ) 2 14l
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H B ek AR ) ik 22 5
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UE 7Pl E ¥ R g 0N )
11 A 5 0 36 K il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREFHECRMEE (5

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Revenue recognition and other contract costs 2.3 WoA RS B S0l A5 R AR (4)
(Continued)
(@) Revenue from contracts with customers (@) REPSHZHBE (&)
(Continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other A 45 [ W 2 B G At g A T R

income recognition policies are as follows:

%%E‘Ji&**ﬁﬁ‘%ﬁﬁé?

Sale of apparel labels and packaging printing 020 R A 2 )
products LT
Revenue is generally recognised at a point in time W 3 308 05 R 2 P U A R 7R

when the customers obtain possession of and
control of the promised goods in the contract.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is
due.

Sale and distribution of food, daily necessities and
utility products

Revenue is generally recognised at a point in time
when the customers obtain possession of and
control of the promised goods in the contract.
A receivable is recognised when the goods are
delivered as this is the point in time that the

GAGERE Zep WEetill 45
R o HEORIE 6 b 52 A
RERRERE > J PR O 2
PR 7% S IR T B R s B A0
P > B ZE o IR ] 8 25 B AT

ol > H OB A A i

8915 Bl 2s

W 308 W % P A A R
i T i P O 5 4 ) I
e o HE WO IE B b 52 A
IR HRE R o PRy I IR WA I ARG
R RER R SER IR Y > (5H TR

consideration is unconditional because only the T[] 28 25 B T WO 3K o
passage of time is required before the payment is

due.

It is the Group’s policy to sell its products to the A 4 1 W BOSR % 1) %% 5 B B
customers with a right of return within a specified JE Vi S 7 i R 391 FH] 19 B A AR
period. The Group would estimate the sales return R o ACHE AR R LA A

at the time of sale at a portfolio level (expected
value method) based on its historical experience
and recognised refund liability for the products
expected to be returned as “refund liabilities”
included in “Trade and other payables”. When
customers exercise their right to recover the
product, the Group recognised “right to recover
returned products” included in “Inventories” and
a corresponding adjustment to cost of sales. No
contract liability and right to recover returned
products are recognised as insignificant amount
of returns are expected based on historical
experience.

AU 8 15 WAL K (T
WIE B ) Mt 8 R & »
S T 5195 2R [ g i i
BAREA > GEATH S KM
Al FE A5 K I P9 B TR 3k B
i o % P AT B I W el
il FRRE R IR o A 55 T e 2
A7 5 R [ Il 8 [l 28
P B ) ] e A ) A
JEH o g AR 4008 A AL
FHPR B SRR K > Ol 4
T £ 260 £ £ 2 Wi el 28 1]
il YRR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Revenue recognition and other contract costs

(Continued)

(b)

(0

Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time
proportion basis using the effective interest
method. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost that are not credit-impaired, the
effective interest rate is applied to the gross
carrying amount.

Other contract costs

Incremental cost of obtaining a contract is
capitalised if the Group expects to recover those
costs, unless the amortisation period for such
costs would be one year or less. Costs that will
be incurred regardless of whether the contract is
obtained are expensed as they are incurred.

The Group applies a practical expedient of
recognising the incremental costs of obtaining
a contract as an expense when incurred if the
amortisation period of the asset that the entity
otherwise would have recognised is one year or
less.

2.4 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment (other than cost

of

right-of-use assets as described in note 2.5) are

initially recognised at acquisition cost (including
any cost directly attributable to bringing the assets

to
be

the location and condition necessary for them to
capable of operating in the manner intended by

the Group’s management). They are subsequently

sta

ted at cost less accumulated depreciation and

accumulated impairment losses (see note 2.10), if any.

2. WREGHBORBEZE ()

2.3 WA T s B S A £ R (#1)
(b) FIEBA

(c)
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IR ] bl 1) e e e . o g 45 4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANA=ZTHIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREFHECRMEE (5

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.4 Property, plant and equipment (Continued) 2.4 W3k ~ B Bt (0

Depreciation of item of property, plant and
equipment is provided to write off the cost less their
residual values, if any, over their estimated useful
lives using the straight-line method, at the following
rates per annum:

Wi ~ W KB I H I 4%
il T 47 0 DA AR T
AP LT R A (o) w4 > B
RAAERWT ¢

Plant and machinery 10-30% J 5 B b A 10-30%
Motor vehicles 30% HH 30%
Furniture and fixtures 20% AL B I 2 20%
Office equipment 20% b YN ] 20%
Accounting policy for depreciation of right-of-use 55 FHRE S T 8 W 1 R BRI
assets is set out in note 2.5. BFEE2.5 o

The assets’ residual values, depreciation methods and
useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate,
at the end of each reporting period.

The gain or loss arising on retirement or disposal
is determined as the difference between the sales
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is
recognised in profit or loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s
carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the
replaced part is derecognised. All other expenses,
such as repairs and maintenance are charged to profit
or loss during the financial year in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5 Leases

2. WREGHBORBEZE ()

2.5 Ml

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee

At inception of a contract, the Group considers
whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease
is defined as ‘a contract, or part of a contract, that
conveys the right to use an identified asset (the
underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
consideration’. To apply this definition, the Group
assesses whether the contract meets three key
evaluations which are whether:

e the contract contains an identified asset, which
is either explicitly identified in the contract or
implicitly specified by being identified at the time
the asset is made available to the Group;

e the Group has the right to obtain substantially
all of the economic benefits from use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use,
considering its rights within the defined scope of
the contract; and

e the Group has the right to direct the use of the
identified asset throughout the period of use. The
Group assesses whether it has the right to direct
‘how and for what purpose’ the asset is used
throughout the period of use.

For contracts that contain a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components,
the Group allocates the consideration in the contract
to each lease and non-lease component on the basis
of their relative stand-alone prices.

Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the
consolidated statement of financial position. The
right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made
up of the initial measurement of the lease liability, any
initial direct costs incurred by the Group, an estimate
of any costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset at the end of the lease, and any lease payments
made in advance of the lease commencement date
(net of any lease incentives received).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. WREGHBORBEE ()

2.5 Leases (Continued) 2.5 flH& (&)
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee AL 3 A A 2y AR LA
(Continued) (%)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee TEA RN L E R 7148 R iR
(Continued) (#8)

The Group depreciates the right-of-use assets on a
straight-line basis from the lease commencement
date to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the
right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term unless
the Group is reasonably certain to obtain ownership
at the end of the lease term. The Group also assesses
the right-of-use asset for impairment when such

ACER A P 4y H TS A
P e 2 ] 40 A R LY
A (VA L5 T E) 1k 301 P 2 L
AL B R B AT RS > HE
7SR ] B Y L) A R
TEAHGEARE ) A5 i o A L Bk
EBRGR > 755 P 5y 365 1 Bl

indicator exists. BEMEAT IRAEL Ay
At the commencement date, the Group measures LG B AR H I > A 2 H H
the lease liability at the present value of the lease ARG ZBER BHER

payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the
interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot
be readily determined, the Group’s incremental
borrowing rate.

Lease payments included in the measurement of
the lease liability are made up of fixed payments
(including in-substance fixed payments) less any lease
incentives receivable, variable payments based on an
index or rate, and amounts expected to be payable
under a residual value guarantee.

Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will
be reduced for lease payments made and increased
for interest cost on the lease liability. It is remeasured
to reflect any reassessment or lease modification, or if
there are changes in in-substance fixed payments.

For lease modification that is not accounted for as
a separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease
liability based on the lease term of the modified
lease by discounting the revised lease payments
using a revised discount rate at the effective date of
modification.

When the lease is remeasured, the corresponding
adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset,
or profit or loss if the right-of-use asset is already
reduced to zero.

i > R AR TR S Z AR
TUIBL > SN A R A 5 i
SE > RIBR A SR I 2 08 34 18 R
RY DB
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. HORKEHHESORBEE (BY)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The Group has elected to account for short-term
leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liability, the
payments in relation to these leases are recognised
as an expense in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the lease term. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of twelve months or less.

On the consolidated statement of financial position,
right-of-use assets have been included in “Property,
plant and equipment”, the same line as it presents the
underlying assets of the same nature that it owns.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 “Financial Instruments” (“HKFRS
9”) and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

In the individual financial statements of the
consolidated entities, foreign currency transactions
are translated into the functional currency of the
individual entity using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated
at the foreign exchange rates ruling at that date.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the end of
the reporting period retranslation of monetary assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.5 Leases (Continued) 2.5 flH& (&)
Definition of a lease and the Group as a lessee AL 3 A A 2y AR LA
(Continued) (%)
Measurement and recognition of leases as a lessee TEA RN Z L E R 7148 R iR
(Continued) (#8)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (Continued)
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated (i.e. only translated using the exchange
rates at the transaction date).

2.7 Accounting for income taxes
Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax assets and/or liabilities comprise those
obligations to, or claims from, fiscal authorities
relating to the current or prior reporting period, that
are unpaid at the end of the reporting period. They
are calculated according to the tax rates and tax laws
applicable to the fiscal periods to which they relate,
based on the taxable profit for the year. All changes
to current tax assets or liabilities are recognised as a
component of tax expense in profit or loss.

Deferred tax is calculated using the liability method
on temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the consolidated financial statements
and their respective tax bases. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are recognised for all
deductible temporary differences, tax losses available
to be carried forward as well as other unused
tax credits, to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit, including existing taxable temporary
differences, will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
and unused tax credits can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised
if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or
from initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of assets and liabilities in a transaction
that affects neither taxable nor accounting profit or
loss.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.7 Accounting for income taxes (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries, except where the Group is able to
control the reversal of the temporary differences and
it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period the
liability is settled or the asset realised, provided they
are enacted or substantively enacted at the end of the
reporting period.

Changes in deferred tax assets or liabilities
are recognised in profit or loss, or in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity if they
relate to items that are charged or credited to other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

When different tax rates apply to different levels of
taxable income, deferred tax assets and liabilities
are measured using the average tax rates that are
expected to apply to the taxable profit of the periods
in which the temporary differences are expected to
reverse.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. HEAEFHBORBEZE ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)
2.7 Accounting for income taxes (Continued) 2.7 P BLmy eyt B ()
Current tax assets and current tax liabilities are TP 300 0 3 L AP A i
presented in net if, and only if: A TS OLLAE R 5
(a) the Group has the legally enforceable right to set (a) K 1 v A o ) 04T RE T
off the recognised amounts; and Pl MR SR s K
(b) intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise (b) F DL v %0 3 o 45 53 ol [R) IRf
the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. B E SR AL -
The Group presents deferred tax assets and deferred A A B 7 DA R G LA R 2 5
tax liabilities in net if, and only if: AR S TV A B A B A
(a) the entity has a legally enforceable right to set off (a) w% B HE AR VA o ) AT RE T
current tax assets against current tax liabilities; VLS B39 56 Y S s B AP 5
and AR s &
(b) the deferred tax assets and the deferred tax (b) ¥ #E B VE & e BLIR A Bl JE &
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the AR I 7 T] — 50 265 % Ik DA
same taxation authority on either: AR T — BT OO B 5
i
(i) the same taxable entity; or (i) F—RERBER ;s 5k
(ii) different taxable entities which intend either (i) #7452 2 1 1 (i 7
to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a A A 465 R Sk 200 D P 01
net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the %fﬁﬁ%@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ@?@@
liabilities simultaneously, in each future period BeIE £ A8 S ) DA
in which significant amounts of deferred tax i A 5 S0 B ) A I A
liabilities or assets are expected to be settled S s B[] IR 5 B
or recovered. Fe 5 18 45 B4 A ) M ot
BLELHE
2.8 Financial instruments 2.8 @ TH
Recognition and derecognition W e Al e
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised B AR B R 4 A AR
when the Group becomes a party to the contractual B —J5 IRE > B AR A O M
provisions of the financial instrument. AR -
Financial assets are derecognised when the 4 Al E P AR B R
contractual rights to the cash flows from the HIRER Jee T I > B A E A
financial asset expire, or when the financial asset R A8 DR 3 g A i o
and substantially all of its risks and rewards are W s Rl Ak R R A o i
transferred. A financial liability is derecognised when A AR ~ RBR - SRS S
it is extinguished, discharged, cancelled or expires. i > LA R RS o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets

Classification and initial measurement of financial
assets

Except for those trade receivables that do not contain
a significant financing component and are measured
at the transaction price in accordance with HKFRS 15,
all financial assets are initially measured at fair value,
in case of a financial asset not at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”), plus transaction costs that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset.

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost.
The classification is determined by both:

- the entity’s business model for managing the
financial asset; and

— the contractual cash flow characteristics of the
financial asset.

Impairment losses on trade and other receivables are
presented as a separate line item in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of financial assets

Debt investments

Financial assets at amortised cost

Financial assets are measured at amortised cost if the
assets meet the following conditions (and are not
designated as FVTPL):

— they are held within a business model whose
objective is to hold the financial assets and collect
its contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assets give
rise to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECRZC=ZEANAZSTHILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EREFHECRMEE (5

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial instruments (Continued) 2.8 &R T H (4)
Financial assets (Continued) A R (5)
Subsequent measurement of financial assets (Continued) By A ()
Debt investments (Continued) 1 HE B B (%)
Financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) TR AR 748 Y 2 i 7 (7))

After initial recognition, these are measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.
Interest income from these financial assets is included
in “Other income” in profit or loss. Discounting is
omitted where the effect of discounting is immaterial.
The Group’s cash and cash equivalents and trade
and other receivables (excluding prepayments and
deposits paid for acquisition of property, plant and

AN WERRAR > %5 A I
Wit ) 2R 3k AR 9 PR AR it B -
S5 4ol E R B T AR 2R
R TIAMOA T o A 3T 3 A 5 2
WA > QA WEYTE - AL M
B 4 B B4 S AR DA B 5
At B WSROI (O £ 456 FELA 3k e
Wl 3 ~ W B i T 2 3%

equipment) fall into this category of financial assets. &) BWE R e TR -
Financial liabilities £ JER T

Classification and measurement of financial liabilities S I AR

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and ARSEE SRR AR S R
other payables and lease liabilities. Al A R I S AL B L o

Financial liabilities (other than lease liabilities) are
initially measured at fair value, and, where applicable,
adjusted for transaction costs unless the Group
designated a financial liability at FVTPL.

All interest-related charges are included within
finance costs.

Accounting policies of lease liabilities are set out in
note 2.5.

Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially
at their fair values and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.9 Impairment of financial assets

HKFRS 9’s impairment requirements use forward-
looking information to recognise expected credit
losses (“ECL”) — the “ECL model”. Instruments
within the scope included loans and other debt-type
financial assets measured at amortised cost and trade
receivables.

The Group considers a broader range of information
when assessing credit risk and measuring ECL,
including past events, current conditions, reasonable
and supportable forecasts that affect the expected
collectability of the future cash flows of the
instrument.

In applying this forward-looking approach, a
distinction is made between:

— financial assets that have not deteriorated
significantly in credit quality since initial
recognition or that have low credit risk (“Stage 1”);
and

— financial assets that have deteriorated significantly
in credit quality since initial recognition and
whose credit risk is not low (“Stage 2”).

“Stage 3” would cover financial assets that have
objective evidence of impairment at the end of the
reporting period.

“12-month ECL” are recognised for the Stage 1
category while “lifetime ECL” are recognised for the
Stage 2 category.

Measurement of the ECL is determined by a
probability-weighted estimate of credit losses over
the expected life of the financial asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. WREGHBORBEE ()

2.9 Al e WA (B0

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For trade receivables, the Group applies a simplified
approach in calculating ECL and recognises a loss
allowance based on lifetime ECL at the end of
each reporting period. These are the expected
shortfalls in contractual cash flows, considering
the potential for default at any point during the
life of the financial assets. In calculating the ECL,
the Group has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss experience and
external indicators, adjusted for forward-looking
factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the past due status.

The Group measures the loss allowance for other
receivables equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime
ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should
be recognised is based on significant increase in the
likelihood or risk of default occurring since initial
recognition.

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial assets at the end of the reporting period
with the risk of default occurring on the financial
assets at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

— an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial asset’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAAAZH IR

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.9 Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

- significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in regulatory,
business, financial, economic conditions, or
technological environment that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability
to meet its debt obligations; and

— an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at
the end of each reporting period. A debt instrument
is determined to have low credit risk if it has a low
risk of default, the borrower has strong capacity
to meet its contractual cash flow obligations in the
near term and adverse changes in economic and
business conditions in the longer term may, but will
not necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to
fulfill its contractual cash flow obligations.

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when (i)
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collateral held by the
Group); or (ii) the financial asset is 90 days past due.

Detailed analysis of the ECL assessment of trade
receivables and other financial assets measured at
amortised cost are set out in note 27.3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. WREGHBORBEE ()

2.10 Jh i ¥ AL WAL

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets

Property, plant and equipment (including right-of-
use assets), deposits paid for acquisition of property,
plant and equipment and investment in a subsidiary
in the statement of financial position of the Company,
are subject to impairment testing. They are tested for
impairment whenever there are indications that the

Yok ~ Wbs B s i (L35 158 bl
HRE) ~ MBS - R Kk
1 A %2 4 DL R AR 2 ) B AR
VLA A — [ P Jag 2 W] B e
JEEAT WA REAL - A BE R K
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asset’s carrying amount may not be recoverable. R AT Il (e P A
An impairment loss is recognised as an expense TR AL 4R 2 R TG PR Y AL

immediately for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount.
Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value,
reflecting market conditions less costs of disposal,
and value-in-use. In assessing value-in-use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessment of time value of
money and the risk specific to the asset.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, where
an asset does not generate cash inflows largely
independent from those from other assets,
the recoverable amount is determined for the
smallest group of assets that generate cash inflows
independently (i.e. a cash-generating unit). As
a result, some assets are tested individually for
impairment and some are tested at cash-generating
unit level. Corporate assets are allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, or

T W I < A 2R > B A R
F BASE o T WL [T G A A IR T
DA A AR U 5 A B £ 1
AW PR o A B
B > Al 5H R B & i B R
JA B B9 B R 7 B = K BUE >
L B IR i 5 2 £ W e ] 4
B B A LB A R A

F wt AN IRAE > A B I B A
R B b S I At E Y B
WA > T M [ 4 T R 2 T
o A B A i N B e /N
ALA (B B 4 s A BT ) B OE o
SN AP <9 Y D K e
efAl > 75 E o) 1R B 4 A B
ArREA o B AT A B % — 2
43 TC kB I > A W] A A
Tic 2418 ol i B 4 A HLAL >
S 7 43 T 2 T G B % — B

otherwise they are allocated to the smallest group 43 T ik Y A g5 /N B 4 A LA
of cash-generating units for which a reasonable and AL -

consistent allocation basis can be identified.

Impairment losses recognised for cash-generating AR s 188 i Lo ) B v 8 B 4

unit are charged on a pro rata basis to the assets in
the cash-generating unit except that the carrying
value of an asset will not be reduced below its
individual fair value less costs of disposal, if
measurable, or value-in-use, if determinable.

An impairment loss is reversed if there has been a
favourable change in the estimates used to determine
the asset’s recoverable amount and only to the extent
that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined,
net of depreciation or amortisation, if no impairment
loss had been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10 Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

2.11

Under the Listing Rules, the Group is required to
prepare an interim financial report in compliance
with HKAS 34 “Interim Financial Reporting” in
respect of the first six months of the financial year. At
the end of the interim period, the Group applies the
same impairment testing, recognition, and reversal
criteria as it would at the end of the financial year.

Inventories
Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net
realisable value.

Cost is calculated using the first-in-first-out method
and comprises all costs of purchase, costs of
conversion and other costs incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs
necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of
those inventories is recognised as an expense in the
period in which the related revenue is recognised.
The amount of write-down of inventories to net
realisable value and all losses of inventories are
recognised as an expense in the period the write-
down or loss occurs. The amount of any reversal
of any write-down of inventories is recognised as a
reduction in the amount of inventories recognised
as an expense in the period in which the reversal
occurs.

2.12 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at banks and
on hand, deposits held at call with banks and other
short-term highly liquid investments with original
maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13 Provision and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a
present (legal or constructive) obligation arising as
a result of a past event and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation and a reliable estimate of the
amount of the obligations can be made. Where the
time value of money is material, provisions are stated
at the present value of the expenditure expected to
settle the obligation.

All provisions are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current
best estimate.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
uncertain events not wholly within the control of
the Group are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

2.14 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Share capital
is determined using the nominal value of shares that
have been issued.

Any transaction costs associated with the issuing of
shares are deducted from share premium (net of any
related income tax benefit) to the extent they are
incremental costs directly attributable to the equity
transaction.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

2.15Employee benefits

Retirement benefits
Retirement benefits to employees are provided
through defined contribution plans.

The Group operates a defined contribution
retirement benefit plan under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for all of its
employees who are eligible to participate in the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“MPF Scheme”).
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries.

Contributions are recognised as an expense in profit
or loss as employees render services during the year.
The Group’s obligations under these plans are limited
to the fixed percentage contributions payable.

Short-term employee benefits

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Non-accumulating compensated absences such as
sick leave and maternity leave are not recognised
until the time of leave.

Long service payment

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed
the required number of years of service to the
Group in order to be eligible for long service
payment (“LSP”) under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their
employment. The Group is liable to make such
payment in the event that such a termination of
employment meets the circumstances specified in
the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. WREGHBORBEE ()

2.15Employee benefits (Continued) 2.15 @ A (50
Long service payment (Continued) TR 4 (40
The long service payment liabilities are the present T 30 M5 4 £ 08 % R M AT

value of LSP obligation less the entitlements accrued
under the Group’s defined contribution retirement
benefit plans that is attributable to contributions
made by the Group.

The Employment & Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amended Ordinance”) was gazetted on
17 June 2022, which will eventually abolish the use
of the accrued benefits of employers’ mandatory
contributions under the MPF System to offset
severance payment (“SP”) and LSP. The amendment
will come into effect prospectively from a date to be
determined by the Hong Kong Government, which
is expected to be in 2025 (the “Transition Date”).
Under the Amended Ordinance, the mandatory

Z B YA 4R [ 2 LR Ak
A 38 I AR P KR A
Z MEFIHERE o

LR T A A R R A T 1 A
i (HE 89 2 HF) (B 3T) el (48
BRI R ) R AR A
+-B H TR > o 5 4 g B 6l A
568 4 w1 T R o o ) e B K
1 it A i DA 1K 0 il 2 ([
Bt ) RIBEEA - sl
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P 5 R < w3tk B2

MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/negative A YE H IR W AT AT IE T T
returns thereof after the Transition Date can only o] S A2 T ) 41K B 8 8 0

be applied to offset the pre-Transition Date LSP
obligation but no longer eligible to offset the post-
Transition Date LSP obligation. Furthermore, the
LSP obligations before the Transition Date will be
grandfathered and calculated based on the last
monthly wages immediately preceding the Transition
Date.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when it recognises restructuring

RMREEM > BAHAERIK
BB H B ERSEM - 1
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A A A
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costs involving the payment of termination benefits. (AL T ) IRE R,
2.16 Government grants 2.16 BOR i B
Grants from the government are recognised at their B BB A £ B M R R BOR Al B 51

fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that
the grant will be received and the Group will comply
with all attached conditions. Government grants are
deferred and recognised in profit or loss over the
period necessary to match them with the costs that
the grants are intended to compensate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Government grants (Continued)

A government grant obtained by the Group for
acquisition of long-term asset is deemed to be
related to an asset. A government grant related to
an asset is recognised initially as deferred income
and amortised to other income in the same period
according to a reasonable, systematic approach by
instalments over the useful life of the asset.

Government grants relating to income is presented
in gross under “Other income” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

2.17 Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a customer
pays consideration, or is contractually required to
pay consideration and the amount is already due,
before the Group recognises the related revenue.
The Group recognised its contract liabilities under
“Trade and other payables” as receipts in advance in
the consolidated statement of financial position.

For a single contract with the customer, either a net
contract asset or a net contract liability is presented.
For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract
liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on
a net basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2. HORErHEORBEE (B0

2.18 Segment reporting 2.18 2B

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the consolidated financial

KRB o TR B ik A B 5 R T 2
Wz Ao W H A > TI B

statements, are identified from the financial WA LB VR T AR 4
information provided regularly to the Group’s most M [ 43 0 B Al G 3 B i 52
senior executive management for the purposes PRBE T A 5 v R A B B
of allocating resources to, and assessing the Z BRI AE

performance of, the Group’s various lines of business
and geographical locations.

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

2.19 Related parties

For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, a party is considered to be related to the
Group if:

(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and if that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

1181 1) R AL 3 TS 8 T
DBt B Rz M o> %
R o T B it S PR
M TR - &5 B S
J ~ g i B R A IR Y 5
VL3 B A TR A AR 4 A
e 2 Ja A0 > B Bl o AR
) A Y A A I R AT
VL R A > B AT Rt
Hy 43 ER o

2.19 B I

W% AR A M B R > AT
B VAR R AN b B A5 B AR
S A B B

(@) ZANLRFFEUTHRMAEA
TRBEERBRE - HZA
+

(i) BFAC G A 2 o B i 3

[v] e Tl R 5
(ii) has significant influence over the Group; or (i) BAREEAGEREE ;
B

(iii)is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of the
Group.

(iii) 2% A< 45 ) mle A 45 [ B 2
AR EE MG E o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

BE_F =

HEAH=Z1HIREE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity and if any of the following

conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group.

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which the
other entity is a member).

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of
the same third party.

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity
and the other entity is an associate of the
third entity.

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan
for the benefit of employees of either the
Group or an entity related to the Group.

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by
a person identified in (a).

(vii)a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of
the key management personnel of the entity
(or of a parent of the entity).

(vii)the entity, or any member of a group of
which it is a part, provides key management
personnel services to the Group or to the
Group’s parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those
family members who may be expected to influence,
or be influenced by, that person in their dealings
with the entity.

2. WREGHBORBEZE ()

2.19 By (41)
(b) ZALHEBEFAUTHE
fu e

(i) TR AEE S —
EMI R E AT -

(i) — B2 o5 — F R Y
W A ) B A 38 (B
sy e SR R B 2 T
AT A B > Wiz
g;%%%%%@&

(iii) 7% B B R A 45 ) Oy ] —
BTG ERE -

(iv) —fIf B 88 2 S5 = B
B A A3 > T —
TR =T HE W

B A o

(v) % T i A 4 ) i B
A A I M 2 s
BRI 2 % o Y B R AR
At o

(i) ZEHEH &R Q)HEH
%gi@%%ﬁ%ﬁ%
| o

(Vi) ¥ (a) (i) 35 W W S &
BEHEEREELAZE
(B A E])
§$E%@@&EMA

(viii) % B B8 ol I Py i 4 2.
FEAT B B A W] 1) A4 [
BOAS 4 [ B 0wl R 3
AN B R -

A1 3t N\ 4 3 S B H 3 B %
TR AL By By PR W] 58 B A\
gﬁ%ﬁ@%Ai%@%%%ﬁ

158 Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANA=ZTHIEEE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs AND 3. FRAHIRT BB A s W

CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES i ] e £ whBOR i 5
3.1 Amended HKFRSs that are effective for annual 3.1 RBAE-EH - H B4R
periods beginning on 1 July 2022 JEE 0 [P0 A 0 2 48 06 i A B 5
]

In the current year, the Group has applied for the first
time the following amended HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA, which are relevant to the Group’s operations
and effective for the Group’s consolidated financial
statements for the annual period beginning on 1 July

TAARAEBE » AR IR T 51
H7 W Bl 1 A 2 R AERT
U I it Y L > 5 S e Y B
AL Z BEAR > WAL
PEF LA HBRZAE

2022: BES M) 2 Ay B s R A 2K
Amendments to HKAS 12 International Tax Reform — WL I 4 —
Pillar Two Model Rules 1255 (13T A) L3Iy ]
AR
Amendments to HKAS 16  Property, Plant and B EHEN W3k ~ Wi Rk
Equipment — Proceeds e (EiTA)  H-HEmE
before Intended Use il A B e kO
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost W EEHEL REAH - BT
of Fulfilling a Contract FITWETA) AR
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to BB HRER BRI
HKFRS Standards 2018- (CHEN HHIZR—N
2020 FEREZRCR
AP Z AR
o
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the BWME R R MSERSH
Conceptual Framework 3% (BT A)
Accounting Guideline5  Merger Accounting for kR 158559 SR B Y
(Revised) Common Control (B1E3T) Ll EiR/A

Combinations

The adoption of the amended HKFRSs had no material
impact on how the results and financial position of
the Group for the current and prior periods have
been prepared and presented.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, certain new and amended
HKFRSs have been published but are not yet effective,
and have not been adopted early by the Group.

3. TRAVHET B ARG T 7 U S
e B it BOR i 5 0 (5)

3.2 CUAU R 0 AR A 20 7 8 S 5 ik

il

A RE % S hR B B R E H
A TR M KA T A s S A
e FU 2 CLARAT H R A 2K > HLAE
SHERA SR B PR A -

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts and related BEMEREEA  RRADLRMEEET
amendments’ 7%

Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between TR A REERHRE AT

and HKAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint FORRTHE Gy-the b=
Venture? At 285 R
(CHEN;
Amendments to HKFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback? BEMER A ERHEHE AR
CAIGAUHEN]

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or a1 AGRSEANER
Non-current and related amendments (BT ) JEEN R ki
to Hong Kong Interpretation 5 pillrail I HE

Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with Covenants FEaRAE Y RO

(CHEN; f i

Amendments to HKAS 1 and Disclosure of Accounting Policies' FlEE A EBURZ

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 RAWIB R
iy
WAL
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance Arrangement? FWEHENE7E AR 2
HKFRS 7 BB R
ﬁﬁﬂ%’?ﬁ(f’%ﬂ
)
Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates’ BBEHENSEeE  aaiEtE R
(CHEN;

Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and AR  HE-RAEENEE
Liabilities arising from a Single VACTIEN REEH R L
Transaction’ BUE'

1

2

3

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024

Effective date not yet determined

TR IZFIDE4E A HRZ RGN

BT A3
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BT A 2%

S RBH IR E

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZREHANAZTHIRGER

3. TRAVHET B ARAB T 7 U S
I e € it BOR i 5 B (%)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Issued but not yet effective HKFRSs (Continued) 3.2 CLAU 4L i A A 280 7 8 S

The directors anticipate that all of the
pronouncements will be adopted in the Group’s
accounting policy for the first period beginning on
or after the effective date of the pronouncement.
Information on new and amended HKFRSs that are
expected to have impact on the Group’s accounting
policies is provided below. Other new and amended
HKFRSs are not expected to have a material impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

3.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism

In June 2022, the Government of the Hong Kong
SAR (the “Government”) gazetted the Hong Kong
Employment and Retirement Schemes Legislation
(Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”), which will
eventually abolish the statutory right of an employer
to reduce its long service payment (“LSP”) and
severance payment payable to a Hong Kong
employee by drawing on its mandatory contributions
to the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) scheme
(also known as the “offsetting mechanism”). The
Government has subsequently announced that the
Amendment Ordinance will come into effect from
1 May 2025 (the “Transition Date”). Separately, the
Government is also expected to introduce a subsidy
scheme to assist employers after the abolition.

Among other things, once the abolition of the
offsetting mechanism takes effect, an employer can
no longer use any of the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory MPF contributions (irrespective
of the contributions made before, on or after the
Transition Date) to reduce the LSP in respect of
an employee’s service from the Transition Date.
However, where an employee’s employment
commenced before the Transition Date, the employer
can continue to use the above accrued benefits to
reduce the LSP in respect of the employee’s service
up to that date; in addition, the LSP in respect of the
service before the Transition Date will be calculated
based on the employee’s monthly salary immediately
before the Transition Date and the years of service up
to that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BECZC=HEANA=ZTHIREE

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND AMENDED HKFRSs
AND CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

3.3 New HKICPA guidance on the accounting

implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism (Continued)

In July 2023, the HKICPA published “Accounting
implications of the abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting
mechanism in Hong Kong” that provides guidance
on the accounting considerations relating to the
offsetting mechanism and the abolition of the
mechanism. In particular, the guidance indicates that
entities may account for the accrued benefits derived
from its mandatory MPF contributions that are
expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable to an
employee as deemed contributions by that employee
towards the LSP. However, applying this approach,
upon the enactment of the Amendment Ordinance
in June 2022, it is no longer permissible to apply the
practical expedient in paragraph 93(b) of HKAS 19
“Employee Benefits” and recognise such deemed
contributions as reduction of current service cost in
the period the related service is rendered, and any
impact from ceasing to apply the practical expedient is
recognised as a catch-up adjustment in profit or loss
with a corresponding adjustment to the LSP liability
during the year ended 30 June 2023.

In these consolidated financial statements and in prior
periods, consistent with the HKICPA guidance, the
Group has been accounting for the accrued benefits
derived from its mandatory MPF contributions that
are expected to be used to reduce the LSP payable
to an employee as deemed employee contributions
towards the LSP. However, the Group has been
applying the abovementioned practical expedient.

The Group has assessed the implications of this
new guidance on the above accounting policies and
has decided to change those accounting policies
to conform with the guidance. The management
has commenced the processes on implementing
the change including additional data collection and
impact assessment. However, the impact of the
change is not reasonably estimable at the time these
consolidated financial statements are authorised
for issue, as the Group has yet to fully complete its
assessment of the impact of the HKICPA guidance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in note 2, management is
required to make estimates and assumptions about
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical
experiences and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed
on an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision
affects both current and future periods.

Estimation uncertainty

The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets within the next financial year are discussed
below:

Depreciation charges of property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets)

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, after taking into account the estimated residual
value, if any.

The Group regularly reviews the condition of property,
plant and equipment (i.e. whether it is available for use)
as well as the estimated useful lives of the assets in order
to determine the amount of depreciation expense to be
recorded during each financial year. The useful lives are
based on the Group’s historical experience with similar
assets and taking into account anticipated technological
changes. The depreciation expense for future periods is
adjusted if there are significant changes from previous
estimates. Carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is set out in note 13.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

wE

4.

SR EHEANASTHIRERE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)
ECL assessment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes allowances on items subjects to ECL on
trade and other receivables based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Group uses
judgement in making these assumptions and selecting
the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on the
Group'’s historical credit loss experience, existing market
conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the
end of each reporting period as set out in note 2.9.

When the actual future cash flows are different from
expected, such difference will impact the carrying amount
of trade receivables and other items within the scope
of ECL under HKFRS 9 and credit losses in the periods
in which such estimate has been changed. For the year
ended 30 June 2023, the impairment losses of HK$36,000
and HK$Nil (2022: HK$59,000 and HK$Nil) were recognised
on trade receivables and other receivables, respectively.
Carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are set
out in note 16.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

If circumstances indicate that the net book value of a
property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) (note 13) may not be recoverable, these assets may
be considered as “impaired” and an impairment loss may
be recognised in accordance with HKAS 36 “Impairment
of Assets” (“HKAS 36”). The carrying amounts of property,
plant and equipment (including right-of-use assets) are
reviewed periodically in order to assess whether the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit have
declined below the carrying amounts. These assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their recorded carrying
amounts may not be recoverable. When such a decline
has occurred, the carrying amount is reduced to the
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit is the higher of the fair value less
costs of disposal and the value-in-use. It is difficult to
precisely estimate selling prices because quoted market
prices for the Group’s assets are not readily available.
In determining the value-in-use, expected cash flows
generated by the assets from the cash-generating
unit are discounted to their present value, which
requires significant estimation relating to the growth
rates and discount rates. The Group uses all readily
available information in determining an amount that is
a reasonable approximation of recoverable amount of
the cash-generating units, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections
of revenue growth rates and discount rates. During the
year ended 30 June 2023, impairment loss of HK$9,112,000
was recognised on property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use-assets) (2022: no impairment loss
in respect of property, plant and equipment (including
right-of-use assets) was recognised).

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

Bz

4.

CROEZHEANAZTHIRERE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Write-down of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying
amounts of inventories with reference to aged
inventories analysis, historical consumption trends and
management judgement. Based on this review, write-
down of inventories will be made when the carrying
amounts of inventories decline below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in market trends, actual
consumption may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by accuracy of this estimation.
Write-down of slowing-moving inventories amounted to
HK$628,000 (2022: HK$583,000) was recognised during the
year ended 30 June 2023. Carrying amount of inventories
is set out in note 15.

Deferred tax

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$37,985,000 (2022: HK$18,190,000) and HK$1,303,000
(2022: HK$1,266,000), respectively, available for offset
against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses
have no expiry dates. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of those tax losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

The realisability of the deferred tax asset mainly depends
on whether sufficient future profits or taxable temporary
differences will be available in the future. In cases where
the actual future profits generated are less or more than
expected, a material reversal or further recognition of
deferred tax assets may arise, which would be recognised
in the profit or loss for the period in which such a
reversal or further recognition takes place. Deferred tax
assets relating to certain temporary differences and tax
losses are recognised when management considers it
is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the temporary differences or tax losses can
be utilised.

Income tax

The Group is subject to income taxes in jurisdictions
in which the Group operates. Significant judgement is
required in determining the provision for income taxes.
There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. Where the
final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions in
the year in which such determination is made. Details of
income tax are set out in note 10.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

Critical accounting judgements

Determination of the lease term in lease contracts and
discount rate

In determining the lease term, management considers all
facts and circumstances that create an economic incentive
to exercise an extension options, or not exercise a
termination option. Factors considered include:

e contractual terms and conditions for the optional
periods compared with market rates (e.g. whether the
amount of payments in the optional periods is below
the market rates);

¢ the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by
the Group; and

e costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g.
relocation costs, costs of identifying another
underlying asset suitable for the Group’s needs).

Extension options (or periods after termination options)
are only included in the lease term if the lease is
reasonably certain to be extended (or not terminated),
which in turn affect the carrying amounts of lease
liabilities and corresponding right-of-use assets.

In determining the discount rate, the Group is required
to exercise considerable judgement in relation to
determining the discount rate taking into account
the nature of the underlying assets and the terms and
conditions of the leases, at both the commencement date
and effective date of the modification.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

Revenue

All of the Group’s revenue and operating profit are
generated from manufacturing and sale of apparel
labels and packaging printing products, and sale and
distribution of food, daily necessities and utility products,
net of any trade discounts. Revenue are generally
recognised at a point in time when the customers obtain
control of the promised goods in the contract.

The amount of revenue recognised is as follows:

Sale of apparel labels and packaging
printing products

Sale of food, daily necessities and
utility products

Segment information

The chief operating decision maker is the Board of
the Company. The Group has identified the following
reportable segments for the years ended 30 June 2023 and
2022:

(a) Printing — manufacturing and sales of apparel labels
and packaging printing products

(b) Food and daily necessities — sale and distribution of
food, daily necessities and utility products

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments
other than unallocated corporate expenses.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANAZTHIEEE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. ok Be sy ROR (3
(CONTINUED)
Segment information (Continued) 5y MR OB (B0
All assets are allocated to reportable segments other than A 4 4y WL 2 AT R o M
unallocated head office and corporate assets; and all AR 43 e 2 8 K A ) A B R A o
liabilities are allocated to reportable segments other than P A SR 4 L 2 W) 2 s o M
unallocated head office and corporate liabilities. A3 TE 2 H8HR B oy W) AR I BRAD
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue, VAR 2 A 45 [ 4% v 52 i 43 0 ) 43 1Y
results, assets and liabilities by reportable segments: Wi ~ R4 - EE R AT
2023 - s
Food
and daily
Printing necessities Total
BB R H B
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T#T T#xL T#x
Revenue Wess
— From external customers —REINEEF 45,398 9,016 54,414
— From other segment — 3K A HoAth 43R 163 - 163
Reportable segment revenue W 223 45,561 9,016 54,577
Reportable segment loss LE-E: g9 7 (24,234) (478) (24,712)
Interest income FLEWA 1,176 2 1,178
Depreciation g
- owned property, plantand — HB#¥% - W&
equipment B 2,437 443 2,880
- right-of-use assets — i FIREE 7,466 244 7,710
Finance costs Al AR 631 12 693
Gain on early termination of #RE &L Z K2
lease 494 - 494
Impairment loss on trade 1 5y W WK VL 4 A R 1R
receivables 36 - 36
Impairment loss on non- 45 Tl ¥ W VAR AP s 4
financial assets 9,112 - 9,112
Write down of slow-moving #8117 5
inventories 628 - 628
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Wi B o iR (D)
(CONTINUED)
Segment information (Continued) 2y MR (B0
2022 TR
Food
and daily
Printing necessities Total
BRI i H A
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T#T T#T
Revenue Wess
— From external customers — R AN E 69,662 5,848 75,510
— From other segment — 3K A HoAth 43R 348 - 348
Reportable segment revenue W 223 70,010 5,848 75,858
Reportable segment loss CE%: &g 7 (350) (2,455) (2,805)
Interest income A 77 - 77
Depreciation g
- owned property, plantand — HB&¥¥% - W5
equipment P& 2,696 288 2,984
- right-of-use assets — R A 3,158 242 3,400
Finance costs Pl AR 320 22 342
Gain on disposal of property, W& - BE KN
plant and equipment Wk 1,020 - 1,020
Impairment loss on trade 1 5 W WK VL 4 A M 1R
receivables 59 - 59
Write down of slow-moving #8175 #uk
inventories 583 - 583
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=HEAAZTHILERE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Wik % i E R (48)
(CONTINUED)
Segment information (Continued) 2y MR (B0
2023 B Y

Food
and daily
Printing necessities Total

A S H B ook

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

T-#I T-#IC T

Reportable segment assets W 2 /i1 ¥ At 60,555 4,646 65,201
Additions to non-current A VN B I ) 43 R A

segment assets during the

year 8,837 517 9,354
Reportable segment liabilities W 5 ¥t 2> ¥ i £1 % (75,957) (7,844) (83,801)
2022 TR

Food
and daily
Printing necessities Total

BRI fr il % H A EX
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T#T T T#T

Reportable segment assets [EE: Tigt )¢ 88,739 3,763 92,502
Additions to non-current AR A B IR E) 2 A

segment assets during the
year 10,330 1,919 12,249

Reportable segment liabilities ™ 25t/ % i) £ 1 (79,017) (6,533) (85,550)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BREZRCEZENAZTHIREE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

5. Wi B o iR (D)

Segment information (Continued) 5y MR (B0
Reconciliation of reportable segment revenue, results, R - R BAERA
assets and liabilities: R AR B %

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#L T
Revenue ot
Reportable segment revenue CIE-+ &g Ll 54,577 75,858
Elimination of inter-segment revenue 43P A i i g K 8 (163) (348)
Consolidated revenue LT € 54,414 75,510

2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T-#I T

Loss [ i
Reportable segment loss CIEX: T a:1Y i (24,712) (2,805)
Unallocated corporate expenses, net  AR4MHL i 3 2 F 34 (1,611) (1,275)
Consolidated loss before income tax R8BI & OFE 1E (26,323) (4,080)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. Wi B o W R (D)
(CONTINUED)
Segment information (Continued) 2y MR (B0
2023 2022
R AR R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T#T
Assets ¥
Reportable segment assets LIE -t gigi<y:s 65,201 92,502
Unallocated head office and corporate A4}t ity 4881 23 W] &
assets 60,517 60,958
Eliminated upon consolidation £ N MR IR 8 (64,921) (64,471)
Consolidated total assets S E 60,797 88,989
Liabilities £
Reportable segment liabilities CIEX 5 s =L (83,801) (85,550)
Unallocated head office and corporate A4}t i 48 3B 1 23 W] £
liabilities (164) (192)
Eliminated upon consolidation FR A A HE P2 8 64,921 64,471
Consolidated total liabilities GO A (19,044) (21,271)
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fn e MBS HRMEE

For

the year ended 30 June 2023

BEFZZHEANA=ZTHIMEE

5.

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of the Group’s revenue. The
geographical location of revenue is based on the location
in which the customer is located.

Hong Kong (place of domicile) & ()
South Korea R
Vietnam ]
United States e
Taiwan £
China [
Indonesia EN R e v R
India ENBE
Bangladesh EyIE0A
Macau M

El Salvador BERT FLZ
Others HoAl

All property, plant and equipment of the Group
(“specified non-current assets”) are physically located in
Hong Kong.

Major customers

There is no single external customer contributed more
than 10% of the total revenue to the Group’s revenue for
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

“
5. cd Kooy ROR (3
SR
T B A 3 0 L
B RORY - I3 2 7 £ I T DL %
A M 2 T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T
16,940 16,737
8,266 14,329
6,753 7,635
6,144 6,018
5,470 7,371
3,920 5,156
1,690 3,216
1,599 1,624
986 1,488
843 5,298
616 3,415
1,187 3,223
54,414 75,510

A W i AT 3 ~ B e st (4
SE B G E |) AR AU

FHEER
BECRSERTETTEANA
=+ HIEEE > R A E S
Z ARG AR B 2% 10% DA L -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

6. OTHER INCOME

Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Gain on early termination of lease

Government subsidy (note)

Interest income

Net exchange gain

Others

Note:

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group received funding support
amounting to HK$592,000 (2022: HK$1,180,000) from the Employment Support
Scheme (“ESS”) under the Anti-epidemic Fund, set up by the Hong Kong
Government. The purpose of the funding is to provide financial support to
enterprises to retain their employees who would otherwise be made redundant.
Under the terms of the ESS, the Group is required not to make redundancies
during the subsidy period and to spend all the funding on paying wages to the

employees.
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2023 2022
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HK$’000 HK$'000
T T-H#oC

HEYE - B R 2 Wk
- 1,020
PEZ M EZ WS 494 -
Bl B (B RE) 592 1,180
FEMA 1,183 77
B S0 AR 454 441
oAt 129 138
2,852 2,856

Wk
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BECROZENAZTHIREE - REERF
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fn e MBS HRMEE

For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

7. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

The Group’s loss before income tax is arrived at after

charging/(crediting):

(@) Staff costs (including directors’ remuneration)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7. BRBTR B R

1#) THIAIH -

() BT (WihEdme)

2023
~F°=

HKS000
T

A T 3% P 550 i 4R B (1]

2022

0

HK$'000

T

(note 8) (note (i) (H¥k: 8) (BB E (i)
Salaries, allowances and other benefits (note (i)~ Fr ~ B AR (T (i) 25,481 25,119
Contributions to defined contribution retirement  F& BB fkit #14%

plans 861 833
26,342 25,952
(b) Finance costs (b) AHEHA
Interest on lease liabilities HLE R AR B 693 342
(c) Other items () JtBsH
Depreciation (note (i)): it (it (i) : N
— owned property, plant and equipment N E N VYT 2,880 2,984
- right-of-use assets — iR 7,710 3,400
10,590 6,364
Auditor’s remuneration: BT -
— audit services - HUME 618 600
- non-audit services -k EIRE 350 300
) ) 968 900
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense, T A S A R U (B 2 (7)) 8 -
(note (i) including: ) i X 45,016 52,901
— write down of slow-moving inventories — A B (W T 15)
(note 15) ‘ i 628 563
Impairment loss on trade receivables (note 16(b) & 5 REWCR MW I (FFak
16(b)) 36 59
Impairment loss on non-financial assets (note 13) 3&%&&%&@?@@%{&(%‘{ 13) 9,112 -
Gain on early termination of lease & LS Z g ‘ (494) -
Gain on disposal of property, plant and M - BB R Wi
equipment - X - (1,020)
Lease charges on short-term leases (note (i) WSO EE R (o) 232 4,508
Marketing services fee i S 4,630 4,839
Subcontracting charges (note (i)) A (EE () 2,777 5,148
Note: B =
(i)  For the year ended 30 June 2023, cost of inventories includes HK$13,341,000 () BEZB =N =1 HIREER > FIK
(2022: HK$13,229,000) relating to staff costs, HK$6,666,000 (2022: HK$3,276,000) A AL SLE TR B 113,347,000 58 (—
relating to depreciation, HK$2,777,000 (2022: HK$5,148,000) relating to T4 (13,229,000 W) ~ BLTE AR
subcontracting charges and HK$Nil (2022: HK$4,030,000) relating to short- 6,666,000 7T (& " 4F = 3,276,00098) ~
term lease charges, which amounts are also included in the respective total ﬁﬁ@‘itﬂﬁ‘ﬁﬁﬂgﬁZJW_OOO%m(g“ g
amounts disclosed separately above for each of these types of expenses. 4 @ 5,148,000% 7C) Rﬁéﬂ?ﬂfﬁ%ﬁfﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬂ‘]
FH o (TR T TA4F 1 4,030,000800) > %54
I3 SO 491 % B i B8 e 9 A
AEHN
(i)  For the year ended 30 June 2023, the directors’ quarters have been recognised (i) BEZBCSAENASTHIMEE  #fmdg
as lease liabilities and corresponding right-of-use asset. The depreciation CLfEs0 A FL 55 E A0 RO R T RE S 7 o B
and lease payments in respect of the relevant right-of-use asset and lease JRRE 22 B 8 A B A AR L B ks o Tl 2
liabilities amounted to HK$1,818,000 (2022: HK$1,824,000) and HK$1,920,000 818,000 7 (% — 4F  1,824,000376) &

-
|

(2022: HK$1,920,000), respectively. ,920,000%# G (%~ 4F : 1,920,000 0) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8.
EMOLUMENTS

Remuneration of the directors and chief executive officer
disclosed pursuant to section 383(1) of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors)
Regulation, is as follows:

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits
in kind

Fees %4 Hlik
s T

HKS$'000
Fitn

HK$000
T

2023

Executive directors (note (a)):

Mr Samson Fung (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr David Fung

Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

Independent non-executive
directors:

Dr Loke Yu

Ms Fung Po Yee

Dr Sung Ting Yee

2022

Executive directors (note (a)):

Mr Samson Fung (Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer)

Mr David Fung

Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

Independent non-executive
directors:

Dr Loke Yu

Ms Fung Po Yee

Dr Sung Ting Yee

“F°=
BTEF (k)
IR
(LRFITRAR)
B
RS

Badefas

Bk 1
Ly e
N STAL AN

e S
WrEH (it
IR
(ERFATRER)
LDy hin
BRMSEE

BILAGES -
HE AR

Bt
N ST E

o R AT AR 4

MRS 8 20 W] R 1 56 383 (1) R &
] (4 8 2 0 2 R} B 36 230 4%
FRRYH S RATBORM ST

Retirement

Discretionary scheme
bonuses contributions
WA ke
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T

Total
ik
HK$'000
T

- 2,153 - 18 2,171
- 2,153 - 18 2,171
- 1,193 - 18 1,211
132 - - - 132
132 - - - 132
132 - - - 132
3% 5,499 - 54 5,949
- 2153 - 18 2171
- 2153 - 18 2171
- 1193 . 18 1,211
12 . . - 122
12 . . - 122
12 . . - 122
366 5,499 - 54 5919
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i & M 5 I RO o
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S 8. YR AT WA N & ()

EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Notes: B =

(@) Included in the directors’ remuneration were rental benefits for (a)
accommodation provided to Mr Samson Fung and Mr David Fung
totalling HK$1,920,000 (2022: HK$1,920,000), represented by HK$960,000
(2022: HK$960,000) to each of the directors during the year ended 30 June
2023. The directors’ quarters have been recognised as lease liabilities and
corresponding right-of-use assets as set out in note 7(ii).

(b) The remuneration of directors are determined by the remuneration (b)
committee with regards to the performance of individuals and market trends.

BECRDEAENH T HIREE > AR B
WG 3L RS A e U SO S 2 S A A3 e R 960,000
WL (ZR 4 1 960,000%58) » At
1,920,000%5 70 (= . 4F- : 1,920,000%0) »
AR ECF AERHH o HFH & OHER S
LT BRI P L7 (i) P o v B £k R 7 o

%i%ﬁ@ﬂ FH T T 22 43 N\ 4 3 B T i 3

9. INDIVIDUALS WITH HIGHEST EMOLUMENTS 9. 5 vl b A A L
The five highest paid individuals of the Group include BEF=ZHANA=Z1THILE
three (2022: three) directors for the year ended 30 June BE > A AR [ A B v N L LS
2023, whose emoluments are disclosed in note 8. The SHRER(CEZ =) o W
aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining GZHM O R ER - iR TR &
two (2022: two) individuals are as follows: éﬁ:ygiiﬁf TR AN o ] R
nr:

2023 2022
e S —F

HK$’000 HK$'000

T T

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ~ #4 ~ HH K EW R 25 1,524 1,433

Retirement scheme contributions ARG S Atk 36 36
1,560 1,469

The above individuals’ emoluments are within the Fi N EZ 40 FHEE -

following bands:

Number of individuals

AN¥

2023 2022
Emolument band o I o 2]
HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZW#I6%1,000,000% 70 2 2
There was no arrangement during the years ended 30 BRECFR =R HENH
June 2023 and 2022, under which a director or the five =+ HIREE  EEEA LR
highest paid individuals waived or agreed to waive any T . - HBE 0 AR 4% v 22 B e B [
remuneration, and no emoluments were paid by the E AL HI > ASHE B P
Group to the directors or the five highest paid individuals Fuk 145 Fe i 07 N b S A AT A T
as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group, or as & > DA Ay A AR 45 [ = A A B2
compensation for loss of office. VA A8 A 8 A 2 R
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10. INCOME TAX CREDIT

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis
on profits arising in or derived from the jurisdictions in
which members of the Group are domiciled and operate.

Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the Cayman
Islands and the BVI, the Group is not subject to any
income tax in the Cayman Islands and the BVI.

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made
for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022 as the Group
had no estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong.

Taxation in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income represents:

Deferred tax (note 20) EHERLIE (P 5E 20)
— Recognised in profit or loss — R AE A
Total income tax credit P45 86 ] 4% 8 7

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4£#

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANAZTHIEEE

10. PrisBt ml 35

A5 [ R AR 4 T 1 B A W) B AE e
AR 2 ) 0 i ORI Y )
R BIEBAN RS BL -

L8 ) 2 s I S R L s O L
S R KL > A [ B RO B 2 B
T 5 o L B B AR AT AT I A

R AREEREE B =4 K
FOHENHZ=ZTHIREEN EALE
B E AT R > FER
A SRR PR -

Ao fH i N Lt 2 T WA A A 2 BEIH

¥ -

2023 2022
SRS RO
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#T
(358) (245)

(358) (245)
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fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023

wE

10. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED)

11.

12.

TR EEANHS T HIRERE

Reconciliation between accounting loss and tax credit at
applicable tax rate is as follows:

10.

Loss before income tax Wi B 455 i s 1R

Tax at the applicable tax rate Fm B ARG 2 B

Tax effect of non-taxable income BB Z BB B

Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AL B S 2 LB i B

Utilisation of tax losses previously not B e i AR BT e 4R
recognised

Tax effect of tax losses not recognised AR 2 BUE G 2 BB B

Tax effect of deductible temporary ARHERZ B I 2R
differences not recognised BB B

Income tax credit P38 ol 5%

DIVIDENDS 11.

The Board does not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share is
based on the loss attributable to equity owners of the
Company of HK$25,965,000 (2022: HK$3,835,000) and
the weighted average of 184,000,000 (2022: 184,000,000)
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the years ended 30 June 2023
and 2022 equate the basic loss per share as the Group
had no potential dilutive ordinary shares in issue during
the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

12.

K ATk G

e 1R B P B R R B
M IR

2023 2022
. S N o
HK$/000 HK$'000
T Tl
(26,323) (4,080)
(4,343) (673)
(310) (400)
1,023 169
- (194)
3,266 843
6 10
(358) (245)
I B

R EERIRMNERE R =
ERZFEDTHEANA=ZTHIEE
AT B,

I 1

9 1B L A K 4 9 s 1R R AR AR AR
v HE S B N\ MEAG 5 125,965,000
Wt (ZF T4 ¢ 3,835,00090)
M B 347 19184,000,000 % (—F
£ 1 184,000,000/8 ) 3 8 JE A i 4 <
YRGS -

HAREEREE - =K
FCCHEANA=ZTHIEEERED
BITEBAEE S ER > WERESR
ZERER RO CHEANA=ZTHIE
gg%@&ﬁ%%@%%ﬁ&%ﬁ
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Cost

At 1July 2021

Additions

Disposals

Entering into a new lease (note (a))

At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022

Additions

Entering into a new lease (note (a))
Early termination of lease (note (b))
Lease modification (note (c))

At 30 June 2023

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

At 1 July 2021

Charge for the year

Written back on disposal

At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022
Charge for the year
Impairment loss (note (d))

Written back on early termination
of lease (note (b))

At 30 June 2023

Net book value
At 30 June 2023

At 30 June 2022

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

JA

BW_Z_—FELtH—H

e

&

AT B (k)

REZZEAAZTAR
B S £ Rl

e

AT B (Wt ()

fRRA L E (kb))

MEBT (W)

REZTZEAAZTN
Rt Rwkfi

REFZ-FLA-H
R
]

RERZZERAZTAR
“ETTEEA-H

P

Wl (it ()

R LB 2
(HriE(b)

REBZZEAAZTH

I 8
RoZZHEAR=TH

AAZTH

A -

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

13. 9038 ~ Wb B el

Furniture
and
Plant and Motor fixtures Office Leased

machinery  vehicles  f#fl% equipment properties Total
W RS Wl EeRE WAERM  AEHE B
HK$/000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T i T Tl Tl Tl
37,837 2756 2797 6,701 4110 54201
340 - 777 863 - 1,980
(6,077) - - - - (6,077)
- - - - 10,269 10,269
32,100 2756 3,574 7564 4379 60373
76 - - 2743 - 2819
- - - 2401 - 2,401
i} i} - 31 - BB
i} _ _ . 4134 4134
2,176 2,756 3,574 9571 18513 66,59
30,857 273 2567 4324 9B 41412
2973 24 275 891 2921 6,384
(6,077) - - - - (6,077)
27,053 2,756 2,842 5,215 383 41719
1,814 - 182 1,398 7,196 10,590
2422 . 3 2,906 3,781 9,112
- - - (2,081) - (2,081)
31,289 2,756 3,027 7438 14830 59,340
887 - 547 2,133 3,683 7,250
5,047 - 73 2349 10526 18654
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

182

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the total additions to right-of-use assets
included in property, plant and equipment amounting to approximately
HK$2,401,000 (2022: HK$10,269,000). The details in relation to these leases are
set out in note 19.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group terminated an existing lease
contract in relation to office equipment of right-of-use assets included
in property, plant and equipment with carrying amount of approximately
HK$1,056,000.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group entered into lease
modification contracts with lessors to revise the terms of the tenancy
agreements. As the lease modification does not add the right to use one or
more underlying assets, it is not accounted for as a separate lease.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the Group recorded operating losses
due to uncertainty in global economic outlook and persistent geo-political
and economic tensions between China and the United States, which results
in customers placing orders with a cautious approach. As a result, the
management conducted an impairment review together with the assistance
of an independent valuer, and assessed the recoverable amounts of non-
financial assets from both cash-generating unit of printing segment (the
“Printing CGU”) and the cash-generating unit of food and daily necessities
segment (the “Food CGU”) which refer to the current market situation and
estimated cash flow of the Group as basis. The recoverable amounts of such
assets were determined based on value-in-use calculations. Key inputs to
the determination of the recoverable amounts of the Printing CGU and Food
CGU include revenue growth rates and discount rates.

The CGUs were tested for impairment as there are indications that the assets’
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The revenue growth rates and pre-
tax discount rate used to determine the recoverable amounts of Printing
CGU are ranging from 2.7% to 4.9% and approximately 15%, respectively. The
recoverable amounts of such assets as at 30 June 2023 were approximately
HK$5,762,000. As the recoverable amounts of such assets in the Printing CGU
are lower than their carrying amounts, the impairment losses of HK$9,112,000
was recognised on property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets). The Food CGU was also separately assessed and no impairment loss
was recognised on property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) as at 30 June 2023.

No impairment loss was recognised on property, plant and equipment
(including right-of-use assets) for the year ended 30 June 2022.

As at 30 June 2023 and 2022, included in the net carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment are right-of-use
assets as follows:

13.

Yok ~ Wb Bl (40
ik -

(a) WMEEZ=ENAZTHILEE > 5EAD
% B SRk 4 RE B AR B AR
#2,401,000%7C (= = 4F = 10,269,000 %
J0) o A BHRE R MR RS B R o

(b) BECRTEAEANHESTHIRERE » REHK
W —JE R A - B B A R
BRI A SRS A A RIRE AR S
1,056,000%57C °

(0 BMEZFZSAEANASAHIMER > AGEHR
AT A BSR40 > DLEHT AL ik Y
AR o PR S0 AT N S0 B8 5 P — R s
fgﬁﬁﬁgéﬁﬁ%ﬂ > WL S 4 A MR B A1 8 S A

(d) |MEZFBZ=EEANASAHIRERE > fR 2R
AT S5 AS WY T S v S 2 R VY M0 AR BT e
RIS B > BEE S DA R AT
A4 B S5 R 4R o TR AT B g A o £
B i B AT AR S > W 2275 T T DL
2SS T A B 4 A AT e i R AN B 43
VIR 4 e LA T B B 2 2 AL ) e £ i
B FH b 23 8 B A A ([ o B0 i A
Az 1) 1 3 il i ) VT MK I o R AR I
o W ol AR R LA Y S R © R
YR 55 4 21 SN B ik 3 < A LA 22 W UK
gﬁ%ﬁiiﬁﬁkﬂ%ﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ%&ﬁﬁ

B4 s 2 LA DOBAT WA IR - SR A R
SR 7 MR T VT B A MR T o R A
i 4o s £ LA T BG4 A 1 2 2 R R R B T
PIBLRS A F2.7%E4.9% K H115% ©
FLEAENAZSTH o i E A E S REA
#55,762,000¥57C o H % B B3 45 78 A= HLAL Y 3%
S A AT I A ARG R SU IR T 4 - ot
3£~ R B sl (R0 I ok R Y 7 ) Tl ol LM
1H9,112,00087C - R -F_=4FEANA=ZTHR
it B4 2 AL BB AT AP AY - WAL
3£~ R B sl CRL A5 ok R Y 7 ) Tl ol LM

o

WE R AERNA =S H LR > SR
i ~ WG Bt (6356 B FH R ) Tt 2 A

REFD=ZER R DEANNH
=+H > st AWk - Kb s
R AT P B PR S R A S

Carrying amount Depreciation Impairment
M itk Wi
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 202
it At S et S St S S S e S -

HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
T#x T T T T T
Office equipment WA 999 1383 514 479 1,175 -
Leased properties HEmE 3,683 10,526 7,19 2,921 3,781 -
4,682 11,869 7,710 3,400 4,956 -
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14. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

15.

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries at 30 June 2023
and 2022 are as follows:

Name of company

R4

Directly held
Hang Sang (Siu Po) Holding
Limited

Indirectly held

Hang Sang (Siu Po) Press
Company Limited
(“Hang Sang (Siu Po)")

1 GkiR) BB HIRAT
(A Gk AR) )

AW Printing & Packaging
Limited (“A W Printing")

Alpha Prime Foods Limited
(“Alpha Prime”)

N A R A
(TH3#))

INVENTORIES

Raw materials

Work in progress
Finished goods

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

14. AW B 2 " 8%
RO EZER R HEANA
=T HZEEMBARFEEDT -

Place and date of Equity interest
incorporation and attributable to
operations Paid up capital the Group Principal activities
EHRL R B R I AR B ARMENHES TR
2023 2022
RO CROORF
HiZHH
The BVI HK$10 100% 100% Investment holding
8 October 2015 10%7¢ B
RER 5
“F-hHE+ANHE
3]
Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Manufacturing and sale of
12 November 1999 100,000% 7 apparel labels and packaging
B printing products
—RSEF 2R T A TR B L
B il
Hong Kong HK$300,000 100% 100% Sale of apparel labels and
29 November 1994 300,000% ¢ packaging printing products
i SR MR R L R 2
—REF A Z
Hong Kong HK$100,000 100% 100% Sale and distribution of food,
19 March 2021 100,00037C daily necessities and utility
i products
“ETAEEATRA Bl H B I b
ks
15. 4%
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
TH#x TT
JRAERE 1,221 869
FERL 29 26
R 2,031 2,960
3,281 3,855
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

15. INVENTORIES (CONTINUED) 15. A5 (%)
Write-down for slow-moving inventories amounted to BREF=HANA=ZTHILSE
HK$628,000 (2022: HK$583,000) was recognised as an BE > BEE A B k628,000 T (&
expense during the year ended 30 June 2023 and included A 1 583,000%00) CUHERR A B
in ‘cost of sales’ in the consolidated statement of profit or 32 o M ER A KR A A S HE A 2 T W
loss and other comprehensive income. BB AR
16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 16. 5 B ICAb RSk
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T T#T
Trade receivables (note (a)) B 5 REBOsK I (B ik () 5,642 4,804
Less: loss allowance (note (b)) I R (FFEE (b)) (1,403) (1,367)
4,239 3,437
Deposits, prepayments and other 4~ BUTRR
receivables JC A MO IR
Deposits (note (c)) 4 (M (o) 2,314 4,774
Other receivables A R Wk T 197 32
Prepayments FEAF K 364 291
2,875 5,097
Less: non-current portion W IR B S

Deposits paid for acquisition of property, JEEE ~ M7 K3 OA
plant and equipment, net of accumulated Z#%4x » R BFHEEE

impairment loss of HK$Nil (2022: BEWIC(CF A4
HK$239,000) 239,000 #7T) - (2,532)
Current portion WL 4 7,114 6,002
(a) Trade receivables (@) B 5 MOk
The Group allows credit periods ranging from 0 ﬂi%rﬁﬁﬂﬁ%@%ﬁ&@%mﬁ{]
to 2 months to its customers derived from sales of b R P R0 =2 A 5 B
apparel labels and packaging printing products, W1 i R > H O o
whereas credit periods ranging from 0 to 1 month to lﬁnﬂ%ﬁ%&m%gﬁfi%ﬁ@%ﬂﬁl
its customers from sale and distribution of food, daily H%Eﬁﬂ ° ﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁi&%ﬁ@
necessities and utility products. Further details on the HE— 2B R O B 273

Group’s credit policy are set out in note 27.3.
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16. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

(@) Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group usually reaches an agreement on the term
of each payment with the customer by taking into
account of factors such as, among other things, the
credit history of the customer, its liquidity position
and the Group’s working capital needs, which varies
on a case-by-case basis that requires the judgement
and experience of the management.

For online distribution of food, daily necessities and
utility products, receipts in advance are required
before the relevant goods are delivered.

The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on the
invoice date, net of loss allowance, is as follows:

Within 3 months 3TAN
Over 3 months but within 6 months @ 3 HHAE 6 AHA N
Over 6 months but within 1year & 6 il H £ 14K

(b) Loss allowance of trade receivables
The movement in the loss allowance of trade
receivables is as follows:

Balance at 1 July B H— H &R

Loss allowance recognised during 4 A TUHE a2 e 18 188 45
the year

Balance at 30 June RN H =1 HWE R

(c) Deposits
The amounts mainly represent rental and utilities
deposits paid (2022: deposits paid for acquisition of
property, plant and equipment and rental and utilities
deposits paid.)

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANAZTHIEEE

16. B 5y Be I O3 I (50
(@) BUH MWK (%)

A G — M B PR R IR
ik - J5 kAt B (L B35%) &
Py S ek > Hoi s ek vl
To 7 55 ) B4 8 0 i 4 5 R S A
> HR R RGOl A
b 260K 51 A L g W B AL

BB ~ H O S B2y S b Y
A ETCRE o 22 AR B B A I 2
FEWGHKOH -

s R IRV &Y iRk ]

Y B2 i JRE WAk L 1 B B 4 A 0
T
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
4,113 3,214
62 210
64 13
4,239 3,437

(b) B 5% M W5k 0 s B 388

%%EW%EEE@%Z%@#H
2023
—g—=

HK$’000 HK$000
T T¥T

1,367 1,308

36 59

1,403 1,367

(c) ¥4

% SR H AR B SR B AT
e (R  IREYSE
W8 M i T 2 4% 8 DL R Al 4
POKE O Z %) ©
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

17.

18.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash at banks and on hand
Short-term fixed deposits

The short-term fixed deposits earn interest rate of 4.3%
(2022: 0.7%) per annum and have a maturity of one month

(2022: three months).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables (note (a))

Marketing services fee payables
Receipts in advance (note (b))
Accruals and other payables (note (c))

(@) Trade payables

Payment terms granted by suppliers ranged from 1
to 3 months from the invoice date of the relevant

purchases.

The following is an ageing analysis of trade payables,
based on invoice date, at the end of the reporting

period:

SRAT L T HBLE
390 A2 B A K
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17. B& RS ED
2023 2022
TR T4 N S
HK$’000 HK$’000
TF#n F#oo
9,303 16,858
33,349 41,088
43,152 57,946

St 1) S 1A K AR R R F4.3% (&
T 0.7%) FHE s BB H A1
HCE & =fA) -

18. B 5 Ko It MEA 3k M

2023 2022

TROSME CFRCOE

HK$’000 HK$’000

Tt TFH#oo

B 5 REAT s E (M (a) 2,911 2,820

JEA T 354 63 P s 2 772 495

THWGKIE (FFHRE (b)) 271 361
JETT 2 P e o Ath JE A5 3K 0

(BF5E () 4,997 4,533

8,951 8,209

(@) B %M
BERERG B2 T AT 3B R 2 B A B
i E B H 123 A -

RS H Y 2 50 i 5 5 HEAS Rk IH
HRHE AT AN T

2023 2022
e St e~

HK$’000 HK$'000

Within 3 months

3fHAN

T T¥oT
2,911 2,820
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18. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

(b) Receipts in advance

(0

The amount represents the advanced payments
from customers for goods, which revenue will be
recognised when the performance obligation was
satisfied through the goods were transferred to the
customers.

The decrease in receipts in advance was mainly due
to the decrease in advances received from customers
in relation to sales of apparel labels and packaging
printing products.

Revenue recognised during the year AR T s st A TR ORI
that was included in the receipts in AR WL

advance at the beginning of the year

The Group’s contracts with customers are for
period of one year or less. The entire receipts in
advance balance at the year end would be generally
recognised into revenue in the next financial year.
As permitted under HKFRS 15, the transaction price
allocated to these unsatisfied contracts which have an
original expected duration of one year or less is not
disclosed.

Accruals and other payables

The amounts mainly represent the accruals for staffs
salaries and benefits, audit and professional fees and
other miscellaneous expenses.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_F_ZHEANA=ZTHIEE

18. B 50 B JL A M A sk ()
(b) BB

()

WK SR A PR il S AT A LA
AR LW 7 A RS 1
TEF » SERB R TR o

FEMORIE I8 A 75 T2 2 Bt 8
i 25 A e 25 DI 2 1 5
W B BRI o

2023
—EF =

2022
TR
HK$'000
FH#IC

HK$'000
T#x

(256) (707)

A B SR P £ [ R Y] AR R
VAR o 472K il 2 R T WORK B A5 Bk
HE T T 8] B A PR s ML
aift o TEF U B W HE B SR 1558
RFFZAEOUT > WAL FE ) L =
% AR AT HLJSUE w40 A —
HERUTZHERZZSAMH -

JEET 8 P B LAl M Ao sk 2

%S AR H B AR H T e X
A~ A% e TS H T DL M I At
JEBH S ERH R
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fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

19. LEASE LIABILITIES 19. AT A%
The following table shows the remaining contractual TERIRALE A E A AR A
maturities of the Group’s lease liabilities: HIBI I :
2023 2022
HK$/000 HK$000
T#x T#T
Total minimum lease payments: A RE B A sk AR
Due within one year —AEN B 7,379 7,308
Due in the second to fifth years TR HERE 3,117 5,996
10,496 13,304
Future finance charges on HE R ERKEE EH
lease liabilities (552) (749)
Present value of lease liabilities MEAESE 9,944 12,555
Present value of minimum lease IARA B AR B BUE
payments:
Due within one year —4F g 2 ] 7,019 6,752
Due in the second to fifth years “RBRERNE 2,925 5,803
9,944 12,555
Less: Portion due within one year W BEFARBAEZ
included under current —AR N B4
liabilities (7,019) (6,752)
Portion due after one year included Bt AR B A&
under non-current liabilities TR AR B A 43 2,925 5,803
During the year ended 30 June 2023, the total cash BRE_Z_=H#AH=Z1THIL
outflows for the leases are HK$8,521,000 (2022: EE L HEMBSRBAHES
HK$8,261,000). 8,521,000 70 (= F = 4 ¢
8,261,000%#7C) °
The Group has obtained the right-of-use in relation to the A4 ] © 28 4 LIS W o AT T
office equipment, office premises and directors’ quarters AZEZM -~ WMAEWEREREE
through the tenancy agreements. The leases typically run B RE - % SFME —RAP %
on an initial period of two to five years (2022: two to five HMELE(CE £ HWEL
years) without options for renewal and termination. The ) o Sl SR I A 1 R PR o AL
Group makes fixed payments during the contract period. e A 300 A S A I R RO
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20. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

21.

The following is the deferred tax liabilities recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position and the
movements thereon during the year:

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRTEHAA=THIRERE

20. Y& REBLIH £ 15
VLR 2545 W B B 5 1R DL 3R T o
PR 908 S0 o D £ i S LA ) -

2023 2022

HK$’000 HK$’000

T RRLI

At 1 July R-EHA—HZ 458 507 752
Recognised in profit or loss (note 10) M ##ER (FiEE10) (358) (245)
Balance at 30 June AR =+ HZ bR 149 507

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences of approximately
HK$37,985,000 (2022: HK$18,190,000) and HK$1,303,000
(2022: HK$1,266,000), respectively, available for offset
against future profits. The unrecognised tax losses
have no expiry dates. No deferred tax asset has been
recognised in respect of those tax losses due to the

unpredictability of future profit streams.

CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(@) Share capital

Authorised: ke
Atbeginningand atend of R RAER »
the year, at HK$0.01 per B IR ER0.01# T
ordinary share
Issued and fully paid: CHATRAR
Atbeginningand atend of ~ RMEFIRAER >
the year, at HK$0.01 per IR R 0.019 7T

ordinary share

All shares rank pari passu with the existing shares in

all respects.

WR_E_=HFENH=1TH » &K%
[ W] F 7 4K 8 AR AR R R B R B
%ﬁﬁ&iﬁ&??ﬂﬁﬁﬁ#%%ﬁﬁﬁu
#17%437,985,000% 06 (—F -
18,190, 000{%75) 1,303,000 00 (—
%::@ 11,266,000 70) o AHER
B G B H o b AR 2R i
FI AR5 A W] B > R R%E B
e T e R A BV O 2 o

21. JBeAS B fili
(@) BeA

2023
e S

2022

R T
HK$'000 No. of shares
T#x Bt 8 H

HK$'000
ik

No. of shares

By eH

760,000,000 7,600 760,000,000 7,600

184,000,000 1,840 184,000,000 1,840
PIAT BEAT 9 B A2 45 7 i R E
BATIRY A ] AR
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fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_F_ZHENA=ZTHIEE

21. CAPITAL AND RESERVES (CONTINUED)

(b)

(0

(d)

Share premium

The share premium represents the difference
between the par value of the Company and proceeds
received from the issuance of the shares of the
Company, net of shares issuance costs and the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital issued by the Company and the aggregate
of the net assets value of Hang Sang (Siu Po) and
A W Printing acquired by the Company pursuant
to the group reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”)
completed on 13 November 2015 in connection with
the listing of the Company’s shares on the Main board
of the Stock Exchange.

Capital reserve
Capital reserve of the Group represents the share
capital of entities comprising the Group prior to the
Reorganisation and the reserves arising from the
Reorganisation.

Accumulated losses/Retained earnings
Accumulated losses/Retained earnings represent
accumulated net profit or losses less dividends paid.

21. JBeAS B fidi 4 (%)

(b) BB it fE

e Ay i AT A 2 ) 4 J A7y T L B
AT AN v JBe Ay T WO o R T
ZRBIZEH > THBRBAD 34T
AR B A ) BB AT B AR T L LA
O AR R A AR R TR — AR
T A =R A AN F K
By e Bon 32 B AR bl 2 A ([
ALL) Wl e A CRER) A W
PrintingZ ¥ & 48 1 Z [H] i 2
% o

(o) HEAGRM
AR F A Al 15 TR AL T A 5
@g?ﬁ%%&ﬁ&ﬁ&%i%
% o

(d) Eatls PR e Al
FRt R A 1 R EHER
s g AT BB, o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANAZTHIEEE

22. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 22. AR A A BHR LR

COMPANY
2023 2022
TRTOTE R
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T-#I0
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES ¥ K fi
Non-current asset FETR B

Investment in a subsidiary A [ B JB A W) B 4 9,657 22,994
Current assets it B
Other receivables At JE Wk T 136 171
Amount due from a subsidiary JRRE Wi — ] BB A ) sk B 39,290 41,714
Cash and cash equivalents Bl R Bl & S EW 2,292 2,287
41,718 44172
Current liability Vi £ 4%
Other payables At A R 40 70
Net current assets T 41,678 44,102
Total assets less current liabilities 48 % s i ) £3 % 51,335 67,096
Net assets ¥ 51,335 67,096
Equity JBe SR HE
Share capital JBEAR 21(a) 1,840 1,840
Reserves (note) Tt Al (BffE) 49,495 65,256
Total equity B2 B 51,335 67,096

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of

directors on 22 September 2023.

Mr Fung Man Wai Samson

ERER_F_=FASF2H
b R SR T 5 o

Mr Fung Kar Chue Alexander

3Rk WHRAE
Director Director
HH HH
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fr e M ERRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

22. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 22. A2 A B R DL ()
COMPANY (CONTINUED)
Note: Bt «
The movement of the Company’s reserves is as follows: AN ZAEMEEH BT
Share premium Accumulated loss Total
JBe i 0 L4y i B
HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000
T T R
At 1 July 2021 R —HEH—H 77,105 (13,025) 64,080
Profit and total comprehensive income AP BER A B 2 T W2 A
for the year - 1,176 1,176
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 REBZZHEANHA=ZTHK
R EEA 77,105 (11,849) 65,256
Loss and total comprehensive expense A e TR e 2T S Hh A
for the year - (15,761) (15,761)
At 30 June 2023 AR ZAEANAZTH 77,105 (27,610) 49,495
As at 30 June 2023, the aggregate amount of reserves REZRTEHANA=Z1H > Wty
available for distribution to the equity owners of the IR T A 23 ) RE 45 AT N BY fik A5 A8
Company was HK$49,495,000 (2022: HK$65,256,000). Hi2549,495,000¥ 0 (ZF 4 -
65,256,000 70) °
23. COMMITMENTS 23. 7R ¥
(a) Capital commitments (@) BATRSE
Capital commitments of the Group outstanding as at ﬁ?ig:zﬂiﬁig::fﬁfiﬁ
30 June 2023 and 2022 not provided for are as follows: =10 AREEARFHEZ B AR
EWE -
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$'000
T#T TH#T
Contracted for property, CELIYIZE ~ Wb Bkt
plant and equipment - 211
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23. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b) Lease commitments
At the end of the reporting period, the lease
commitments for short-term leases are as follows:

Within 1 year TEUN

As at 30 June 2023, the Group leases a property which
is qualified to be accounted for under short-term
lease exemption under HKFRS 16 “Leases”.

24. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

The Group participates in MPF Scheme established under
the Mandatory Provident Fund Ordinance in December
2000. The assets of the scheme are held separately from
those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.

For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes 5% of the employees’ relevant income
to the MPF Scheme. Both the employer’s and the
employees’ contributions are subject to a maximum of
monthly relevant income of HK$30,000 per employee.
Contributions to the plan vest immediately.

During the year ended 30 June 2023, the aggregate
employer’s contributions made by the Group amounted
to HK$861,000 (2022: HK$833,000).

Besides, the Group had no forfeited contributions under
its retirement benefit schemes which may be used to
reduce the existing level of contributions during the years
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_F_ZHEANA=ZTHIEE

23. 7t 0 5 (#)

(b) RN
REFZ =R R DEANA
= H o AR S A B A A
BRI T

2023 2022
- St

SRR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T F#T
253 -

RERZEZHAAAZTH o AR
MIME T I » M EAE
RE £ A o I 5 ol Y T SR 1 6 9%
[R5 A L 5 8 S AN G

24. B A

AREE 2 MR RFRET ZHM
1% 50 6 4 T S ) 8 o B R B <t
B o Wl # 2 A
Q%ﬁﬁﬁ > ol i R RE AR 2 4

A A [ R T R s 2 s R 4
B 08 B A %08 B AH BB S5%Z
2Btk o R EKIEB Z 3 A E A
& B 4 H A B W A 30,0009 6% |
R o stk ek B bR e O

HREZR=FANH=+THI#
BE > AR AR 1 0 U R Ak AA A Ay
861,000 7T (=& 4 : 833,000
WIL) °

A s MECR AR R
FANHZ+H IR > A H 3 J5
2 3B AR At 8T A AR A B
Bk Wtk o
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i & M 5 I RO o
For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

25. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) Transactions with related companies

25. TR BB TR 5
(i) MBEARZRY

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated
financial statements, during the year, the Group
entered into the following material related party
transactions with related companies:

Wik o £ Bt 2 A LA 8 O 4 R
FOL s AN o ACER B B I
CHRAYSN ON L yipE R

2023 2022
—F-= e S
Name of company Relationship Nature of transaction HK$'000 HK$'000
A 41 LL L L KEER S WA T THT
Karwin Corporation  Controlled by Mr Samson Fung,a  Lease payment paid for
Limited controlling shareholder who is director’s quarter (note)
A A also a director of the Company ~ #E# 34 i AT AL B 13k
HI R R Sfe (IR A A A ] (HFE)
W) el 960 960
Super Champion Controlled by Mr David Fung, a Lease payment paid for
Limited controlling shareholder who is director’s quarter (note)
g AR A also a director of the Company ~ #t# 34 i AT AL B 13k
HI AR R SC B e (IR A A A ] (FE)
W) el 960 960

Note:

The lease payment paid and/or payable for directors’ quarters were made at
the prices mutually agreed between the Group and the respective related
companies.

For the years ended 30 June 2023 and 2022, the related party transactions
above constitute connected transactions or continuing connected
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. However those
transactions are exempt from the disclosure requirements in Chapter 14A
of the Listing Rules as they are below the de minimis threshold under Rule
14A.76(1).

Wi

ST R ST A A B AR DA AR
T L% J) I W 2 0 ELRYT B 2 BT S A

BEZFR=ER R _EANAZTHIESE
BE 2t BT Oy A8 2w b vt BRI SR 14 AR i
IR 0 B RS B s R R AL B o AR > %
A DR Ry B BRI 14AT 2 BB L
& TR R SE14A.76 (DIRIE T Z &K
WHIAKE o
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25. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

(ii) Key management personnel remuneration
Key management personnel of the Group, including
amounts paid to the directors as disclosed in note 8§,
and senior management, is as follows:

Salaries, allowances and other
benefits

Retirement benefit costs
- defined contribution plan

Total remuneration above is included in ‘staff costs’
(see note 7(a)).

Other than the related party transactions disclosed
above, no other transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance to which the Company was a party and
in which a director of the Company or a connected
entity of the director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Hr ~ R N At A A
SRR A AR — S Bkt

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRZ=AEANAZTHIEEE

25. T K BB )5 38 ) (%)
(i) BEEMA M4

AR EEAT BN B > 4G
ST E R (R RS e R) S

GBI Z AWM T -
2023 2022
SEoSE SR
HK$'000 HK$'000
T T
9,380 9,182
180 178
9,560 9,360
VLB A8 S AT B AR |

(FEE7 (@) °

W b ST 4 i = T Wi A2 S B
PRHEA N 5] 2 Hovp — 7 A A ]
o B A B 2 AT
NERETALES ZEN PN SNV
S LR AR AT IR [ A2 A 2
TR T ~ KR AH -
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEZRT=4AA=THILERE

26. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 26. G B A 05 A IR

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

A S5 P i 4% 98 P 2 R B )
ST

The changes in the Group’s liabilities arising from
financing activities can be classified as follows:

Lease
liabilities

AL A

HK$’000
T¥T
(note 19)
(Bi5E19)

At 1 July 2021 R_F_—FtEtH—H 5,697
Changes from financing cash flows: BB B R
Payment of lease liabilities SR H (3/411)
Interest paid eAFLE (342)
Total changes from financing cash flows A B 4 i e A ) A (3,753)
Other changes: oAb sE®)
Entering into a new lease (note 13(a)) sTarBrf e (FRE13(a)) 10,269
Interest expenses (note 7(b)) )8 BA 3 (K &E7 (b)) 342
Total other changes A 5 38 48 R 10,611
At 30 June 2022 and 1 July 2022 RORTTAEANAZTHR

- 4ELHA—H 12,555
Changes from financing cash flows: WY Bl )
Payment of lease liabilities AP F (7,596)
Interest paid [EYoplBst (693)
Total changes from financing cash flows T B 4 A ) A A (8,289)
Other changes: Jofb ) :
Gain on early termination of lease (note 7(c)) S ILFLE Z W2k (FiF&E7(c) (494)
Lease modification (note 13(c)) FEAEST (MFRE13(c) 4,134
Early termination of lease (note 13(b)) P& E (FEE13(b)) (1,056)
Entering into a new lease (note 13(a)) Wl ST (FFEE13(a)) 2,401
Interest expenses (note 7(b)) FE B3 (B L7 (b)) 693
Total other changes Al 53 55 4 5,678
At 30 June 2023 REFZEAEANAZTA 9,944
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

MEASUREMENTS

The Group is exposed to financial risks through its use of
financial instruments in its ordinary course of operations.
The financial risks include market risk (including foreign
currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner. The most
significant financial risk to which the Group is exposed as
discussed below.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

27.1Categories of financial assets and liabilities
The carrying amounts presented in the consolidated
statement of financial position relate to the following
categories of financial assets and financial liabilities:

e M EHRME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_F_ZHEANA=ZTHIEE

27. YU BB 4% B B > el it

AR H R SE B AR v A A e
LTI R O B D o B L
A5 1 55 B (45 A I J e % ) R
JEVBE) ~ 5 B R i ) R
B A PR B S R o DL
DR e e i A 25 G 9 4 o AR
iﬁ%%ﬁz%ﬁﬁﬁa‘i‘%)ﬂl‘ﬁ%?)’cﬁ

A 45 0 4 ik T EL T 3 2 L A R
FOAT B %t R Bz O SRl 4

27.1 4% A B AL 2 38
A BA BR3P ) B i B R
Bl 4 g R A AR -

2023 2022
RTUR

SR
HK$'000
T¥#IT

HK$’000
T

Financial assets S E

Financial assets at amortised cost FLHRR AR T 121 2

— Trade and other receivables — B 5 e Al HE K 6,750 5,711

— Cash and cash equivalents — Bl& KB FEY 43,152 57,946
49,902 63,657

Financial liabilities A £ 4%

Financial liabilities measured at FLHRRT AR 7117 1 2 il A

amortised cost

— Trade and other payables — B 5 B Fo A A k0 8,680 7,848

— Lease liabilities —FMEARK 9,944 12,555
18,624 20,403
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
WEZR=AENA=ZTHIREE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 27. B e 4% BI K 2 Se i wt o (4

MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

arise from its cash and cash equivalents, trade and
other receivables and trade and other payables, which
are primarily denominated in United States dollars
(“USD”). USD is not the functional currency of the
companies comprising the Group to which these
transactions relate.

Foreign currency denominated financial assets and
liabilities, translated into Hong Kong dollars (“HK$")
at the closing rates, are as follows:

27.2Foreign currency risk 27.2 A HE B B
Foreign currency risk refers to the risk that the fair A1 Jl e < b H 2 A SR (R
value or future cash flows of a financial instrument R A B 45 A PR 7 s 23 52 ) i
will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange el 2 g o AR ] 7k % 2 A I
rate. The Group’s exposures to foreign currency risk JR\ B2k B B 4 K Bl 4 S

¥ 5 B HoA E WK T A 1 5 5 e
FCAtRE AR > FZEA ST ([
Jel) FHE o SRIC IR Je AR
@Z%ﬂﬁiﬁ%@ié\\ﬁjzmﬁ%ﬁ

VLSS g LA 33 Wi R 450
T ([ TC 1) B <ol 9 8 S B4
T BRI E ST > Y
R P STV ST R N g <]
ATy TR A ) > W AR 4 Sl
38 7R R A/ B L

2023 2022
RTUR

SRR
HK$’000 HK$'000
T T#T

198
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Cash and cash equivalents Bl R B4 FEHY 4,706 12,453
Trade and other receivables B 5 B At R WK T 3,536 1,987
Trade and other payables B 5 T F A RE A 2k Ve (1,054) (922)
Net exposure arising from OB R ARy

recognised assets and liabilities b s 7,188 13,518

As HKS$ is pegged to USD, the management does not
expect any significant movements in the USD/HK$
exchange rate and considers the Group does not
expose to significant currency risk.

The Group does not hedge its foreign currency risks
with USD as the foreign exchange rate between HK$
and USD is controlled within a tight range and the
Group is not exposed to material foreign currency
risk, therefore, no sensitivity analysis is presented.
Permanent changes in foreign exchange rates would
have an impact on consolidated financial statements.

HR T S ST e - 4 BILE 7]
WISETE, W e R A A A
REET > W Ty A48 1 3 408 7K
B L i o

HR ¥ 70 5 5870 Z e RS2 P2 ) i
A e T A W 5 Bl LA 5 1 i i 7
RHIHE JEL B > A 45 [ Sif 28 g 5 0
S I AN HE R > PR S 2 5
BURPBEI BT o B HEE ME % 2 4B 5
BT REE ARG 2 AR M B R
WG o
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fr S MR RME

For the year ended 30 June 2023
BEEC=ZEANAZTHIREE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

27. B W B 4 B R 4y etk (410)

27.3 Credit risk 27.3 4 £ Bl B

Credit risk relates to the risk that the counterparty
to a financial instrument would fail to discharge

5 B B < i L 38 5 R BB
AR < kTR A sk A7 3L AT

its obligations under the terms of the financial B 368 A 55 1] 05 12 S 25 Mg 4R 1) L
instrument and cause a financial loss to the Group. B o ARG {5 B m b E B E A A
The Group’s exposure to credit risk mainly arises from HIEWRBBRETRTE NG
granting credit to customers in the ordinary course of BRILBETH -

its operations and from its investing activities.

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk for
the components of the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 30 June 2023 and 2022 is the

PEF SRR RN
=+H > AREEBAR AT ERDU
AL 3 WY do e A5 L 2

carrying amounts as disclosed in note 27.1. k271 B R R TH L -
Trade receivables B MRk
The Group’s policy is to deal only with credit worthy 755 ) Py TSR 18 LA TR R Y

counterparties. Credit terms are granted to new
customers after a credit worthiness assessment by
the credit control department. When considered
appropriate, customers may be requested to provide
proof as to their financial position. Where available at
reasonable cost, external credit ratings and/or reports
on customers are obtained and used. Customers who
are not considered creditworthy are required to pay
in advance or on delivery of goods. Payment record of
customers is closely monitored. It is not the Group’s
policy to request collateral from its customers.

In addition, as set out in note 2.9, the Group assesses
ECL under HKFRS 9 on trade receivables based on
provision matrix, the expected loss rates are based on
the payment profile for sales in the past 24 months
as well as the corresponding historical credit losses
during that period. The historical rates are adjusted to
reflect current and forward-looking macroeconomic
factors affecting the customer’s ability to settle the
amount outstanding. At the end of each reporting
period, the historical default rates are updated
and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. However given the short period exposed
to credit risk, the impact of these macroeconomic
factors has not been considered significant within
the reporting period. In applying the forward-looking
information, the Group has taken into account the
possible impacts associated with the uncertainty in
global economic outlook.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 30 June 2023
BE_F_ZHENA=ZTHIEE

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4E#

MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.3 Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are written off (i.e. derecognised)
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reasonable expectation
of recovery include, amongst others, the failure of a
debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Group.

As at 30 June 2023, 54.4% (2022: 23.7%) of the total
trade receivables was due from the Group’s five
largest customers.

As at 30 June 2023, the Group has adopted expected
loss rate of 1% to 31% (2022: 2% to 31%) for trade
receivables that are current or past due for within 1
year and 100% (2022: 100%) for trade receivables that
are past due for more than 1 year.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

Other financial assets at amortised cost include
other receivables and deposits and cash and cash
equivalents. In order to minimise the credit risk, the
management makes periodic collective and individual
assessment on their recoverability based on historical
settlement records, past experience and available
forward-looking information and adjusted to reflect
probability-weighted forward-looking information,
including the default rate where the relevant debtors
operates. Other monitoring procedures are in place
to ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover
overdue debts.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE 27. B e s 4% BI K A Aot wt o (4

MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.3 Credit risk (Continued) 27.3 4 B8 LB (%)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Continued) TR 8 A 5 A b 4 b %
(%)

Besides, the management is of opinion that there is no
significant increase in credit risk on other receivables
since initial recognition as the risk of default is low
after considering the factors as set out in note 2.9 and,
thus, ECL recognised is based on 12-month ECL. As at
30 June 2023, no 12-month ECL was provided on other
receivables (2022: HK$Nil).

The credit risks on cash and cash equivalents
are considered to be insignificant because the
counterparties are major banks located in Hong Kong
with high credit ratings.

27.4Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk relates to the risk that the fair value
or cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in the market interest rates.
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
lease liabilities and bank balances. The exposures
to interest rates for the Group’s short-term fixed
deposits and lease liabilities are considered
immaterial. The Group therefore does not have

BEAb o #8552, 9 B RN &
R > B 2 LA B AR T Y
i BB 0 25 e DA G Sl 2
FHM > PRy T A S BRI -
P > Cufed BUE Bl 15 3
Fer2fE H GG B o R F
SEEANAZTH > B b
JE Wk B w41 2418 H TS B
R (ORI - FWoo) -

B4 S B4 W v 5 B B A
BRWATER > B2 5 FI7
R AR AW R R A B A
ZRET -

27.4 F1) 3 b Bg

) 2 o o B < il T L A LA R
B i Bt o PR i S ) SR e A
T ¢ B ) L B A B o A 5 P )
i A A AL A BT
KR o ACHE [ S ] AR R B AL
B A R BRI EK o
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significant exposure to interest rate risk for the years I TR R e
ended 30 June 2023 and 2022.
27.5 Liquidity risk 27.5 ¥ By 4 Bl B

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will
not be able to meet its obligations associated with its
financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash
or another financial asset. The Group is exposed to
liquidity risk in respect of settlement of trade and
other payables and lease liabilities, and also in respect
of its cash flow management.
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27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE
MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.5 Liquidity risk (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity

27. 85 W B 4 B R 4y e ff ik (410)

27.5 Ui B 4 M Bs ()

ARG M) 2 BRI B P L )

requirements to ensure that it maintains sufficient 4 T B DA DR A AR B B A
reserve of cash to meet its liquidity requirements in JE B8 AR A L7 0 I R
the short and longer term. Mz RBEEHRE -

Analysis below is the Group’s remaining contractual
maturities for its financial liabilities at the end of the
reporting period. When the creditor has a choice of
when the liability is settled, the liability is included
on the basis of the earliest date on when the Group
can be required to pay. Where the settlement of
the liability is in instalments, each instalment is
allocated to the earliest period in which the Group is
committed to pay.

The contractual maturity analysis below is based on
the undiscounted cash flows of the financial liabilities.

Within

VLR 43 7 % A 4 1 4 il £ 507 ¥k
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Over 1 year Total
but within  undiscounted
5 years amount

—~EU LR VS

1 year or
on demand

—HER

Carrying
amount

M i
HK$'000
T

HEOR FE v Hm

HKS$'000
Tt

HKS$'000
T

HKS'000
T

As at 30 June 2023 RoBTZEAA=ZTH

Trade and other payables B % R MRERT500H 8,680 - 8,680 8,680

Lease liabilities HEA R 7,379 3,117 10,496 9,944
16,059 3,117 19,176 18,624

As at 30 June 2022 REZFZZHEAA=ZTH

Trade and other payables B %) & LAl A 30 7,848 - 7,848 7,848

Lease liabilities &R 7,308 5,996 13,304 12,555
15,156 5,99 21,152 20,403

202 | Hang Sang (Siu Po) International Holding Company Limited Annual Report 2023 4£#t



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND FAIR VALUE

28.

MEASUREMENTS (CONTINUED)

27.6 Fair value estimation
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not
materially different from their fair values as at 30 June
2023 and 2022 due to the short-term maturities.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to (i) safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it continues to provide returns
and benefits for its stakeholders, (ii) support the Group’s
stability and growth, and (iii) provide capital for the
purpose of strengthening the Group’s risk management
capability.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to ensure optimal capital structure and
shareholders returns, taking into consideration the future
capital requirements of the Group and capital efficiency,
prevailing and projected profitability, projected operating
cash flows, projected capital expenditures and projected
strategic investment opportunities. The Group currently
does not adopt any formal dividend policy. The Group’s
capital management objectives, policies or processes
were unchanged during the year ended 30 June 2023.

The Group is not subject to any externally imposed
capital requirements.
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Results
Year ended 30 June
Revenue

(Loss)/Profit before
income tax
Income tax credit

(Loss)/Profit for the year

Assets and liabilities
As at 30 June

Total assets

Total liabilities

Net assets

Financial Summary

e
BEAH =T HIEAEE
Wi

BB AL i
(i 18) /1
e i 45

SR (B 4H) i

¥ & 4
‘AH=AH
B AL
AR

AT

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
“®-=k CRooF CRSF CRORE RO
HK$000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$/000 HK$'000
2 7N & T SR £ TR € T

54,414 75,510 62,655 65,093 82,170
(26,323) (4,080) (3,559) (10,128) 1,415

358 245 602 412 250
(25,965) (3,835) (2,957) (9,716) 1,665

60,797 88,989 87,753 83,471 102,990
(19,044) (21,271) (16,200) (8,961) (9,564)

41,753 67,718 71,553 74510 93,426
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